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PER CURIAM.

Anthony Floyd Wainwright is a prisoner under sentence of
death for whom a warrant has been signed and an execution set for
June 10, 2025. He appeals the circuit court’s order summarily
denying his amended eighth successive motion for postconviction
relief filed under Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.851.1 For the
reasons that follow, we affirm. We likewise deny his motion to stay

execution.

1. We have jurisdiction. See art. V, § 3(b)(1), Fla. Const.



I

Wainwright was convicted and sentenced to death for the 1994
murder of C.G. Wainwright v. State (Wainwright 1), 704 So. 2d 511,
512 (Fla. 1997). After Wainwright and co-perpetrator Richard
Hamilton escaped from prison in North Carolina, they stole guns
and a car and drove to Florida. Once in Florida, Wainwright and
Hamilton accosted C.G., a young mother of two, at gunpoint as she
loaded groceries into her car in a Winn-Dixie parking lot. They stole
the car and took off with C.G. “They raped, strangled, and executed
[C.G.] by shooting her twice in the back of the head, and were
arrested the next day in Mississippi following a shootout with
police.” Id.

Wainwright was found guilty of first-degree murder, robbery,
kidnapping, and sexual battery, all with a firearm. The jury
unanimously recommended death. The trial court sentenced

Wainwright to death after finding six aggravating circumstances,?

2. The aggravating circumstances were: (1) Wainwright
committed the murder while under sentence of imprisonment;
(2) Wainwright had been convicted of a prior violent felony; (3) the
murder was committed during the course of a robbery, kidnapping,
and sexual battery; (4) the murder was committed to effect an
escape; (5) the murder was especially heinous, atrocious, or cruel;
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no statutory mitigating circumstances, and some nonstatutory
mitigation.3 Id. at 512-13. Wainwright raised nine claims on direct
appeal.4 This Court affirmed the convictions and sentences as

corrected.> Id. at 516. Wainwright’s convictions and sentences

and (6) the murder was committed in a cold, calculated, and
premeditated manner. Wainwright I, 704 So. 2d at 512 n.2.

3. For nonstatutory mitigating circumstances, the trial court
found: “The Court finds that defendant’s difficulties in school and
his social adjustment problems, due in part to his problems
associated with bed-wetting do provide some measure of
mitigation.” Wainwright I, 704 So. 2d at 513 n.3. However, the trial
court accorded the mitigating circumstances little weight and found
the mitigating circumstances were outweighed by any single
aggravating circumstance.

4. Wainwright’s claims on direct appeal were: (1) the trial
court erred by allowing Wainwright’s pretrial statements to be
introduced; (2) the trial court erred by allowing the final three DNA
loci to be introduced; (3) the trial court erred by allowing the case to
be tried jointly with separate juries; (4) the trial court erred by
allowing introduction of evidence of other crimes; (5) the trial court
erred by removing a juror on the tenth day of trial; (6) the trial court
erred by allowing introduction of testimony that C.G. routinely
picked her children up from preschool; (7) the trial court erred by
overlooking the State’s failure to establish the corpus delicti of
sexual assault; (8) the trial court erred by allowing introduction of
Wainwright’s statement to police that he had AIDS; and (9) the trial
court erred by imposing the mandatory minimum portions of the
noncapital sentences and retaining jurisdiction over the life
sentences. Wainwright I, 704 So. 2d at 513 n.4.

5. The Court ordered that “Wainwright’s sentencing forms for
the non[]capital offenses reflect the imposition of no mandatory
minimum terms under section 775.082(1), Florida Statutes (1993),
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became final when the United States Supreme Court denied
certiorari on May 18, 1998. Wainwright v. Florida, 523 U.S. 1127
(1998).

Wainwright has since unsuccessfully challenged his
convictions and death sentence in both state and federal court.
Wainwright filed an initial motion for postconviction relief raising

fourteen claims.® Wainwright v. State (Wainwright 1I), 896 So. 2d

and no retention of jurisdiction under section 947.16(3), Florida
Statutes (1983).” Wainwright I, 704 So. 2d at 515-16.

6. Wainwright’s claims in the initial postconviction motion
were: (1) trial counsel was ineffective regarding the admission of
additional DNA evidence; (2) trial counsel was ineffective regarding
Wainwright’s statements and admissions; (3) trial counsel was
ineffective regarding evidence of Wainwright’s out-of-state crimes;
(4) trial counsel was ineffective regarding a microphone discovered
in Wainwright’s cell; (5) trial counsel was ineffective for failing to
object to the penalty phase instructions on the aggravators; (6) trial
counsel was ineffective for failing to object to the prosecutor’s
argument at the guilt and penalty phases; (7) trial counsel was
ineffective for failing to maintain a proper attorney-client
relationship, failing to ensure that Wainwright received adequate
mental health evaluations, and failing to investigate and present
additional mitigating evidence; (8) trial counsel was ineffective for
allowing the victim’s family to testify at sentencing; (9) trial counsel
was ineffective for failing to object to an alleged Caldwell v.
Mississippi, 472 U.S. 320 (19895), error; (10) initial counsel was
ineffective in his pretrial representation of Wainwright; (11) trial
counsel was ineffective for failing to be prepared for trial; (12) trial
counsel was ineffective for introducing statements of the co-
defendant; (13) trial counsel was ineffective for committing an
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0695, 697 (Fla. 2004). After the circuit court denied the motion,
Wainwright raised eight issues on appeal to this Court. Wainwright
also filed a habeas petition raising four claims.” This Court
affirmed the denial of the postconviction motion and denied the
habeas petition. Id. at 704. The United States Supreme Court
denied Wainwright’s certiorari petition. Wainwright v. Florida, 546
U.S. 878 (20059).

Wainwright also sought federal habeas relief pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 2254. Wainwright v. McDonough, No. 3:05-cv-276-J-25,
2006 WL 8449862, at *1 (M.D. Fla. Mar. 10, 2006). The Middle
District of Florida dismissed the petition as untimely. Id. at *4. The

Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed the district court’s

alleged discovery violation; and (14) trial counsel’s illness during
trial rendered him ineffective. Wainwright II, 896 So. 2d at 697 n.1.

7. Wainwright’s claims in the habeas petition were: (1)
Florida’s capital sentencing scheme is unconstitutional under Ring
v. Arizona, 536 U.S. 584 (2002), and Apprendi v. New Jersey, 530
U.S. 466 (2000); (2) trial counsel failed to raise an issue involving
the felony murder jury instruction; (3) the trial court erred by failing
to make specific findings before requiring Wainwright to wear a
stun belt at trial; and (4) the trial court erred by failing to conduct a
Koon v. Dugger, 619 So. 2d 246 (Fla. 1993), inquiry. Wainwright II,
896 So. 2d at 703 & n.7.



dismissal. Wainwright v. Sec’y, Dep’t of Corr., 537 F.3d 1282, 1287
(11th Cir. 2007).

Wainwright then filed a first and second successive motion for
postconviction relief raising newly discovered evidence claims. This
Court affirmed the denial of both postconviction motions.
Wainwright v. State, 2 So. 3d 948 (Fla. 2008); Wainwright v. State,
43 So. 3d 45 (Fla. 2010). Wainwright filed five more successive
postconviction motions. This Court dismissed or denied each
appeal, or Wainwright did not appeal the circuit court’s denial to
this Court. Wainwright v. State, 63 So. 3d 751 (Fla. 2011);
Wainwright v. State, 77 So. 3d 648 (Fla. 2011); Wainwright v. State,
No. SC2015-2280, 2017 WL 394509 (Fla. Jan. 30, 2017);
Wainwright v. State, No. SC2022-1187, 2022 WL 4282149 (Fla.
Sept. 16, 2022).

In 2019, Wainwright filed a Rule 60(b) motion in his federal
habeas case in the Middle District of Florida. Wainwright v. Sec’y,
Fla. Dep’t of Corr., No. 20-13639, 2023 WL 4582786, at *1 (11th
Cir. July 18, 2023). The district court denied the motion, and the

Eleventh Circuit affirmed the denial. Id. at *7. The United States



Supreme Court denied certiorari. Wainwright v. Dixon, 144 S. Ct.
1363 (2024).

On May 9, 2025, Governor DeSantis signed a death warrant
for the execution of Wainwright. The execution is scheduled for
Tuesday, June 10, 2025, at 6:00 p.m.

Timely under this Court’s scheduling order and the circuit
court’s extended deadline for seeking postconviction relief,
Wainwright filed an amended eighth successive motion for
postconviction relief. The motion raised three claims: (1) finding the
prior violent felony aggravator violated the Sixth Amendment right
to trial by jury in light of Erlinger;8 (2) newly discovered evidence of
the effects of Wainwright’s father’s exposure to toxins during the
Vietnam War; and (3) newly discovered evidence of a Brady®
violation based on the State’s alleged failure to disclose a benefit for
one jailhouse informant and the expectation of a benefit for another

jailhouse informant.

8. Erlinger v. United States, 602 U.S. 821 (2024).
9. Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963).
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The circuit court held a Huff!° hearing, after which it
determined that an evidentiary hearing was not necessary. The
circuit court summarily denied the amended eighth successive
motion for postconviction relief on May 20, 2025. Wainwright
timely appealed the circuit court’s order. He also filed a motion for
stay of execution.

II

“Summary denial of a successive postconviction motion is
appropriate qi]f the motion, files, and records in the case
conclusively show that the movant is entitled to no relief.”” Bogle v.
State, 322 So. 3d 44, 46 (Fla. 2021) (alteration in original) (quoting
Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.851(f)(5)(B)); see also Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.851(h)(6).
In reviewing a circuit court’s summary denial, “this Court must
accept the defendant’s allegations as true to the extent that they are
not conclusively refuted by the record.” Tompkins v. State, 994 So.
2d 1072, 1081 (Fla. 2008) (citing Rolling v. State, 944 So. 2d 176,
179 (Fla. 2006)). Still, “[tlhe defendant bears the burden to

establish a prima facie case based on a legally valid claim; mere

10. Huff v. State, 622 So. 2d 982 (Fla. 1993).
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conclusory allegations are insufficient.” Franqui v. State, 59 So. 3d
82, 96 (Fla. 2011) (citing Freeman v. State, 761 So. 2d 1055, 1061
(Fla. 2000)). A circuit court’s decision whether to grant an
evidentiary hearing on a rule 3.851 motion “is tantamount to a pure
question of law, subject to de novo review.” Marek v. State, 8 So. 3d
1123, 1127 (Fla. 2009) (citing State v. Coney, 845 So. 2d 120, 137
(Fla. 2003)).

Also relevant here, postconviction claims in capital cases must
generally be filed within one year after the judgment and sentence
become final. Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.851(d)(1). With certain exceptions,
rule 3.851 prohibits both untimely and repetitive claims. Fla. R.
Crim. P. 3.851(e)(2); see also Hendrix v. State, 136 So. 3d 1122,
1125 (Fla. 2014) (“Claims raised and rejected in prior postconviction
proceedings are procedurally barred from being relitigated in a
successive motion.” (citing Van Poyck v. State, 116 So. 3d 347, 362
(Fla. 2013))).

A

In his first argument on appeal, Wainwright argues that his

death sentence is unconstitutional under the Sixth Amendment in

light of Erlinger v. United States, 602 U.S. 821 (2024), because a

- Q-



judge instead of a jury made the findings necessary to impose
death. This is so, says Wainwright, because the prior violent felony
aggravator applied in his case required a finding of fact (1) of a prior
conviction and (2) that the prior crime involved the use or threat of
violence to the person.l! Wainwright argues that only a jury is
constitutionally permitted to determine whether the crime was one
that involved the use or threat of violence to the person. He says
that because a judge made that finding in his case, every
aggravating circumstance applied in his case requires at least one
factual finding that should have been made by a jury.

We agree with the circuit court that Wainwright’s claim is

procedurally barred. Wainwright has raised this exact claim before.

11. In contrast to the categorical approach utilized by federal
courts, Florida takes a fact-specific approach to determining
whether a previous conviction was for a violent felony. See, e.g.,
Spann v. State, 857 So. 2d 845, 855 (Fla. 2003) (“Whether a crime
constitutes a prior violent felony is determined by the surrounding
facts and circumstances of the prior crime.” (citing Gore v. State,
706 So. 2d 1328, 1333 (Fla. 1997))); Anderson v. State, 841 So. 2d
390, 407 (Fla. 2003) (holding that trial court did not err in
admitting testimony that demonstrated the defendant’s conviction
for attempted sexual battery was actually a completed sexual
battery), abrogation on other grounds recognized by Cruz v. State,
372 So. 3d 1237 (Fla. 2023).
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Wainwright’s habeas petition challenged Florida’s capital sentencing
scheme as unconstitutional under Ring v. Arizona, 536 U.S. 584
(2002), and Apprendi v. New Jersey, 530 U.S. 466 (2000).
Wainwright II, 896 So. 2d at 703-04. And in his sixth successive
motion for postconviction relief, Wainwright argued:

In this case, the court made the findings regarding the

fact of the prior conviction, as well as the additional

findings that the Defendant was serving a sentence of

imprisonment and that the prior felony was violent.
Thus, proof of more than the fact of a prior conviction

was required. . . . As a result, [the] sentence was
imposed in violation of the Sixth Amendment right to trial
by jury.

We rejected the claim based on Asay v. State, 210 So. 3d 1, 22 (Fla.
2016), a case in which we applied our state-specific retroactivity
test and concluded that Hurst v. Florida, 577 U.S. 92 (2016), does
not apply retroactively to sentences that became final before the
issuance of Ring. So, because Wainwright’s current claim has been

raised and rejected, it is procedurally barred.!2 See, e.g., Jackson v.

12. While we do not agree with the State that Erlinger
categorically never applies in the capital postconviction context, we
agree that Wainwright’s specific claim has been raised and rejected.
Wainwright’s argument is that a jury instead of a judge was
required to determine whether his prior felony conviction was, in
fact, violent. It was rejected because his sentence was final prior to
Ring, which encompasses any refinement of Apprendi protections
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State, 335 So. 3d 88, 89 n.2 (Fla. 2022) (concluding that a claim
was procedurally barred because a “prior successive postconviction
motion . . . raised essentially the same arguments” (citing Hendrix,
136 So. 3d at 1125)).

This does not end our analysis though because Wainwright
argues an exception to the procedural bar: that Erlinger constitutes
a new rule of law that should apply retroactively to his case. See
Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.851(d)(2)(B), (e)(2) (exempting from the one-year
time limitation motions alleging that “the fundamental
constitutional right asserted was not established within the period
provided for in subdivision (d)(1) and has been held to apply
retroactively”).

We reject Wainwright’s argument because even if Erlinger

constitutes a change of law, it does not apply retroactively.13 A

provided by Erlinger. As such, it is not a new claim simply because
Wainwright now relies on Erlinger instead of Hurst.

13. Although we conduct a state-law analysis, we conclude
that Erlinger also does not apply retroactively based on federal law.
In his dissenting opinion, Justice Kavanaugh observed that “[f|lor
any case that is already final, the Teague rule will presumably bar
the defendant from raising today’s new rule in collateral
proceedings.” 602 U.S. at 859 n.3 (Kavanaugh, J., dissenting)
(citing Edwards v. Vannoy, 593 U.S. 255, 258 (2021); Teague v.
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change in the law only applies retroactively to final cases if the
change (1) emanates from the Florida Supreme Court or the United
States Supreme Court, (2) is constitutional in nature, and (3)
constitutes a development of fundamental significance. Dettle v.
State, 395 So. 3d 1054, 1057-58 (Fla. 2024) (quoting Witt v. State,
387 So. 2d 922, 931 (Fla. 1980)). A change of law is of fundamental
significance when it (1) places beyond the authority of the state the
power to regulate certain conduct or impose certain penalties or

(2) is of sufficient magnitude to necessitate retroactive application
under the three-factor test in Linkletter v. Walker, 381 U.S. 618
(1965).14 Dettle, 395 So. 3d at 1058 (quoting Witt, 387 So. 2d at
929). “We have said this retroactivity analysis is supposed to
balance the justice system’s dual goals of fairness and finality.” Id.

(citing Witt, 387 So. 2d at 926). “And, we have said, we use it to

Lane, 489 U.S. 288, 310 (1989)). We agree. See also Stackhouse v.
United States, No. 8:15-cr-177-VMC-TGW, 2024 WL 5047342, at *8
(M.D. Fla. Dec. 9, 2024) (deciding Erlinger’s procedural rule does
not apply retroactively).

14. Those factors are (1) the purpose to be served by the new
rule, (2) the extent of reliance on the old rule, and (3) the effect
retroactive application would have on the administration of justice.
Dettle, 395 So. 3d at 1058 (quoting Witt, 387 So. 2d at 926).
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determine whether a new rule amounts to a jurisprudential
upheaval[]’ (to which we give retroactive effect), or whether it is more
like an ‘evolutionary refinement[] in the criminal law’ (to which we
do not).” Id. (alterations in original) (quoting Witt, 387 So. 2d at
929).

Erlinger is not a development of fundamental significance
under our existing retroactivity test. First, we reject Wainwright’s
argument that Erlinger places beyond the authority of the state the
power to impose the death penalty or other enhanced sentence on a
defendant who has not been found eligible for such penalty by a
jury of his peers. We have said cases that fall within that class
categorically limit the state’s ability to impose a sentence of death.
See, e.g., Phillips v. State, 299 So. 3d 1013, 1019 (Fla. 2020) (citing
Coker v. Georgia, 433 U.S. 584 (1977), as an example of a case that
placed beyond the authority of the state the power to impose the
death penalty, which held that the Eighth Amendment categorically
prohibits imposing the death penalty for the crime of rape of an
adult woman as cruel and unusual punishment). Erlinger does not

place beyond the authority of the state the power to impose a
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certain penalty because it, at most, merely altered the manner of
determining a defendant’s culpability.

Second, Erlinger does not satisfy the Linkletter test. Indeed, in
State v. Johnson, 122 So. 3d 856 (Fla. 2013), we concluded
application of the Linkletter test to a materially identical precedent
failed to justify retroactive application. Id. at 861-66. At issue
there was whether an Apprendi progeny case, Blakely v.
Washington, 542 U.S. 296 (2004), applied retroactively. Johnson,
122 So. 3d at 861. Applying Apprendi, Blakely held that a fact that
increases the sentencing range had to be found by the jury.
Blakely, 542 U.S. at 303-04. We concluded that decision, like
Apprendi itself, was a new rule that was nonretroactive under the
three-part Linkletter test. Johnson, 122 So. 3d at 861-66
(explaining why the purpose of the new rule in Blakely did not
support retroactivity, that Florida had significantly relied on the old
rule, and why applying Blakely retroactively would have an adverse
impact on the administration of justice). We reached the same
result in Hughes v. State, 901 So. 2d 837, 846 (Fla. 2005) (rejecting
argument that Apprendi applied retroactively based on analysis of

the Stovall v. Denno, 388 U.S. 293 (1967)/ Linkletter factors).
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Guided by our analysis in Johnson and Hughes, we conclude
Linkletter’s first factor weighs against retroactive application of
Erlinger. Retroactive application is generally favored when it
furthers the new rule’s purpose. See Williams v. State, 421 So. 2d
512, 515 (Fla. 1982). But we have declined to give retroactive effect
to new procedural rules unless their absence would “cast serious
doubt on the veracity or integrity of the original trial proceeding.”
Witt, 387 So. 2d at 929; see, e.g., Williams, 421 So. 2d at 515
(refusing to apply a rule in part because it “would not enhance the
reliability of the fact-finding process [and] . . . has no bearing on
guilt and did not involve an attack on the fairness of the trial”);
Chandler v. Crosby, 916 So. 2d 728, 730 (Fla. 2005) (“This rationale
for the new rule weighs against its retroactive application because
the rule’s purpose is not to improve the accuracy of trials or even to
improve the reliability of evidence.”).

The purpose of any new rule announced by Erlinger does not
demand retroactive application. Like Blakely, the purpose of
Erlinger is to conform criminal procedure to the Sixth Amendment’s
guarantee. It properly allocates decision-making rather than

increasing the fairness or accuracy of convictions. See Schriro v.
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Summerlin, 542 U.S. 348, 353 (2004) (concluding that judicial
factfinding did not so seriously diminish accuracy such that there
was an impermissibly large risk of punishing conduct the law did
not reach). For that reason, it does not fall into the type of
significant procedural changes this Court has determined justify
retroactive application.

As to the second and third prongs of the Linkletter test, our
analysis in Hughes and Johnson applies equally here. Johnson, 122
So. 3d at 865 (citing Hughes and concluding second prong of
Linkletter test weighed against retroactivity because Florida had
relied on trial courts in sentencing for a significant period); Hughes,
901 So. 2d at 845 (repeating district court’s observation that
retroactive application of Apprendi would have a far-reaching
adverse impact on the administration of justice and concluding
third prong of Linkletter test did not warrant retroactive
application). We again conclude that consideration of Linkletter’s
second and third prongs counsels against retroactive application of
Erlinger.

In sum, Wainwright’s claim is procedurally barred because the

substance of his claim, whether a judge rather than a jury must
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find that his prior felony conviction was violent, has been raised
and rejected. And even if Erlinger announced a new rule that might
serve as a vehicle for Wainwright to overcome this procedural bar,
Erlinger does not apply retroactively. As a result, we affirm the
circuit court’s order denying Wainwright’s claim.

B

In his second argument on appeal, Wainwright asserts that
the circuit court erred in denying his claim based on allegedly newly
discovered evidence of the effect his father’s exposure to toxins
during the Vietnam War had on Wainwright. Wainwright argues
that evidence has accumulated showing that he has long suffered
from neurobehavioral deficits, but a causative explanation for these
deficits was missing.

Because Wainwright is seeking to vacate his death sentence
based on allegations of newly discovered evidence, he must
establish “(1) that the newly discovered evidence was unknown by
the trial court, by the party, or by counsel at the time of trial and it
could not have been discovered through due diligence, and (2) that
the evidence is of such a nature that it would probably . . . yield a

less severe sentence on retrial.” Dillbeck v. State, 357 So. 3d 94,
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100 (Fla. 2023) (omission in original) (quoting Dailey v. State, 329
So. 3d 1280, 1285 (Fla. 2021)). Additionally, for a claim relying on
newly discovered evidence to be considered timely, the successive
rule 3.851 motion must be filed within one year of the date on
which the claim became discoverable through due diligence.
Dillbeck v. State, 304 So. 3d 286, 288 (Fla. 2020) (quoting Jimenez
v. State, 997 So. 2d 1056, 1064 (Fla. 2008)); see also Fla. R. Crim.
P. 3.851(¢)(2) (allowing the trial court to dismiss a successive
postconviction motion “if the trial court finds the claim fails to meet
the time limitation exceptions set forth in subdivision (d)(2)(A),
(d)(2)(B), or (d)(2)(C)”). We have explained that “the circuit court is
authorized to summarily deny a newly-discovered-evidence claim if
the motion, files, and record refute the allegations pertaining to
either (or both) prongs of the Jones [v. State, 709 So. 2d 512 (Fla.
1998)] test.” Rogers v. State, 327 So. 3d 784, 787 (Fla. 2021).

Here we agree with the circuit court that the information that
Wainwright relies on is not newly discovered evidence.
Wainwright’s newly discovered evidence claim is based on two
expert reports prepared specifically for this case. But those reports

are based on preexisting studies dating years back. For example,
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the report cites studies from 1996 and 2001 and relies in large part
on a study from 2023. And while the report points to shortcomings
in the investigation of the effects of toxins on the children of
Vietnam veterans, it does not suggest the information was
unavailable. Under our precedent this report is insufficient to
support a newly discovered evidence claim. Sliney v. State, 362 So.
3d 186, 189 (Fla.) (concluding a claim of newly discovered evidence
based on the publication of a new manual in 2021 was untimely,
explaining that, while a new manual might provide more support for
the claim, the underlying scientific facts were available before
2021), cert. denied, 144 S. Ct. 501 (2023); Barwick v. State, 361 So.
3d 785, 793 (Fla. 2023) (recent report based on compilation of
studies relying on previously available data did not constitute newly
discovered evidence).

Similarly, we reject Wainwright’s argument that he had no
reason to pursue a claim regarding the effect of Agent Orange
exposure until he became aware that his father may have been
exposed to it in the first place. See Rogers, 327 So. 3d at 788

(denying a newly discovered evidence claim where the defendant
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“alleged that three of his brothers had knowledge” of the allegedly
new evidence).

We also agree with the circuit court that the alleged evidence
would not be material. First, while Wainwright says he was
unaware of the cause of his cognitive and neurobehavioral
impairments, his intellectual, behavioral, and psychological issues
have been an issue throughout the postconviction proceedings.15
Thus, it is unlikely that one additional cause to explain this set of
behaviors would result in a life sentence. See, e.g., Hutchinson v.
State, No. SC2025-0497, 2025 WL 1155717, at *3 (Fla. Apr. 21,
2025) (concluding that additional mitigation concerning brain injury
and cognitive issues would only have a marginal effect at a new
penalty phase where trial court had heard evidence of cognitive and
mental health issues), cert. denied, No. 24-7079, 2025 WL 1261215

(U.S. May 1, 2025).

15. See, e.g., Wainwright II, 896 So. 2d at 697 n.1 (initial
postconviction motion alleged that trial counsel was ineffective for
failing to ensure that Wainwright received adequate mental health
evaluations); Wainwright v. State, 43 So. 3d at 45 (second
successive postconviction motion alleged that newly discovered
evidence showed that Wainwright’s mental age at the time of the
murder was below eighteen years).
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Likewise, Wainwright’s case involved six statutory aggravators.
This Court has described the heinous, atrocious, or cruel; cold,
calculated, and premeditated; and prior violent felony aggravators
as “three of the most serious and weighty aggravators in the capital
sentencing scheme.” Craft v. State, 312 So. 3d 45, 56 (Fla. 2020)
(citing Bush v. State, 295 So. 3d 179, 215 (Fla. 2020)). Given the
heavy aggravation and limited mitigation, the alleged new evidence
would not probably result in a life sentence, especially here where
the trial court indicated the mitigating circumstances were
outweighed by any single aggravating circumstance. See Dillbeck,
357 So. 3d at 102 (concluding that the defendant could not
demonstrate the probability of a lesser sentence in light of weighty
aggravation). We therefore affirm the circuit court’s denial of

Wainwright’s second claim.16

16. To the extent Wainwright argues this additional
information makes his sentence unconstitutional under the Eighth
Amendment to the United States Constitution, we reject the claim.
The argument is inadequately briefed and without merit. See, e.g.,
Hutchinson v. State, 50 Fla. L. Weekly S71, 2025 WL 1198037 (Fla.
Apr. 25, 2025), cert. denied, No. 24-7087, 2025 WL 1261217 (U.S.
May 1, 2025).
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Lastly, Wainwright argues that the postconviction court erred
by denying a claim of newly discovered evidence of a violation of
Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963), for not disclosing that a
State’s witness, Robert Allen Murphy, expected a benefit from his
testimony. Wainwright has not established that the postconviction
court erred in denying this claim.

Wainwright’s Brady claim is based on a May 13, 2025,
affidavit by Robert Murphy, who was housed with Wainwright at
Taylor County Jail and later testified at Wainwright’s trial. The
affidavit alleges that Murphy spoke with another inmate who told
Murphy that he was receiving a benefit from the State for testifying
against Wainwright. This led Murphy to ask the State if he could
also receive a benefit in exchange for his testimony. The affidavit
recounts that the prosecutor “said that he could not make me a
promise but the way he said it made it clear to me that I would get
a benefit if I testified.” The affidavit also explains how Murphy
received a modified sentence following his testimony against
Wainwright. Wainwright does not claim that Murphy received a

promise from the State, only that Murphy had a “clear
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understanding and expectation on his part that he would get a
benefit.”

We agree with the circuit court that Wainwright failed to
exercise reasonable diligence in pursuing this claim. Freeman, 761
So. 2d at 1062 (“[T)here is no Brady violation where the information
is equally accessible to the defense and the prosecution, or where
the defense either had the information or could have obtained it
through the exercise of reasonable diligence.” (quoting Provenzano
v. State, 616 So. 2d 428, 430 (Fla. 1993))). As the circuit court
determined, it was clear from the trial testimony that Murphy had a
motion for modification of sentence pending at the time of
Wainwright’s trial. And it was a matter of public record that
Murphy was released on probation shortly after his testimony.
Murphy’s recent affidavit was not necessary to pursue this claim.
So as the circuit court observed, his recent affidavit really adds
“nothing” to this claim. All of the information necessary for this
claim to be raised was readily available to postconviction counsel
decades ago. See id. at 1062-63 (finding no Brady violation when

defense counsel could have discovered the details of a witness
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statement through reasonable diligence, such as by deposition or
another discovery method).

Even if this claim was reasonably pursued though, the
evidence presented by Wainwright is insufficient to establish a
claim.!” To establish a Brady violation, Wainwright must also
demonstrate that “(1) the evidence was either exculpatory or
impeaching; (2) the evidence was willfully or inadvertently
suppressed by the State; and (3) because the evidence was material,
the defendant was prejudiced.” Sheppard v. State, 338 So. 3d 803,
827 (Fla. 2022) (quoting Duckett v. State, 231 So. 3d 393, 400 (Fla.
2017)). “To establish materiality or prejudice under Brady, the
defendant ‘must demonstrate . . . a reasonable probability that the
jury verdict would have been different had the suppressed
information been used at trial.”” Id. (omission in original) (quoting
Smith v. State, 931 So. 2d 790, 796 (Fla. 2006)). “Reasonable

probability” means “a probability sufficient to undermine confidence

17. We review the postconviction court’s legal conclusions on
a Brady claim de novo. Sheppard v. State, 338 So. 3d 803, 827-28
(Fla. 2022) (citing Duckett v. State, 231 So. 3d 393, 400 (Fla. 2017)).
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in the outcome.” Guzman v. State, 868 So. 2d 498, 506 (Fla. 2003)
(quoting United States v. Bagley, 473 U.S. 667, 682 (1985)).

We agree with the postconviction court that the Brady claim
fails because the allegations are insufficient to establish that the
State suppressed evidence. See Stein v. State, 406 So. 3d 171, 175
(Fla. 2024) (holding allegation that a witness expected a deal with
the State in exchange for testifying at trial was insufficient to
establish Brady claim where defendant did not allege specific facts
showing that the State knew about or suppressed information
relating to the witness’s expectations), reh’g denied, 2025 WL
855671 (Fla. Mar. 19, 2025); Sheppard, 338 So. 3d at 828
(defendant did not demonstrate the State willfully or inadvertently
suppressed favorable evidence as necessary to prevail under Brady
where evidence did not establish that the witness entered into a
specific deal with the State in exchange for his testimony); Davis v.
State, 928 So. 2d 1089, 1115-16 (Fla. 2005) (evidence was
insufficient to establish Brady violation where the witness had the
hope that the State would assist him in his effort to secure his gain
time, but there was no evidence that a deal was in fact made or a

promise conclusively extended).
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We also agree with the postconviction court that the alleged
evidence would not be material. In addition to Murphy’s testimony,
there was other significant evidence introduced against Wainwright.
See Wainwright I, 704 So. 2d at 515; Wainwright II, 896 So. 2d at
700. The alleged evidence of Murphy’s expectation of a benefit for
his testimony would not undermine confidence in the outcome.!8
We affirm the postconviction court’s decision to deny this claim.

II1

For the reasons stated, we affirm the postconviction court’s
order summarily denying Wainwright’s amended eighth successive
motion for postconviction relief. As a result, we deny his motion for
stay of execution. See Dillbeck, 357 So. 3d at 103 (“[A] stay of
execution on a successive motion for postconviction relief is
warranted only where there are substantial grounds upon which
relief might be granted.” (quoting Davis v. State, 142 So. 3d 867,

873-74 (Fla. 2014))).

18. For these reasons the affidavit also does not constitute
newly discovered evidence. Wainwright does not show that there is
evidence that was not previously available. The alleged new
evidence also would not probably lead to a life sentence.
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No motion for rehearing will be considered by this Court. The
mandate shall issue immediately.

It is so ordered.

MUNIZ, C.J., and CANADY, LABARGA, COURIEL, GROSSHANS,
FRANCIS, and SASSO, JJ., concur.
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

IN AND FOR HAMILTON COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA CASE NO.: 1994-150-CF

VS.

ANTHONY FLOYD WAINWRIGHT,

Defendant.

ORDER SUMMARILY DENYING AMENDED EIGHTH

SUCCESSIVE MOTION FOR POSTCONVICTION RELIEF

THIS CAUSE came before the Court on the Defendant’s “Amended Eighth Successive
Motion for Postconviction Relief,” filed May 15, 2025, and the State’s response thereto, filed May
16, 2025. Upon consideration of the pleadings, the record, and applicable law, the motion is

DENIED for the reasons expressed below.

Procedural History

On May 30, 1995, the Defendant was found guilty by a jury of first-degree murder, armed
robbery, armed kidnapping, and armed sexual battery and, on June 1, 1995, he was sentenced to
death. His conviction and sentence were affirmed on appeal. See Wainwright v. State, 704 So. 2d
511 (Fla. 1997), cert. denied, Wainwright v. Florida, 523 U.S. 1127 (1998). The State filed a

document titled Facts of the Crime and Procedural History to the Court on May 12, 2025. Counsel
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for Defendant stipulated to the facts and history provided therein. The State’s Facts of the Crime

and Procedural History is therefore adopted and incorporated by reference into this final order.

On May 9, 2025, Governor DeSantis signed a death warrant, scheduling the execution for
June 10, 2025. On the same day, the Florida Supreme Court issued an order directing that all
proceedings in the circuit court be completed and the final order entered by the lower court by
Tuesday, May 20, 2025, at noon. Wainwright v. State, 1960-86022. This Court issued its
Scheduling Order on May 12, 2025, establishing deadlines for the progression of the case to
include the timing of any further record demands, objections thereto, Defendant’s successive
petition, the State’s reply, the Huff hearing, and the tentative evidentiary hearing. Counsel for
Defendant advised the Court and the parties that he would not be seeking additional public records

and the hearing on record production was canceled.

Counsel for Defendant, Baya Harrison III, timely filed Defendant’s Eighth Successive
Motion for Postconviction Relief on May 14, 2025. However, a competing and unauthorized
Eighth Successive Motion for Postconviction Relief was filed, along with a Motion for
Substitution of Counsel, by “proposed Pro Bono counsel” for Defendant, Ms. Terri Backhus.
Upon the State’s motion for an emergency case management hearing and motion to strike Ms.
Backhus’ unauthorized petition and motion for substitution, the Court conducted a hearing on
Thursday, May 15, 2025. As documented in the Court’s orders on the hearing, Ms. Backhus was
permitted to appear in the case as second chair. Additionally, the Court granted the State’s motion
to strike the unauthorized pleading. Counsel was afforded an opportunity and additional time to

amend the Eighth Successive Petition, limited to the claims previously raised in each of the prior
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documents, and subject to Mr. Harrison’s final approval as lead counsel. The Amended Eighth

Successive Petition was filed timely, and the State timely filed its Answer on May 16, 2025.!

A case management conference/Huff hearing was conducted on May 16, 2025, whereupon
this Court heard arguments on the three claims, as referenced in the Court’s Order Following a
Huff Hearing, Concluding an Evidentiary Hearing is not Required, entered that same date. At the
hearing, the first claim (Erlinger/Apprendi claim) was argued by Mr. Harrison, who had previously
advised that the claim was a legal argument, resolvable upon the pleadings and oral argument with
no evidentiary hearing necessary. The remaining claims were presented and argued by Ms.
Backhus. After considering the arguments presented by counsel, this Court determined that an
evidentiary hearing would not be necessary to address the three claims raised in the amended
petition. Upon announcement of the ruling, Ms. Backhus asked to proffer the unauthorized petition
that had been previously stricken by order of this Court for the purpose of having the pleading
included in the official record. Huff Hearing, May 15, 2025, at p. 28. This Court advised that the
pleading had been stricken and would not be part of the record. Huff Hearing, May 15, 2025, at p.
30. The claims contained within the Amended Eighth Successive Petition are addressed as

follows.

Legal Standard

Motions seeking to collaterally attack a death sentence must be filed within one year of

the date the conviction and sentence become final. See Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.851(d)(1); see also e.g.,

! The amended petition contained essentially all three claims raised by Mr. Harrison and Ms.
Backhus, along with the exhibits not contained in the initial unauthorized petition but provided to
the Court during the hearing by Ms. Backhus after the 11:00 a.m. filing deadline had passed.

The substantive claims raised in the unauthorized petition were incorporated into the amended
petition. Accordingly, no prejudice to Defendant can be demonstrated.

3
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Rogers v. State, 2025 WL 1341642, at *3 (Fla. May 8, 2025), cert. denied sub nom. Rogers v. Fla.,
2025 WL 1387828 (U.S. May 14, 2025). There is an exception to the one-year limitation when
“the facts on which the claim is predicated were unknown to the movant or the movant’s attorney
and could not have been ascertained by the exercise of due diligence.” See e.g., Rogers, 2025 WL

1341642, at *3 (citing Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.851(d)(2)(A)).

The Defendant’s conviction and sentence became final on May 18, 1998. See Wainwright,
523 U.S. at 1127; Dillbeck v. State, 304 So. 3d 286, 287 (Fla. 2020) (citing Fla. R. Crim. P.
3.851(d)(1)(B) (“a judgment is final ... on the disposition of the petition for writ of certiorari by
the United States Supreme Court, if filed.”)). Thus, the one-year deadline for the Defendant to
collaterally attack his death sentence was May 18, 1999. The instant motion was filed twenty-six
years after the Defendant’s conviction and death sentence became final. Thus, the motion is
untimely unless the Defendant can establish an exception articulated in Florida Rule of Criminal
Procedure 3.851(d)(2)(A)-(C). Additionally, because this is the Defendant’s amended eighth
successive motion, he must establish “the reason or reasons the claim or claims raised in the present

motion were not raised in the former motion or motions.” Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.851(e)(2)(B).

A postconviction court should summarily deny any postconviction claim that is
conclusively rebutted by the existing record. Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.851(f)(5)(B). A postconviction
court should also summarily deny any claim that is legally insufficient because it is meritless as a
matter of law. Hutchinson v. State, 2025 WL 1198037, at *3 (Fla. Apr. 25, 2025) (noting, in an
active warrant case, the Florida Supreme Court affirms the summary denial of successive
postconviction claims where the claims are untimely, procedurally barred, legally insufficient, or

refuted by the record), cert. denied, Hutchinson v. Florida, 2025 WL 1261217 (U.S. May 1, 2025)
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(No. 24-7087); Zack v. State, 371 So0.3d 335, 338 (Fla. 2023) (affirming the postconviction court
summarily denying the claims as “untimely, procedurally barred, and meritless”), cert. denied,

Zackv. Florida, 144 S.Ct. 274 (2023).

The Defendant’s Allegations — Ground One

Essentially, the Defendant alleges that, based on the recent decision in Erlinger v. United
States, 602 U.S. 821 (2024), his death sentence violates his Sixth Amendment right to a trial by
jury. He avers that, pursuant to Erlinger, a jury must determine the existence of a prior conviction
to enhance a sentence. He contends that, in his case, the trial court made the finding that he had a

prior violent felony and used that finding as an aggravating factor to impose the death sentence.

He asserts that he consistently, timely challenged his sentence on Sixth Amendment right
to a trial by jury grounds as case law has evolved, but his claims were denied because he had a
prior violent felony conviction, which, under Ring” and Apprendi,’ was a factor not required to be
found by a jury. He contends that, because Erlinger requires a jury to determine the existence of a
prior conviction to enhance a sentence, which he avers did not occur in his case, Erlinger should

be retroactively applied, his death sentence should be vacated, and he should be resentenced.

Discussion — Ground One

This Court finds that Defendant’s claims raised in his first ground for relief should be
denied because they are procedurally barred, untimely and do not ultimately succeed on a review
of the merits. First, because the Defendant’s Erlinger claim is a “repackaged version” of his prior

Sixth Amendment right to a jury trial claims previously rejected, the Defendant’s claim is

2 Ring v. Arizona, 536 U.S. 584 (2002).
3 Apprendi v. New Jersey, 530 U.S. 466, (2000).
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procedurally barred. See Ford v. State, 402 So0.3d 973, 981 (Fla. 2025) (concluding that an Erlinger
claim was procedurally barred because a right-to-a-jury trial claim was raised in prior successive
postconviction motions); Jackson v. State, 335 So.3d 88, 89, n.2 (Fla. 2022) (finding a similar
claim to be procedurally barred because it was raised in a prior successive postconviction motion).
Claims that are simply a variation on previously raised claims are procedurally barred. Rogers v.
State, 2025 WL 1341642, at *6 (Fla. May &, 2025) (concluding the current claim was a “variation”
of a prior claim and “is procedurally barred for that reason.”), cert. denied, Rogers v. Florida, 2025
WL 1387828 (U.S. May 14, 2025).

Defendant previously raised a Sixth Amendment right-to-a-jury claim regarding his death
sentence in his counseled sixth successive postconviction motion. The Florida Supreme Court
affirmed the summary denial of the right-to-a-jury claim, concluding that Hurst v. State, 202 So.3d
40 (Fla. 2016), did not apply retroactively to him. Wainwright v. State, 2017 WL 394509, *3 (Fla.
Jan. 30, 2017) (No. SC15-2280) (citing Asay v. State, 210 So. 3d 1, 22 (Fla. 2016)). The Erlinger
claim presented in Defendant’s Amended Eight Successive Petition is simply a variation of
Wainwright’s prior Hurst claim. And for that reason, the Erflinger claim is procedurally barred.

Regarding the retroactivity of Erlinger and timeliness of Defendant’s claim, in his
amended petition Defendant argues that “Erlinger’s holding that the prior record exception to the
jury trial right does not extend to all factual findings in a recidivist statute invalidates several
Florida decisions, including those that supported the denial of [Defendant’s] prior Sixth
Amendment claims.” Amended Petition at pg. 15, 9 35. It is now evident that the Florida
Supreme Court has determined that Erlinger does not apply to capital cases such as Defendant
Wainwright’s; Erlinger does not apply retroactively to collateral postconviction cases. See Ford

v. State, 402 So. 3d 973, 980-81 (Fla. 2025) (holding, in active death warrant case, that Erlinger

6
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did not apply; noting Erlinger was a direct-appeal case, not a postconviction case, and involved
required jury findings regarding an element); Tanzi v. State, 2025 WL 971568, at *5-6 (Fla. Apr.
1, 2025) (holding, in active death warrant case, that Erlinger did not apply; noting Erlinger was a
direct-appeal involving required jury findings as to an element; rejecting “repackaged versions”
of Apprendi, Ring, and Hurst’ arguments previously rejected) (citing Ford, 402 So. 3d 980-81).

Erlinger and the line of cases that Erlinger followed involved "enhanced sentences," or
sentences that exceed th.e maximum penalty authorized or that increase the minimum penalty
allowed. To the contrary, the sentence of death for a person who is convicted of a capital felony
is not an "enhanced sentence" in the same manner in which a sentence under the ACCA 1is an
enhanced sentence. Under §775.082(1), Fla. Stat. (1993), death was, in fact, already the
maximum penalty authorized:

A person who has been convicted of a capital felony shall be punished by life

imprisonment and shall be required to serve no less than 25 years before

becoming eligible for parole unless the proceeding held to determine sentence

according to the procedure set forth in s. 921.141 results in findings by the

court that such person shall be punished by death, and in the latter event such

person shall be punished by death.
This is true whether applying the current version of §775.082(1) or the version in effect at the
time Defendant committed the offenses of capital murder.

McKinney v. Arizona, 589 U.S. 139 (2020), and State v. Poole, 297 So. 3d 487, 507 (Fla.
2020) explicitly hold which facts must be found by the jury to impose a death sentence. They are
both capital-specific holdings, unlike Erlinger. Both the nation’s highest court and Florida’s

highest court have held that one aggravating factor must be found by the jury beyond a

reasonable doubt under the Sixth Amendment to sentence a defendant to death. McKinney v.

4 Hurst v. State, 202 So0.3d 40 (Fla. 2016).
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Arizona, 589 U.S. 139, 144 (2020) (“a jury must find the aggravating circumstance that makes
the defendant death eligible” but a jury “is not constitutionally required to weigh the aggravating
and mitigating circumstances or to make the ultimate sentencing decision”); State v. Poole, 297
So0.3d 487, 507 (Fla. 2020) (a jury must “unanimously to find the existence of a statutory
aggravating circumstance beyond a reasonable doubt.”).

This case presents similarly to the sentence addressed recently by the Florida Supreme
Court in Ford v. State, 402 So.3d 973 (Fla. 2025). The jury, in Ford, found him guilty of sexual
battery with a firearm, aggravated child abuse, and two counts of first-degree murder, and
recommended death for each murder by a vote of eleven to one. /d at 976. In the case at bar, a
jury convicted Defendant Wainwright of the contemporaneous first-degree murder, robbery
while armed with a firearm, kidnapping while armed with a firearm, and sexual battery while
armed with a firearm at the guilt phase, and further recommended death for the murder by a vote
of twelve to zero. See Verdict Form, Transcript of Guilt Phase Jury Instructions, and Advisory
Sentence Form (Penalty Phase), attached hereto.” The court in Ford found that by convicting
Ford of the “contemporaneous murder and sexual battery with a firearm at the guilt phase, the
jury found beyond a reasonable doubt the aggravator that “[t]he defendant was previously
convicted of another capital felony or of a felony involving the use or threat of violence to the
person,” § 921.141(5)(b), Fla. Stat.” Id at 981. Accordingly, as argued by the State, Wainwright
became eligible for a death sentence upon the jury’s unanimous verdict finding him guilty on the

three felonies in addition to first degree murder at the guilt phase.

> The sentencing judge instructed the jury that there are two ways in which a person may be convicted of First
Degree Murder. One is known as premeditated murder and the other is known as felony murder — the jury was
instructed on both. See Transcript at pp. 1973-1975.
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The Florida Supreme Court’s recent opinion in Tanzi further confirms that Erlinger (and
by extension, the Fourth DCA’s opinion in Jackson®) is not applicable to capital cases. The
Tanzi opinion rejected the argument that even unanimous jury recommendations are void
because they cannot substantively limit executive and judicial power. Tanzi v. State, No.
SC2025-0371, 2025 WL 971568, at *5-*6 (Fla. Apr. 1, 2025), cert. denied sub nom. Tanzi v.
Dixon, No. 24-6932, 2025 WL 1037494 (U.S. Apr. 8, 2025). Tanzi reaffirmed the holding in
Poole that

our state constitution's prohibition on cruel and unusual punishment, article I,

section 17, does not require a unanimous jury recommendation—or any jury

recommendation—before a death sentence can be imposed.... Binding Supreme

Court precedent in Spaziano holds that the Eighth Amendment does not require

a jury's favorable recommendation before a death penalty can be imposed.

Tanzi v. State, 2025 WL 971568, at *6. This Court therefore finds that Defendant’s Erlinger

claim lacks merit because, as explained in Ford and in Tanzi, Erlinger is inapplicable here.

The Defendant’s Allegations — Ground Two

The Defendant asserts newly discovered evidence establishes his execution would violate
the Eighth Amendment, and that he would probably receive a life sentence in a new penalty phase.
He avers that, since trial, “evidence has accumulated showing that the defendant has long suffered
from post-traumatic stress, learning disabilities, and a neurocognitive disorder, but a causative
explanation for these global deficits was missing.” Amended Eighth Successive Motion for
Postconviction Relief, p. 20, numbered paragraph 47. He avers recent evidence establishes the

cause of these deficits was his father’s exposure to Agent Orange while serving in the military;

6 Jackson v. State, 2025 WL 1119094 (Fla. 4th DCA April 16, 2025).



State of Florida v. Anthony Floyd Wainwright

Order Summarily Denying Amended Eighth Successive Motion for Postconviction Relief
Case No.: 1994-150-CF

Melissa G. Olin, Circuit Judge

that newly discovered evidence shows this toxic exposure was passed on to the Defendant at
conception; and, there is a causal link between this exposure and the numerous neurocognitive and
developmental deficits that directly affected his criminal behavior.

In support of this assertion, he provides the report of Dr. Victoria Cassano, dated May 14,
2025%, which references various studies; and a report of Private Investigator David Ferrier, dated
May 13, 2025, providing the military history and background of the Defendant’s father, and his
likely exposure to Agent Orange. He asserts Dr. Cassano, Investigator Ferrier, and the Defendant’s
sister, Krista Wainwright, are available to testify regarding this causal link. He seeks to have his

death sentence vacated and present this allegedly new mitigation evidence to a jury at resentencing.

Discussion — Ground Two

Regardless of any causation now alleged, Defendant acknowledges that his cognitive
deficits and mental health issues have been apparent since childhood. Defendant previously raised
a similar claim regarding cognitive deficits in his pro se Successive Motion for Postconviction
Relief, filed May 26, 2009. Specifically, the Defendant, pro se, alleged newly available
neuropsychological evidence showed his mental age at the time he committed the capital offense
was below eighteen years due to organic brain damage and/or mental retardation. His motion was
denied. His appeal of the denial was affirmed. See Wainwright v. State, 43 So. 3d 45 (Fla. 2010).
Thus, the instant claim is procedurally barred. See Jackson v. State, 335 So. 3d 88, 89-90, n.2 (Fla.

2022) (finding claim procedurally barred because essentially same claim was raised in prior

¥ On the face of the documents, it appears that the physician’s report (“Attachment B”") was
based, in part, upon a review of Defendant’s medical records from 1975 to 2019 and was
provided to the Office of the Federal Public Defender on May 14, 2025.

10
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successive postconviction motion) (citing Hendrix v. State, 136 So. 3d 1122, 1125 (Fla. 2014)
(“Claims raised and rejected in prior postconviction proceedings are procedurally barred from
being relitigated in a successive motion.”); Rogers, 2025 WL 1341642, at *6 (holding claims that
are a variation on previously-raised claims are procedurally barred).

On the merits, to set aside a death sentence on the basis of newly discovered evidence of
mitigation, a capital defendant must establish (1) the evidence was unknown by the trial court, the
party, or counsel at the time of trial, and that defendant or his counsel could not have known of it
by the use of diligence; and (2) the new evidence must be of such nature that it would probably
result in a life sentence at a new penalty phase. See Damren v. State, 397 So. 3d 607, 610 (Fla.
2023). The phrase “would probably” produce a life sentence means a “preponderance of the
evidence” or “more likely than not,” and requires a showing of “greater than fifty percent.” See id.
at 611 (citations omitted). The Defendant must establish both prongs. See id. at 610 (citing
Hutchinson v. State, 343 So.3d 50, 53 (Fla. 2022)).

Here, the Defendant acknowledges he “has long suffered from post-traumatic stress,
learning disabilities, and a neurocognitive disorder” but did not know their cause.” The record
supports the Defendant’s assertion and contains several psychological evaluations. Psychological
Evaluations included in Record on Appeal in Florida Supreme Court case no.: SC02-1342. As
early as November 14, 1986, he was diagnosed with “conduct disorder,” “undersocialized,”
“aggressive,” “verbal learning disability,” and “rule out bipolar affective disorder, depressed type.”

Cumberland Hospital Psychological Evaluation, November 14, 1986. Thus, at the time of trial, the

? Defendant does not raise an intellectual disability claim under section 921.137, Florida Statutes.

11
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Defendant and defense counsel knew, or could have learned through use of due diligence, of the
Defendant’s “post-traumatic stress, learning disabilities, and a neurocognitive disorder.”

That the Defendant and defense counsel are only now learning the cause of these conditions
does not constitute newly discovered evidence. See Hutchinson v. State, 2025 WL 1155717, at *2
(Fla. Apr. 21, 2025) (holding “traumatic brain damage, neurocognitive impairment, and PTSD,
regardless of their specific causation, are not new diagnosable conditions” where defendant knew
his symptoms at or before trial); Rogers, 2025 WL 1341642 at *5-6 (rejecting claim that, “based
on new evidence from the Florida Legislature reflecting the conscience of Florida’s citizens in
protecting children from the manner of abuse that [defendant] suffered as a child”” defendant would
likely receive a life sentence) (citing Cole v. State, 392 So. 3d 1054, 1061-62 (Fla. 2024) (rejecting
proposition that new articles and scholarship constitute newly discovered evidence; noting court
has “routinely held that resolutions, consensus opinions, articles, research, and the like do not
satisfy the [newly discovered evidence] standard”) (citing Barwick v. State, 361 So. 3d 785, 793
(Fla. 2023) (holding American Psychological Association resolution did not constitute newly
discovered evidence); Melton v. State, 367 So. 3d 1175, 1177 (Fla. 2023) (“new opinions or
research studies based on a compilation or analysis of previously existing data and scientific
information are not generally considered newly discovered evidence™) (quoting Dillbeck v. State,
357 So. 3d 94, 99 (Fla. 2023) (citations omitted) and (citing Foster v. State, 132 So. 3d 40, 72 (Fla.
2013) (“[N]ew research studies are not recognized as newly discovered evidence.”). If every new
study or publication could be invoked to restart the clock for filing a timely successive rule 3.851
motion it “would be at odds with the finality interests served by the rule.” Sliney v. Florida, 362
So.3d 186, 189 (Fla. 2023). Thus, the Defendant cannot meet the first prong necessary to establish

a claim of newly discovered evidence.

12
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The record in this case demonstrates that, along with the knowledge of the potential for
mitigation offered by introducing Defendant’s cognitive and mental health issues, there was an
abandonment of that mitigation midway through its introduction at the penalty phase. Evidentiary
Hearing, Jan. 23, 2002, 102-104. Defendant directed his counsel to cease further questioning of
his mother during mitigation testimony. Id. at p. 104. There was also a strategic decision not to
introduce mental health information because Defendant’s counsel believed that the benefits of its
introduction would not necessarily have outweighed the potential negative impacts of information
that would have likely been disclosed. Id. at pp. 117-126. In recalling the defense strategy
regarding the introduction of cognitive and mental health mitigation through witnesses other than
Defendant’s mother, Defendant’s counsel recounted, “the consensus was we would do more harm
than good.” Id. at p. 121. Alleging a newly discovered causation of his well-documented
difficulties cannot now allow Defendant to undo strategic defense decisions made long ago and at
his own direction.

Nor would new mitigation evidence of cognitive deficits caused by the Defendant’s
father’s exposure to Agent Orange before the Defendant’s conception likely result in a life sentence
at a new penalty phase. Six aggravators were found in this case, including the prior violent felony
aggravator; the especially heinous, atrocious or cruel (HAC) aggravator; and the cold, calculated,
and premeditated (CCP) aggravator. See Wainwright v. State, 704 So. 2d 511, 512, n.2 (Fla. 1997)
(listing aggravators found). As noted by the State, these aggravators are considered the most
serious of aggravators individually, but here, all three are present. See Wood v. State, 209 So. 3d
1217, 1228 (Fla. 2017) (stating CCP aggravator “is among the most serious aggravators set out in
the statutory sentencing scheme”) (citations omitted); Craft v. State, 312 So. 3d 45, 56 (Fla. 2020)

(finding aggravation “substantial” because it included the “HAC, CCP, and prior-violent-felony
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aggravators,” which it described as “three of the most serious and weighty aggravators in the
capital sentencing scheme.”) (citing Bush v. State, 295 So. 3d 179, 215 (Fla. 2020)). Moreover,
Defendant’s speculative claim that a life sentence would result if the evidence were introduced
rests on an assertion that this “evidence is of such a nature that it would probably result in a
recommendation of life at retrial when considered with all other admissible evidence in the case,
including that developed since the trial[.]” Amended Eighth Petition at p. 22, § 53 (emphasis
supplied). To the extent “all other admissible evidence in the case” refers to arguments not
contained in the amended petition (i.e., those relating to witness Murphy), such arguments are now
foreclosed and for the reasons addressed herein, the weight of both arguments does not
demonstrate a likelihood of a life sentence at a new penalty phase, especially considering that the
jury’s recommendation in this case was unanimous.

The claim is untimely and the aggravators and facts present in this case would greatly
outweigh any proposed mitigation. For the foregoing reasons, the Defendant cannot meet the
standard to set aside his death sentence based on newly discovered evidence. Thus, he is not

entitled to relief on Ground Two.

The Defendant’s Argument — Ground Three

To set aside a conviction on the basis of newly discovered evidence, a defendant must
establish (1) the evidence must have been unknown by the trial court, by the party, or by counsel
at the time of trial, and it must appear that defendant or his counsel could not have known of it
by the use of diligence; and (2) the new evidence must be of such nature that it would probably
produce an acquittal on retrial. Damren v. State, 397 So.3d 607, 610 (Fla. 2023) (quoting Jones

v. State, 709 So. 2d 512, 521 (Fla. 1998)), cert. denied, Damren v. Florida, 144 S. Ct. 1398

14



State of Florida v. Anthony Floyd Wainwright

Order Summarily Denying Amended Eighth Successive Motion for Postconviction Relief
Case No.: 1994-150-CF

Melissa G. Olin, Circuit Judge

(2024). The defendant must establish both prongs. Damren, 397 So.3d at 610 (quoting
Hutchinson v. State, 343 So0.3d 50, 53 (Fla. 2022) (“To be facially sufficient, a claim of newly
discovered evidence must meet the two-part Jones test.””). The Florida Supreme Court recently
clarified the standard of proof for the second prong when it explained the phrase “would
probably” produce an acquittal means a “preponderance of the evidence” or “more likely than
not.” Id. at 611. It requires a showing of a probability “greater than fifty percent.” /d.

The Defendant asserts a claim of newly discovered evidence consisting of a violation of
Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963). He avers that, at trial, the State called a jailhouse
informant, Robert Allen Murphy, who testified about incriminating statements made by the
Defendant. He asserts that, during his trial testimony, Murphy repeatedly denied having any hope
or desire to obtain a lesser sentence by testifying, nor was any benefit or expectation of one
disclosed by the State. On May 13, 2025, several days after the warrant was signed and
apparently at the behest of the Federal Public Defender’s Office, Murphy executed an affidavit
essentially attesting that: he asked his attorney for a benefit after he learned that another
informant, Dennis Givens'?, was receiving a benefit for testifying; his attorney assured him he
would get a benefit in exchange for his testimony, his attorney spoke to a prosecutor; when
Murphy met with Wainwright’s prosecutor prior to testifying, the prosecutor told him he could
not make any promises and he “repeated that so much that it became annoying”, but “the way he
said it made it clear” to Murphy that he “would get a benefit if” he testified; because everyone
“knew what was going on and that [Murphy| would be receiving something in exchange for [his]

testimony”; his “modification of sentence hearing was pushed back until after” he testified; at the

10 Givens did not testify in front of Wainwright’s jury.
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hearing, the judge presiding over Murphy’s case called a prosecutor on the phone and the
prosecutor provided information about his testimony; he was given a choice by the judge of
doing time in prison or a lengthier probation, and ultimately his 12-year prison sentence was
reduced to probation. See Murphy Affidavit. Upon careful review, the affidavit does not allege
that the State ever tendered any offer to Murphy in exchange for his testimony.

The Defendant asserts Murphy’s counsel’s inquiry to the State, and Murphy’s altered
modification of sentence hearing date show the State knew that Murphy expected a sentence
reduction for testifying, thereby triggering a duty to disclose this impeachment evidence to the
defense. Wainwright also asserts that the State also had a duty to come forward when Murphy
falsely testified that he had no such expectation and that the State’s failure to disclose this
information during trial deprived him of a fair trial. He also avers the State failed to disclose
these material facts to appellate or postconviction counsel or disclose to the Defendant that
Givens received a benefit, despite relying heavily on informant testimony in closing. He
contends the court relied on the informant’s testimony to find the HAC and CCP aggravators,
and to reject a statutory mitigator.

The Defendant claims this evidence could not have been discovered any sooner and he
has been diligent in obtaining it. He contends that his investigators have interviewed Murphy
several times over the years, and it was only now that Murphy was willing to make the
referenced admissions. He asserts the State suppressed favorable, material information, which
would have provided critical impeachment of the State’s case for death and that when considered
with all evidence at trial or developed after trial, evidence that Murphy expected to receive a

benefit for his testimony would probably produce a life sentence.
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Notably, the record establishes that, on March 13, 1995, a hearing was held on the
Defendant’s “Motion to Compel Disclosure of Existence and Substance of Promises of
Immunity, Leniency or Preferential Treatment.” The Defendant requested disclosure of any
promises of leniency, immunity or preferential treatment offered to Murphy and Givens. The
State represented that “there are no promises, no offers of leniency and no deals made with either
of those.” The State further indicated he understood Murphy had a pending Motion for
Mitigation of Sentence, filed prior to the State learning he would be a witness in this case, and
that the motion had not been ruled upon by the Court. The State represented “as an officer of the
court that no promises have been made to either of those two inmates, nor do I anticipate that any
will be, but in the event that they are, I will disclose that to you.” Motion Hearing, March 13,
1995, pp. 181-182.

Moreover, during the jury trial, Murphy testified he was sentenced on January 26, 1995
to 12 years in prison for forging checks of close friends and family members; he had between
four to nine prior convictions; at the time of the Defendant’s trial, he had a pending motion for
modification of sentence for a case in Taylor County, which was prosecuted by a different
prosecutor than the one prosecuting the Defendant; he was “not necessarily” hoping for a
sentence reduction in his pending motion, just a correction, so that his three consecutive
sentences totaling 12 years could be run concurrently, for a total of five to seven years; with gain
time earned, his ultimate sentence could be between two and one-half years, to three years; he
was not promised anything for testifying in the Defendant’s case. Jury Trial, pp. 1035-1037,
1044-1055, 1059.

The Defendant’s assertion that he could not have learned of this evidence until Murphy

was willing to provide it after multiple visits from Wainwright’s investigators and through his

17



State of Florida v. Anthony Floyd Wainwright

Order Summarily Denying Amended Eighth Successive Motion for Postconviction Relief
Case No.: 1994-150-CF

Melissa G. Olin, Circuit Judge

affidavit dated May 13, 2025, is without merit. It is a matter of public record that Murphy’s
prison sentence was modified to probation soon after his testimony. Additionally, it was known
to counsel on March 13, 1995, that Murphy had a pending motion to modify his sentence, and
defense counsel elicited testimony from Murphy regarding the pending motion during the trial.
Motion Hearing, March 13, 1995, pp. 181-182; Jury Trial, 1044-1055. At trial, Murphy also
conceded that, despite not having a deal with the State, his attorney would be able to inform the
sentencing judge in his case of his trial testimony to possibly be considered at the resentencing
hearing. Jury Trial 1044-1046. Ultimately, Murphy’s affidavit is not different from what the
Defendant admits was Murphy’s trial testimony. Essentially, Defendant asserts that during trial
Murphy repeatedly denied having any hope or desire to obtain a lesser sentence by testifying,
and that the State never promised any benefit in exchange for his testimony. Nothing changes
with Murphy’s aftidavit except that after thirty-one years he now alleges that even though the
State repeatedly stated that it was not extending him any offer of a benefit, he surmised he would
receive some benefit. Despite his beliefs now, there is no indication or evidence to establish that
the State ever offered him anything. In fact, his trial testimony and his recent affidavit establish
otherwise.

Nor would this evidence more likely than not result in a life sentence. As noted, six
aggravating factors were found in the Defendant’s case. See Wainwright, 704 So. 2d 511at 512,
n.2 (Fla. 1997). Three factors, HAC, CCP, and prior-violent-felony, are among the most serious
in the statutory sentencing scheme. See Craft, 312 So. 3d 45 at 56 (Fla. 2020); Wood, 209 So. 3d
1217 at 1228 (Fla. 2017). Thus, the Defendant cannot meet the standard necessary to establish
Murphy’s affidavit constitutes newly discovered evidence entitling him to vacation of his death

sentence. See Damren, 397 So. 3d 607 at 610-611 (Fla. 2023).
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Additionally, the Defendant cannot establish that the State committed a Brady violation.
“To prevail on a Brady claim, a defendant must prove that (1) favorable evidence which is
exculpatory or impeaching; (2) was suppressed by the State, and (3) because the evidence was
material, he was prejudiced.” Stein v. State, 2024 WL 4231183, *2 (Fla. Sept. 19, 2024) (citing
Sweet v. State, 293 So. 3d 448, 451 (Fla. 2020)). The Defendant asserts this Brady violation
warrants vacating his death sentence.

The Florida Supreme Court has explained that in assessing Brady materiality and ensuing
prejudice, a court reviews “the net effect of the suppressed evidence and determine whether the
favorable evidence could reasonably be taken to put the whole case in such a different light as to
undermine confidence in the verdict.” Sweet v. State, 293 So0.3d 448, 451 (Fla. 2020) (rejecting a
Brady claim based on impeachment). But “evidence that is ‘too little, too weak, or too distant
from the main evidentiary points to meet Brady s standards is not material.” Sweet, 293 So.3d at
451 (quoting Turner v. United States, 582 U.S. 313, 326 (2017)).

Similarly, in his affidavit, Murphy attests the prosecutor repeatedly told him he could not
promise him anything in exchange for his testimony. Thus, the Defendant failed to establish that
the State promised Murphy anything in exchange for his testimony, or that the State suppressed
evidence of such a promise. Even if Murphy expected to receive a benefit in exchange for his
testimony, any impeachment of Murphy with his expectation would not be material to the
convictions under Brady. See Stein, 2024 WL 4231183, at *3 (holding proposed impeachment of
one of State’s key witnesses with his expectation of not being charged in exchange for his
testimony was not material under Brady, and impeaching the witness with his expectation would
not put the case “in a different light” because the “State’s case was strong” and included a

confession.). Here, as in Stein, the State’s case against the Defendant was strong, and included
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scientific evidence and a confession. See Wainwright v. State, 704 So. 2d 511, 512 (Fla. 1997)
(discussing evidence in case); Wainwright v. State, 2 So. 3d 948, 950-952 (Fla. 2008) (discussing
evidence in case). The Defendant failed to meet the standard to establish Murphy’s affidavit
attestations constitute newly discovered evidence, there was no Brady violation, and, as such, the
Defendant is not entitled to relief on Ground Three.

Therefore, it is hereby ORDERED that the Defendant’s Amended Eighth Successive
Motion for Postconviction Relief is SUMMARILY DENIED. The Defendant may appeal this

decision to the Florida Supreme Court.

DONE and ORDERED in Chambers fn Columbia County, Florida, this 20" day of May
2023, ﬂ /l

MW{WA GWLW, CIRCUIT JUDGE

APPENDICES:

A Motion Hearing, March 13, 1995, pp. 2, 181-182

B Jury Trial, pp. 910, 1035-1037, 1044-1055, 1059
C Jury Trial (Guilt Phase), pp. 1969-2000

D Verdict Form

E Advisory Sentence Form (Penalty Phase)

F Transcript Excerpts of Evidentiary Hearing, Jamuary 23, 2002

G Psychological Evaluations included in Record on Appeal in Florida Supreme Court case

no.: SC02-1342.

H Pro Se Successive Motion for Postconviction Relief, filed May 26, 2009
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THE COURT: At this point, then, the Court
rules you have:receivedrwhat is =~ _-

MR. TAYLOR: Denied subject to renewal.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. TAYLOR: Judge, I have got a Motion to

o

-Compel Disclosure of Existence and Substancgmaf

Promises of Immnnity, Leniency or Preferential
Treatment. Since this appears to be a two-
defendant case, and there are no pnomisesTOt'
record and.no breaks offered to eithet defendant
at this time, except for specific witnesses who
have come in at the eleventh hour and have made
claims that my cllent in this partlcular case,
Anthony Wainwrlght, made statements to them, I
have taken the depos;tlons of one of those
witnesses and do not need 1nformatlon 1n that
regard. I have a spec1flc request as to the last

two people, I belleve at the Taylor County Jall

-that were dlSClOSEd late and the State can -- I

~ think I am entltled to that at thls Polnt in tlme_',f”'””’

This was 1ate comlng to the Defense and,
therefore, appropr1ate.w1th thlS motlon.

'_MR; BLAIR. I understand that you are not
requesting any lnformatlon w;th regard to promlses

made to Gary Dean Gunter?
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MR. TAYLOR: That’s correct. .
MR. BLAIR: Your Honor, with'respect to the
other two witnesses, Robert Allen Murphy and
Anthony Givens, the State -- there are no
promlses, no offers of lenlency and no deals made
with elther of those. It is my understandlng that “u“UMH-i
Robert Allen Murphy has pending a Motion for
Mitigation of Sentence, which was filed prior to
our learning that he would be a witness in this
case and has not been ruled upon by the Court.
But I will represent as an officer of the court | |
that no promises have been made to either of those
two inmates, nor do I anticipate that any will be,
but in the event that they are, I will disclose
that to you. | L
MR. TAYLOR: My request asufo Gunter. was
based upon the dep031tlon that we took of Gunter
at the Taylor County Jail, If anythlng occurred
subsequent to that, then I would have -- _ |
MR. BLAIR: I did brlng to court today and I
am prepared to offer to counsel_an qffer of plea
in the Gary Dean Gunter'case;. He was charged Wlth
attempted burglary, posse551on of burglary tools i
and possession of less than 20 pounds of caunabls1
According to the offer of plea, he pled guilty as
LYNN SAPP, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER

Route 1, Box 110E, Jasper, Florida = 32052
(904) 792-3204
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IN RE: JURY TRIAL

BEFORE: Hon. E. Vernon Douglas
Circuit Judge

DATE: May 23, 1995
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Concluded at 4:00 p.m.
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May 23, 1995 Nine o’clock a.m.

PROCEEDINGS

(DAY 7 - VOL. IX)

(WHEREUPON, THESE PROCEEDINGS WERE HAD AT THE

BENCH, OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE JURIES, AS FOLLOWS:)

MR. TAYLOR: We have two motions concerning
testimony that I anticipate may be attempted to be
brought in today by the State.

One deals with statements allegedly made by
my client on May 9th, again on May 11th and on
May 20th, 1994. It is the position of the
defendant Anthony Wainwright, as to the May 9th
statements and the May 20th statements, and I
think May 11th even can be incorporated into that,
that there were communications begun between the
State Attormney and then Counsel, Victor Africano,
who had not, I think, been appointed, but who had
been asked to come over and assist Mr. Wainwright,
with the idea that Mr. Wainwright would give
statements and cooperate with the State in the
anticipation of avoiding facing the death penalty.

And on May 9th there in fact was a meeting
that was attended by Mr. Africano, the defendant,
Sheriff Reid, I believe Mr. Kinsey and other law

enforcement representatives wherein there with a
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Q Captain Gutshall, you say you’ve known
Mr. Gunter for thirteen years and he’s been truthful
and honest with you?

A I didn’'t say that. I said ten to twelve
years.

0 Ten to twelve years. And he’s been truthful
and honest with you?

A Yes, sir.

Q With your knowledge of Mr. Gunter, if you
were gone for the weekend, would you give him the keys

to your house, sir?

A No, sir.
Q Thank you. Same thing for Mr. Murphy?
A Same for you.

MR. BLAIR: Nothing further from this
witness, Your Honor.

The State calls Robert Allen Murphy.

May this witness be -- well, let me ask that
the witness remain under the rule.

THE COURT: You will remain under the rule

for today.

Whereupon,
ROBERT ALLEN MURPHY
was called as a witness on behalf of the State, and
LYNN SAPP, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER
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having first been duly sworn, was examined and
testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. BLATR:

Q Mr. Murphy, I'm going to ask you if you would
pull the chair as close to the stand as you can get it.
Okay? Tell us what your name is, please.

A Robert Allen Murphy.

0 And, Mr. Murphy, are you an inmate in the
Florida Department of Corrections?

A Yes, I am.

Q And how long have you been an inmate in the

Florida Department of Corrections, most recently?

A Since January the 26th.

0 Of this year?

A Yes, sir.

0 And for the record, what sentence did you
receive?

Y.y Twelve years.

Q And for what offense-?

A Forgery.

Q Did you plead guilty?

A Yes, sir.

Q Where was that offense prosecuted?

A Perry, Florida.

LYNN SAPP, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER
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0 And did my office prosecute that offense?

A Not that I know of.

Q The State Attorney’'s Office in Perry
prosecuted you?

A Yes, sir.

Q Let me represent to you that that’s part of
the Third Judicial Circuit. You don’t know me from
that case; is that correct?

A No, sir.

Q All right. ©Now, this is not your first time
in a Florida prison; is that right?

A No, sir,

0 How many prison sentences have you previously

served, i1f you know?

A Two.

Q And how many felony convictions do you have?
A Four or five.

Q And that’s over a period of how many years?
A Since about ’86.

Q Now, directing your attention to a period of
time in September of last year. Were you an inmate in
the Taylor County Jail in Perry?

A Yegs, I was.

Q Did there come a time when you were
transferred to the confinement unit upstairs at the
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Anthony Wainwright, who is that seated at that table
over there, which one of the three?
A The one in the middle.

MR. BLAIR: Your Honor, may the record
reflect the person he has referred to is the
defendant, Anthony Floyd Wainwright.

MR. TAYLOR: Referred to, Judge, not
identified.

THE COURT: So ordered.

MR. BLAIR: That’s all I have, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. TAYI.OR:

Q Mr. Murphy, you’re currently serving a twelve
year sentence in the State Department of Corrections?

A That'’s correct.

Q And when were you sentenced to that twelve
years, sir?

A January 1l1lth.

Q Of 19957

A Yesg.

Q Do you currently have any motions pending or
appeals pending in conjunction with that sentence?

A I have a modification of sentence.

Q And what do you understand the modification
of sentence to be? What is that? 1Is it a document
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that’s been filed on your behalf?
A Yes, sir. My lawyer filed it.
Q Okay. And when did he file that motion to

modify your sentence?

A You only have sixty days after the sentence,
so I'm sure in that time sometime. I was sentenced
incorrectly.

Q And so he’s trying to get you back into court

so the judge can resentence you?

A Yes, sir.
Q And give you a lower sentence?
A Not necessary lower, just a different one. I

was sentenced to five, five, and two running wild.

Q So you’ve got twelve years, and you’'ve got to
serve the first five before you start working on your
second five, before you start working on your last two;
is that correct?

A That’s correct.

Q All right. And in conjunction with this
motion, it’s your understanding, is it not, that if
your lawyer can get you back into court, the judge can
resentence you?

A That is my understanding that he can change
the sentence to run concurrent or inconcurrent.

Q And he can take into account, can he not,
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anything that you’ve done since he last sentenced you

on January 26th of 1995; isn’t that true?

A

Q

I guess so.

So as you sit here today, you're hoping that

you can get a sentence reduction out of Taylor County;

isn’'t that correct?

A Not necessarily.

Q You don’t want your sentence reduced?

A I want to be sentenced correctly.

@) Which would be what, five years?

A It would be five or either seven years.

Q All right. And you’ve been in the system
now -- where are you located?

A Tl .

Q And that Tomoka?

A Taylor.

0 You’'re at Taylor Correctional?

A Yes.

0 So since you’ve been sentenced, you’ve stayed

in your own county; is that right?

A

0
to Taylor;

A

Q

LYNN
Route 1,

I went to Lake Butler.

For a while, and then you got sentenced back
is that right?

That’s correct.

And as we sit here today on a twelve year
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sentence, how much time will you have to serve on that
sentence, if you know?

A It depends on the gain time situation. They
give out different time.

0 You could serve up to six or seven years on
that or eight?

A Could serve up to six or seven.

Q And if you get your sentence reduced, you
would serve about half of whatever the reduction is;
isn’t that correct?

A That'’s correct.

Q If you get your sentence down to five years,
you serve two and a half; isn’t that right?

A About three.

Q About three. All right. ©Now, you were asked
on direct examination if you’ve been convicted before,
and I think you said four or five times; is that your
recollection, or is it more than that?

A Four or five times, I don’t know how many.

Q Well, do you remember giving a deposition at
the Hamilton County Jail on March 27th in the afternoon
where you were brought into the library area?

A I remember.

Q All right. And do you remember being put
under oath just like you are here today where you're
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supposed to tell the truth and all that stuff?

A Yes, sir.

0 And do you remember being asked about your
felony convictions, and your response being, "Yes,
eight or nine"?

A I don’'t remember. I mean, I didn’'t say I
didn’'t say that. I might have.

0 Well, today, do you know the truth, have you

been convicted four or five times or eight or nine

times?
A I don’t know the exact number.
Q And what were you convicted of doing?
A Forgery.
Q Forgery. That is what, writing checks?
A Yes.
Q What, just writing a check on your own

account and you didn’t have any money in it and it

bounced, or something elsge?

A I was writing checks on somebody else’s
account.
Q Oh, so you were taking somebody else’s checks

and writing and forging their name to it?
A Correect.
Q Okay. And would these be people that you

would know?
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Yes.
Would they be family and close friends?
Yes.
Well, whc would they be?

One was my first cousin.

(O R o

All right. And was he or she living in and

around Taylor County?

A Yeg.,

Q Was it a male or female?

A Male.

Q So you stole his checks and then wrote checks

on his account and took the money; is that right?

A Basically.

0 Well, you either you did or you didn’'t. Is
that what you did?

A Well, actually he left the checkbook in my

truck the night before.

Q His mistake, and so you just borrowed it.
A Yes.
Q All right. And then wrote checks and took

the money? "
A Correct.
Q And who else?
A Who else did I write a check on?
Q Yes.
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A A lady name Lucille Wilder.

Q Just a citizen in Taylor County?

A Just a citizen.

Q What about Jack Murphy?

A That’s my father.

Q What about his checking account?

A I wrote a few on him.

Q So you stole your own dad’s checks and forged

his signature and stole the money from him; is that

right?
A That’s right.
Q And for those offenses and others you’re now

doing this twelve year sentence?

A Not for the one on my dad’s, I wasn't
prosecuted on them.

Q Charges were dropped?

A Never pressed.

Q Never pressed. Okay. And, incidently,

you've got some other relatives in Taylor County, don’t

you?
A I've got a bunch of relatives in Taylor
County.
Q Do you have any that work for the sheriff?
A Yes, I do.

@ Who are they?
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Timmy Murphy and a judge, about four cousins.
That’s Buddy Murphy?
Yes.
Anybody else at the jail?
Ken Sparks and Timmy Murphy.

And they both work at the Taylor County Jail?

20 P 0 o 0 P

Yes, sir.

Q So they would work under Captain Gutshall,
wouldn’t they?

& Yes, sir.

Q And he would see them on a regular basis as
his employees, wouldn’'t he?

A Yeg,

Q And you were there at the same time they were
working there, weren’t you?

A Yes.

Q And they knew -- they, your family, knew you

were there in the jail; isn’t that right?

A That’s right.

Q And Captain Gutshall knew you were there in
the jail?

A Yes.

Q He knew you were related to those other

Murphys, doesn’t he?

A Yes.
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Q Now, when you first came -- you’ve been into
court before like this, you, yourself, have been a
defendant in court before, haven’'t you? That is,
you’ve had to go to court on a number of occasions in
your life on these eight or nine convictions; isn’t
that correct?

A Correct.

Q And when you go into court, you know that
your lawyer is usually sitting there with you; isn’t
that right?

A Co¥redt .

Q And you have a table that you sit at in front

of the Judge; isn’t that correct?

A Correct.

Q Yes?

A Correct.

Q And then the guys that are prosecuting you,

that is the prosecutors, they sit in the courtroom when
you’re in the courtroom with the Judge and your lawyer;
isn’t that right?
A That's right.
0 And they =it at a table sort of like
Mr. Blair here; isn’t that right?
a That’s right.
Q Okay. And then you’ve been in a courtroom
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and you’ve seen jury boxes where you’ve got seats for

jurors to sit; isn’'t that also true?

A That'’'s true.

Q QOkay.
before?

A Yes.

And you’ve seen a court reporter

0 And a judge before;

A Yes.

isn’t that right?

Q And this has happened on what, dozens and

dozens of times in your life that you’ve had court

appearances?
A A few.
Q Okay.

And you knew today why you were

brought up here from Taylor County was to testify in a

trial; isn’t that correct?

A Correct.
o] And you knew who was on trial, didn’'t you?
A Yes.

Q Anthony Wainwright.

And this courtroom isn’t

really any different than any of the other ones that

you’'ve sat in before when you were the defendant; isn't

that true? You’'ve got a table for the prosecutor,

you’ve got a table for the defense lawyer; isn’t that

right?
A Basically the same,
LYNN SAPP,

I guess.
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Q Okay. And you had seen me, had you not, on
March 27th at the Hamilton County Jail when we took a
deposition in the afternoon, along with Mr. Blair and a
couple of other people?

A That's correct.

Q All right. So when you walked into the
courtroom today, it was no secret that there would be a
table with a defense lawyer sitting at it and somebody
on: trial: disn’t that true?

A That’s true.

Q And there would be a table with a prosecutor
gitting at it on trial; isn’'t that also true?

A Thatts txrue.

Q And you knew the person that should be
sitting at that table on trial would be Anthony
Wainwright; isn’t that further true?

A That'’s true.

Q And as you came into this courtroom, you say
back sometime when you were in the Taylor County Jail
somebody who said he was Anthony Wainwright told you
this story; is that right?

A That’s true.

0 And as you looked around this courtroom, you
looked at the jury, you looked out all the way over
here, and you looked at this table, which you knew was
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the table the defendant would be sitting at, and when
you were first asked to identify somebody that you say
was Anthony Wainwright, you couldn’t do it, could you?

A He looked different when I seen him.

Q And as you sit here today, knowing that
Mr. Wainwright should be sitting with his attorney, who
you saw on March 27th, you can only say he looks
different, or that person looks different; isn’t that
Erue?

A That'’s true.

Q Now, when you were at the Taylor County Jail,

did you have access to the medical unit?

A Did I have access?

Q Yes, had you been in the medical unit before?
A Yeg, I've been in it before.

0 As a matter of fact, while you were in Taylor

County Jail, you had occasion to see somebody who you
say might have been Anthony Wainwright in that medical
unit; isn’t that correct?

A I never seen him in the medical unit.

Q Okay. So if anybody was in there, it wasn’t

Anthony Wainwright; isn’t that true?

A Not when I was there --
0 Was Gunter there?
A -- I didn’'t see him.
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Q Okay. So could you talk to those people or
not?
A I could say hello, yes.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. BLAIR:

Q Mr. Murphy, have I promised you anything in
return for your testimony here today?
A No, sir.
0 Has anyone promised you anything in return
for your testimony here today?
A No, sir.
MR. BLAIR: Nothing further.
MR. TAYLOR: Just briefly, Judge.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. TAYIOR:

0 Mr. Murphy, is there any rule that you know
that would preclude your lawyer from bringing to the
Court’s attention you testifying in this case?

A Excuse me? |

Q Do you know of any reason that your lawyer
would be precluded or could not advise the judge in
Taylor County that you had testified in the case
against Anthony Wainwright?

A No.
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THE COURT: Members of the jury, I shall now
instruct you on the laws that you should apply to
the facts as you find them. We thank you for your
attention. Please pay attention to the
instructions I am about to give you.

Anthony Floyd Wainwright, the defendant in
this case, has been accused of the crimes of
murder in the first degree, robbery while armed
with a firearm, kidnapping while armed with a
firearm, and sexual battery while armed with a
firearm. 1I'1ll read to you from the indictment.
Count I, first degree murder, the Grand Jurors of
Hamilton County, Florida charge that Richard
Eugene Hamilton and Anthony Floyd Wainwright on
the 27th day of April, 1994, in Columbia County,
Florida and/or in Hamilton County, Florida,
unlawfully and from a premeditated design and
intent to effect the death of Carmen G. Gayheart,
or any other human being, did kill said Carmen G.
Gayheart by strangulation and/or by shooting her
with a firearm, thereby inflicting in and upon
said Carmen G. Gayheart mortal wounds and
injuries, from which said mortal wounds and
injuries, Carmen G. Gayheart died, contrary to

Florida Statute 782.04 (1) (a).
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Count II charges armed robbery. The Grand
Jurors of Hamilton County, Florida further charge
that Richard Eugene Hamilton and Anthony Floyd
Wainwright on the 27th day of April, 1994, in
Columbia County, Florida and/or in Hamilton
County, Florida, did then and there unlawfully
take money or other property, to wit, a motor
vehicle and assorted personal items from the
person or custody of Carmen G. Gayheart, with the
intent to either permanently or temporarily
deprive Carmen G. Gayheart of the money or other
property, and in the course of the taking used
force, violence, assault or putting in fear, and
carried a firearm contrary to Florida Statute
812.13.

Count III, armed kidnapping. The Grand
Jurors of Hamilton County, Florida further charge
that Richard Eugene Hamilton and Anthony Floyd
Wainwright on the 27th day of April, 1994, in
Columbia County, Florida and/or in Hamilton
County, Florida, without lawful authority did then
and then forcibly, secretly, or by threat,
confine, abduct or imprison another person, to
wit, Carmen G. Gayheart, against said person'’s

will, with the intent to commit or facilitate the
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commission of a felony, to wit, robbery and/or
sexual battery, or to inflict bodily harm upon, or
to terrorize the victim or any other person,
contrary to Florida Statute 787.01; and during the
commission of said offense, did carry, display,
use, threaten, or attempted to use a firearm,
contrary to Florida Statute 775.087.

Count IV, armed sexual battery. The Grand
Jurors of Hamilton County, Florida further charge
that Richard Eugene Hamilton and Anthony Floyd
Wainwright on the 27th day of April, 1994, in
Columbia County, Florida and/or in Hamilton
County, Florida, did then and there unlawfully
commit a sexual battery upon Carmen G. Gayheart, a
person twelve years of age or older, without that
person’s consent, by wvaginal penetration, or by
union with the sexual organ of another, and in the
process thereof, used actual physical force likely
to cause serious personal injury and/or used or
threatened to use a deadly weapon, to wit, a
firearm, contrary to Florida Statute 794.011(3).

Murder in the first degree includes the
lesser crimes of murder in the second degree and
manslaughter, all of which are unlawful. A

killing that is excusable or was committed by the
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use of justifiable deadly force is lawful.

If you find Carmen Gayheart was killed by
Anthony Floyd Wainwright, you will then consider
the circumstances surrounding the killing in
deciding if the killing was murder in the first
degree, murder in the second degree or
manslaughter, or whether the killing was excusable
or resulted from justifiable use of deadly force.

I will now give you the definition of
justifiable homicide. The killing of a human
being is justifiable homicide and lawful if
necessarily done while resisting an attempt to
murder or commit a felony upon the defendant, or
to commit a felony in any dwelling house in which
the defendant was at the time of the killing.

Now the definition of excusable homicide.

The killing of a human being is excusable, and
therefore lawful under any one of the following
three circumstances: When the killing is
committed by accident or any misfortune in doing
any lawful act by lawful means with usual ordinary
caution and without any unlawful intent; or,
number two, when the killing occurs by accident or
misfortune in the heat of passion, upon any sudden

and sufficient provocation; or, thirdly, when the
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killing is committed by accident and misfortune
resulting from a sudden combat, if a dangerous
weapon is not used and the killing was not done in
a cruel or unusual manner.

A dangerous weapon is any weapon that taking
into account the manner in which it is used is
likely to produce death or great bodily harm.

I will now instruct you on the circumstances
that must be proved before Anthony Floyd
Wainwright may be found guilty of first degree
murder or any lesser included crime. There are
two ways in which a person may be convicted of
first degree murder. One is known as premeditated
murder, and the other is known as felony murder.

Before you can find the defendant guilty of
first degree premeditated murder, the State must
prove the following three elements beyond a
reasonable doubt: Number one, that Carmen
Gayheart is dead. Number two, the death was
caused by the criminal act or agency of Anthony
Floyd Wainwright. Number three, there ‘was a
premeditated killing of Carmen Gayheart.

Killing with premeditation is killing after
consciously deciding to do so. The decision must

be present in the mind at the time of the killing.
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The law does not fix the exact period of time that
must pass between the formation of the
premeditated intent to kill and the killing. The
period of time must be long enough to allow
refection by the defendant. The premeditated
intent to kill must be formed before the killing.

The question of premeditation is a question
of fact to be determined by you from the evidence.
It will be sufficient proof of premeditation if
the circumstances of the killing and the conduct
of the accused convince you beyond a reasonable
doubt of the existence of premeditation at the
time of the killing.

Before you can find the defendant guilty of
first degree felony murder, the State must prove
the following three elements beyond a reasonable
doubt: Number one, that Carmen Gayheart is dead.
Number two, the death occurred as a consequence of
and while Anthony Floyd Wainwright was engaged in
the commission of robbery, kidnapping or sexual
battery. Number three, that Anthony Floyd
Wainwright was the person who actually killed
Carmen Gayheart, or Carmen Gayheart was killed by
a person other than Anthony Wainwright, but both

Anthony Floyd Wainwright and the person who killed
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Carmen Gayheart were principals in the commission
of robbery, kidnapping or sexual battery.

In order to convict of first degree felony
murder, it is not necessary for the State to prove
that the defendant had a premeditated design or
intent to kill.

If two or more persons help each other commit
a crime, and the defendant is one of them, the
defendant is a principal and must be treated as if
he had done all of the things the other person or
persons did, if the defendant, number one, knew
what going to happen; number two, intended to
participate actively or by sharing in an expected
benefit; and, three, actually did something by
which he intended to help commit the crime.

"Help" means to aid, to plan or assist. To
be a principal, the defendant does not have to be
present when the crime is committed.

In considering the evidence, you should
consider the possibility that although the
evidence may not convince you that the defendant
committed the main crimes of which he is accused,
there may be evidence that he committed other actsg
that would constitute a lesser included crime.

Therefore, if you decide the main accusation has
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not been proved beyond a reasonable doubt, vyou
will next need to decide if the defendant is
guilty of any lesser included crime.

The lesser crimes indicated in the definition
of first degree murder are second degree murder
and manslaughter. Before you can find the
defendant guilty of the lesser included offense of
second degree murder, the State must prove the
following three elements beyond a reasonable
doubt: Number one, Carmen Gayheart is dead.
Number two, the death was caused by the criminal
act or agency of Anthony Floyd Wainwright; and,
three, there was an unlawfully killing of Carmen
Gayheart by an act imminently dangerous to another
and evincing a depraved mind regardless of human
life.

An act 1s one imminently dangerous to
another, evincing a depraved mind regardless of
human life, if it is an act or series of acts
that, number one, a person of ordinary judgment
would know is reasonably certain to kill or do
serious bodily injury to another; number two, is
done from ill will, hatred, spite or evil intent;
and, number three, is of such a nature that the

act itself indicates an indifference to human
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life.

In order to convict of second degree murder,
it is not necessary for the State to prove the
defendant had a premeditated intent to cause
death. If you find that Anthony Floyd Wainwright
committed second degree murder, and you should
also find that during the commission of the crime
he carried, displayed, used, threatened to use or
attempted to use a firearm, you should find him
guilty of second degree murder while armed with a
firearm. A firearm has been previously defined
for you.

If you find only that the defendant committed
second degree murder, but did not carry, display,
use, threat to use or attempt to use a firearm,
then you should find him guilty only of second
degree murder.

Before you can find the defendant guilty of
the lesser included offense of manslaughtef, the
State must prove the following two elements beyond
a reasonable doubt: Number one, that Carmen
Gayheart is dead. Number two, the death was
caused by the intentional act of Anthony Floyd
Wainwright or intentional procurement of Anthony

Floyd Wainwright, or culpable negligence of
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Anthony Floyd Wainwright.

However, the defendant cannot be guilty of
manslaughter if the killing was either justifiable
or excusable homicide, as I have previously
explained those terms.

To "procure" means to means to persuade,
induce, prevail upon or cause a person to do
something.

I will now define culpable negligence for
you. Each of us has a duty to act reasonably
toward others. If there is a violation of that
duty, without any conscious intent to harm, that
violation is negligence. Culpable negligence is
more than a failure to use ordinary care toward
others. 1In order for negligence to be culpable,
it must be gross and flagrant.

Culpable negligence is a course of conduct
showing reckless disregard of human life, or of
the safety of persons exposed to its dangerous
effects, or such an entire want of care as to
raise a presumption of a conscious indifference to
the consequences, or which shows wantonness or
recklessness, or a grossly careless disregard for
the safety and welfare of the public, or such an

indifference to the rights of other as is
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equivalent to an intentional violation of such
rights of others. The negligent act or omission
must have been committed with an utter disregard
for the safety of others.

Culpable negligence is consciously doing an
act or following a course of conduct that the
defendant must have known or reasonably should
have known was likely to cause death or great
bodily injury.

If you find that Anthony Floyd Wainwright
committed manslaughter, and you also find that
during the commission of the crime he carried,
displayed, used, threatened to use or attempted to
use a firearm, you should find him guilty of
manslaughter while armed with a firearm. Firearm
has been previously defined for you.

If you find only that the defendant committed
manslaughter, and did not carry, display, use,
threaten to use or attempt to use a firearm, then
you should find him guilty only of manslaughter.

The next count charges robbery. And before
you can find the defendant guilty of robbery, the
State must prove the following four elements
beyond a reasonable doubt: Number one, Anthony

Floyd Wainwright took the motor vehicle and/or
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assorted personal items from the person or custody
of Carmen Gayheart. Secondly, force, violence or
assault, or putting in fear was used in the course
of the taking. And, thirdly, the property taken
was of some value. Fourthly, the taking was with
the intent to permanently deprive Carmen Gayheart
of her right to the property and any benefit from
it, or appropriate the property of Carmen Gayheart
to his own use of the use of any other person not
entitled to it.

In the course of taking means that the act
occurred prior to, or contemporaneous with, or
subsequent to the taking of the property, and that
the act and the taking of the property constitute
a continuous series of acts or events.

In order for a taking of property to be
robbery, it is not necessary that the person
robbed be the actual owner of the property. It is
sufficient if the victim has the custody of the
property at the time of the offense.

The taking must be by the use of force or
violence or by assault so as to overcome the
resistance of the victim, or by putting the victim
in fear so that she does not resist. The law does

not require that the victim of robbery resist to
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any particular extent, or that she offer any
actual physical resistance, if the circumstances
are such that she is placed in fear of death or
great bodily harm if she does resist. But unless
prevented by fear, there must be some resistance
to make the taking one done by force or violence.

In order for a taking by force, violence or
putting in fear to be robbery, it is not necessary
that the taking be from the '‘person of the victim.
It is sufficient if the property taken is under
the actual control of the victim so that it cannot
be taken without the use of force, violence or
intimidation directed against the victim.

The punishment provided by law for the crime
of robbery is greater if in the course of
committing the robbery the defendant carried gsome
kind of weapon. An act is in the course of
committing the robbery, if it occurs in an attempt
Lo commit robbery or in flight after the attempt
or commission. Therefore, if you find the
defendant guilty of robbery, you must then
consider whether the State has further proved
those aggravating circumstances, and reflect this
on your verdict.

If you find that the defendant carried a
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firearm in the course of committing the robbery,
you should find him guilty of robbery with a
firearm.

A firearm is legally defined as any weapon,
including a starter gun, which will, is designed
Lo, or may readily be converted to expel a
projectile by the action of an explosive, the
frame or receiver of any such weapon, any firearm
muffler or firearm silencer, any destructive
device or any machine gun. That’s the definition
of a firearm.

The lesser included crimes indicated in the
definition of robbery while armed with a firearm
are, robbery with a weapon, robbery, grand theft
in the third degree.

The crime of robbery has already been defined
for you. And if you find that the defendant
carried a weapon that was not a firearm in the
course of committing the robbery, you should find
him guilty of robbery with a weapon.

If you find that the defendant carried no
firearm or weapon in the course of committing the
robbery, but did commit the robbery, you should
find him guilty only of robbery.

A weapon is legally defined to mean any
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object that can be used to cause death or inflict
serious bodily harm.

Before you can find the defendant guilty of
theft, the State must prove the following two
elements beyond a reasonable doubt : Number one,
Anthony Floyd Wainwright knowingly and unlawfully
obtained, used, endeavored to obtain or endeavored
Lo use, the motor vehicle of Carmen Gayheart; and,
secondly, he did so with the intent to either
temporarily or permanently deprive Carmen Gayheart
of her right to the property or any benefit from
it, or to appropriate the property of Carmen
Gayheart to his own use or to the use of any
person not entitled to it.

If you find the defendant guilty of theft,
you must determine by your verdict whether the
property was a motor vehicle.

Proof of possession of recently stolen
property, unless satisfactorily explained, gives
rise to an inference that the person in possession
of the property knew or should have known that the
property had been stolen.

"Obtain or uses" means any manner of taking
Or exercising control over property.

"Endeavor" means to attempt or try.
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"Property" means anything of value.

Before you can find the defendant guilty of
kidnapping, the State must prove the following
three elements beyond a reasonable doubt : Number
one, that Anthony Floyd Wainwright, forcibly,
secretly or by threat, confined, abducted or
imprisoned Carmen Gayheart against her will; and
Anthony Floyd Wainwright had no lawful authority;
and, thirdly, Anthony Floyd Wainwright acted with
the intent to commit or facilitate the commission
of robbery, and/or sexual battery, or to inflict
bodily harm upon or to terrorize the victim, or
another person.

In order to be kidnapping, the confinement,
abduction or imprisonment must not be slight,
inconsequential or merely incidental to the
felony. It must not be of the kind inherent in
the nature of the felony; and must have some
significance independent of the felony in that it
makes the felony substantially easier of
commission or substantially lessens the risk of
detection.

If you find that Anthony Floyd Wainwright
committed kidnapping, and you also find that

during the commission of the crime, he carried,
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displayed, used, threatened to use or attempted to
use a firearm, you should find him guilty of
kidnapping with a firearm. A firearm has been
previously explained to you.

If you find only that the defendant committed
a kidnapping, but did not carry, display, use,
threaten to use or attempt to use a firearm, then
you should find him guilty only of kidnapping.

The lesser included crime indicated in the
definition is false imprisonment. Before you can
find the defendant guilty of false imprisonment,
the State must prove the following three elements
beyond a reasonable doubt : Anthony Floyd
Wainwright forcibly, secretly or by threat,
confined, abducted, imprisoned or restrained
Carmen Gayheart against her will. And, secondly.
Anthony Floyd Wainwright had no lawful authority.
And thirdly, Anthony Floyd Wainwright acted for
any purpose other than to hold for ransom or
reward or as a shield or hostage, or to commit or
facilitate the commission of any felony, inflict
bodily harm upon or to terrorize the victim or
another person; or interfere with the performance
of any governmental or political function.

As to the sexual battery count with a victim
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twelve years of age or older with use of great
force, before you can find the defendant guilty of
sexual battery upon a person twelve years of age
or older, with the use of a deadly weapon or
physical force, the State must prove the following
four elements beyond a reasonable doubt: Number
one, Carmen Gayheart was twelve years of age or
older. Number two, Anthony Floyd Wainwright
committed an act upon Carmen Gayheart in which the
sexual organ of Anthony Floyd Wainwright
penetrated or had union with the vagina of Carmen
Gayheart. Number three, that Anthony Floyd
Wainwright, in the process used or threatened to
use a deadly weapon, or used actual physical force
likely to cause serious personal injury. And,
fourth, the act was done without the consent of
Carmen Gayheart.

"Consent" means intelligent, knowing and
voluntary consent and does not include coerced
submission.

A weapon is a deadly weapon if it is used or
threatened to be used in a way likely to produce
death or great bodily harm.

"Serious personal injury" means great bodily

harm or pain, permanent disability or permanent
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disfigurement.

"Union" is an alternative of penetration and
means coming into contact.

If you find that Anthony Floyd Wainwright
committed sexual battery upon a person twelve
years of age or older with great force, and you
also find that during the commission of the crime
he carried, displayed, used, threatened to use, or
attempted to use a firearm, you should find him
guilty of sexual battery upon a person twelve
years of age or older with great force, with a
firearm. A firearm has been previously defined.

If you find only that the defendant committed
sexual battery upon a person twelve years of age
or older with great force, but did not carry,
display, use, threaten to use, or attempt to use a
firearm, then you should find him guilty only of
sexual battery upon a person twelve years of age
or older, with great force.

The lesser indicated crimes in the definition
of sexual battery upon a person twelve years of
age or older with great force are sexual battery
upon a person twelve years of age or older by the
use of slight force and battery.

As to the lesser includeds, before you can
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find the defendant guilty of sexual battery upon a
person twelve years of age or older, by the use of
slight force, the State must prove the following
four elements beyond a reasonable doubt: Number
one, Carmen Gayheart was twelve years of age or
older. Number two, Anthony Floyd Wainwright
committed an act upon Carmen Gayheart in which the
sexual organ of Anthony Floyd Wainwright
penetrated or had union with the vagina of the
victim, Carmen Gayheart. Thirdly, that Anthony
Floyd Wainwright, in the process, used physical
force or violence not likely to cause serious
personal injury. And, four, that act was
committed without the consent of Carmen Gayheart.

"Consent," again, means intelligent, knowing
and voluntary consent and does not include coerced
submission.

"Serious personal injury" means great bodily
harm or pain, permanent disability or permanent
disfigurement.

"Union" is an alternative of penetration and
means coming into contact.

And, finally, as to the lesser included of
battery, before you can find the defendant guilty

of battery, the State must prove the following
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element beyond a reasonable doubt: A, that
Anthony Floyd Wainwright intentionally touched or
struck Carmen Gayheart against her will; or
Anthony Floyd Wainwright intentionally caused
bodily harm to Carmen Gayheart.

The defendant has entered a plea of not
guilty. This means you must presume or believe
that the defendant is innocent. The presumption
stays with the defendant as to each material
allegation in the indictment, through each stage
of the trial until it has been overcome by the
evidence to the exclusion of and beyond a
reasonable doubt.

To overcome the defendant’s presumption of
innocence, the State has the burden of proving the
following two elements: Number one, that the
crimes with which the defendant is charged were
committed, and, number two, the defendant is the
person who committed the crimes. The defendant is
not required to prove anything.

Whenever the words "reasonable doubt" are
used, you must consider the following: A
reasonable doubt is not a possible doubt, a
speculative, imaginary or forced doubt. Such a

doubt must not influence you to return a verdict
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of not guilty if you have an abiding conviction of
guilt.

On the other hand, if after carefully
considering, comparing and weighing all of the
evidence, there is not an abiding conviction of
guilt, or if having a conviction, it is one which
is not stable, but one which wavers and
vacillates, then the charge is not proved beyond
every reasonable doubt and you must find the
defendant not guilty because the doubt is
reasonable.

It is to the evidence introduced upon this
trial and to it alone that you are to look for
that proof.

A reasonable doubt as. to the gquilt of the
defendant may arise from the evidence, conflict in
the evidence or lack of evidence. If you have a
reasonable doubt, you should find the defendant
not guilty. If you have no reasonable doubt, you
should find the defendant guilty.

It is up to you to decide what evidence is
reliable. You should use your common sense in
deciding which is the best evidence and which

evidence should not be relied upon in considering

your verdict.
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You may find some of the evidence not

reliable or less reliable than other evidence in
the case. You should consider how the witnesses
acted as well as what they said. And some of the
things you should consider are these: Did the
witness seem to have an opportunity to see and
know the things about which that witness
testified? Did the witness seem to have an
accurate memory? Was the witness honest and
straightforward in answering the attorney’s
questions? Did the witness have some interest in
how the case should be decided? Does the witness’
testimony agree with the other testimony and other
evidence in the case? Has the witness been
offered or received any money, preferred treatment
Oor any other benefit in order to get the witness
to testify? Had any pressure or threat been used
against the witness that affected the truth of the
witness’ testimony? Did the witness at some other
time make a statement that was inconsistent with
the testimony he gave in court? Was it proved
that the witness had been convicted of a crime?
Was it proved that the general reputation of the
witness for telling the truth and being honest was

bad?
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You may rely upon your own conclusions about
the witnesses. A juror may believe or disbelieve
all or any part of the evidence or the testimony
of any witness.

Expert witnesses are like other witnesses
with one exception, the law permits an expert
witness to give his or her opinibn. However, an
expert’s opinion is only reliable when given on a
subject about which you believe them to be an
expert. Like other witnesses you may believe or
disbelieve all or any part of an expert’s
testimony.

You should use great caution in relying on
the testimony of a witness who claims to -- you're
not requesting the instruction?

MR. BLAIR: That’'s correct.

THE COURT: The Constitution requires the
State to prove its accusations against the
defendant. It is not necessary for the defendant
to disprove anything, nor is the defendant
required to prove his innocence. It's up to the
State to prove the defendant’s guilt by evidence.

The defendant exercised a fundamental right
by choosing not to be a witness in this case. You

must not view this as an admission of guilt or be
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influenced by it in any way in your decision. No
juror should ever be concerned that a defendant
did or did not take the witness stand to give
testimony in the case.

A statement claimed to have been made by the
defendant outside of court has been placed before
you. Such a statement should always be considered
with caution and be weighed with great care to
make certain that it was freely and voluntarily
made. Therefore, you must determine from the
evidence that the defendant'’s alleged statement
was knowingly, voluntarily and freely made.

In making this determination, you should
consider the total circumstances, including but
not limited to: Number one, whether when the
defendant made the statement, he had been

threatened in order to get him to make it. And,

number two, whether anyone had promised him

anything in order to get him to make the

o

statement. If you conclude the defendant’s out of
court statement was not freely and voluntarily
made, you should disregard it.

These are some general rules that apply to
your discussions when you retire to consider your

verdict. You must follow these rules in order to
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return a lawful verdict. If you fail to follow
the law, your verdict would be a miscarriage of
justice. And there’s no reason for failing to
follow the law in this case. And all of us are
depending upon you to make a wise and legal
decision in this case.

This case must be decided only upon the
evidence that you have heard from the answers of
the witnesses and have seen in the form of -
exhibits in evidence, and on these instructions.
This case must not be decided for or against
anyone because you feel sorry for anyone or are
angry at anyone.

Remember, the lawyers are not on trial. Your
feelings about them should not influence your
decision in this case. Your duty is to determine
if the defendant is guilty or not guilty in accord
with the law.

It is judge’s job to determine what a proper
sentence would be if the defendant is gquilty.

Whatever verdict you render must be i

unanimous. That is each juror must agree on the

T ———"

same verdict.
It’s entirely proper for a lawyer to talk to

a witness about the testimony that witness would
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give if called to the courtroom. The witness
should not be discredited by talking to a lawyer
about his or her testimony.

Feelings of prejudice, bias and sympathy are
not legally reasonable doubts and they should not
be discussed by any of you in any way. Your
verdict must be based on your views of the
evidence and on the law as contained with these
instructions.

Deciding a verdict is exclusively your job.

I cannot participate in that decision in any way.
Please disregard anything that I may have said or
done that causes you to believe that I prefer one
verdict over another.

You will have this verdict form to take with
you into the jury room. Leaving off the formal
parts, it reads as follows: Verdict of the Jury:
We, the Jury, find as follows as to the defendant
in this case, as to Count I of the indictment, the
charge is murder in the first degree, check only
one as to this count: Choice A, the defendant is
guilty of murder in the first degree as charged in
the indictment; Choice B, the defendant is guilty
of the lesser included offense of murder in the

second degree while armed with a firearm; Choice

LYNN SAPP, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER

Route 1, Box 110E, Jasper, Florida 32052

(904) 792-3204

O,



10

L1

12

1.3

14

HELS

16

17

18

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

1996
C, the defendant is guilty of the lesser included
offense of murder in the second degree; Choice D,
the defendant is guilty of the lesser included
offense of manslaughter while armed with a
firearm; Choice E, the defendant is guilty of the
lesser included offense of manslaughter; and
Choice F, the defendant is not guilty.

As to Count II of the indictment, the charge
is robbery while armed with a firearm. Check only
one. Choice A, the defendant is guilty of robbery
while armed with a firearm as charged in the
indictment; Choice B, the defendant is guilty of
the lesser included offense of robbery while armed
with a weapon; Choice C, the defendant is guilty
of the lesser included offense of robbery; and
Choice D, the defendant is guilty of the lesser
included offense of grand theft in the third
degree; Choice E, the defendant is not guilty.

As to Count III of the indictment that
charges kidnapping while armed with a firearm,
check only one. Choice A, the defendant is guilty
of kidnapping while armed with a firearm as
charged in the indictment; Choice B, the defendant
is guilty of the lesser included offense of

kidﬁapping; Choice C, the defendant is guilty of
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the lesser included offense of false imprisonment;
and Choice D, the defendant is not guilty.

As to Count IV of the indictment that charges
sexual battery while armed with a firearm. Check
only one. Choice A, the defendant is quilty of
sexual battery upon a person twelve years of age
or older while armed with a firearm as charged in
the indictment; Choice B, the defendant is guilty
of the lesser included offense of sexual battery
upon a person twelve years of age or older with
great physical force; Choice C, the defendant is
guilty of the lesser included offense of sexual
battery upon a person twelve years of age or
older, with slight physical force; Choice D, the
defendant is guilty of the lesser included offense
of battery; and Choice E, the defendant is not
guilty.

So say we all, dated at Green Cove Springs,
Clay County, Florida, this blank day of May, 1995.
The date for a blank is left open intentionally so
that the foreman of the jury is required to write
the date on the verdict form. And the foreman of

the jury should sign the verdict form and return

it to the courtroom. Either a man or a woman may

be the foreman of the jury.
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Your first order of business upon leaving the
courtroom would be to select one of your number to
serve as foreman of the jury.

The foreman of the jury presides over your
deliberations like the chairman of a meeting.

Any corrections or additions to the
instructions as given, by the State?

MR. BLAIR: None by the State, Your Honor.

THE COURT: By the Defense?

MR. TAYLOR: ©No, sir.

THE COURT: Very well. Members of the jury,
the earlier cautionary instructions you were given
are now expressly lifted. You are directed to
retire to the jury room to discuss the case and to
reach a verdict.

We now thank the one alternate juror. And
this will conclude your service. Please call and
see if it’s necessary for your return. Call Room
105 for Thursday at nine, if we’re having court
that day.

MR. TAYLOR: Judge, may we approach a moment?

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

(WHEREUPON, THESE PROCEEDINGS WERE HAD AT THE

BENCH, OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE WAINWRIGHT JURY, AS

FOLLOWS : )
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MR. TAYLOR: I understood that the first
case, that the actual exhibits did not go into the
jury room. I introduced some specifically that I
want before the jury. I didn’t know what the
Court’s position was going to be.

THE COURT: What we did, we told them they
could have all of the exhibits, and they could ask
for any that they wanted specifically. If you
prefer just to send them all back, or I can tell
them that they can have any exhibit. I think all
Oor none.

MR. TAYLOR: I have to ask that all of mine
be put in, because we never did, because we were
running short. I never actually published them in
their entirety, that one letter.

MR. BLAIR: No objection to everything going
back.

THE COURT: We’ll send it all back.

(WHEREUPON, THE CONFERENCE AT THE BENCH WAS

CONCLUDED, AND THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDINGS WERE HAD IN

THE PRESENCE OF THE WAINWRIGHT JURY.)

THE COURT: You will have this verdict form
in the jury room with you, and you will have all
of the items which have been received in evidence

as exhibits, will be brought into the jury room.
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1 If you desire to Ccommunicate with the Court in any
2 way, please write your questions, knock on the

3 door, and the bailiff will be right outside. If

4 you have any other needs, also communicate in

5 writing to the bailiff.

6 Thank you. And you may retire to consider

7 your verdict.

8 And thank the alternate juror. You’'re free

9 to go.
10 (WHEREUPON, THE JURY RETIRED TO THE JURY ROOM FOR
11 DELIBERATIONS AT 4:27 P.M.)
12 (WHEREUPON, THESE PROCEEDINGS WERE HAD AT THE

13 BENCH. )

14 MR. TAYLOR: Judge, there’s been a question
15 from the jury. I have reviewed that question with
16 Mr. Blair, and I've reviewed that question with my
7 client at counsel table. The proposed response in
18 writing that has been submitted to the Court,

19 drafted by Mr. Blair with my one hundred percent
20 concurrence. And my client understands. We

21 requested that a response be sent into the jury

22 room.

23 THE COURT: Anything else by the State?

24 MR. BLAIR: Judge, you might inquire of

25 Mr. Wainwright if he understands and agrees with
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE THIRD
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA, IN AND
FOR HAMILTON COUNTY, FLORIDA.

ON CHANGE OF VENUE TO CLAY
COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA CASE NO. 94-150-CF

| FILED IN OFFICE
THIS THE =0 ZPAY OF

ANTHONY FLOYD WAINWRIGHT, qg"
Defendant. . 19 ~OW g n A
AT - Q Cli K Vi

ELAINE RO /”- R
CLERK OF COURTS

VERDICT OF THE JURY HAMILTON COUNTY, FLORIDA

We, the Jury, find as follows, as to the defendant in this case:

As to Count | of the Indictment that charges MURDER IN THE FIRST
DEGREE (Check only one as to this Count):

‘-/a. The defendant is GUILTY of MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE
as charged in the Indictment.

b. The defendant is GUILTY of the lesser included offense of
MURDER IN THE SECOND DEGREE WHILE ARMED WITH A
FIREARM.

C. The defendant is GUILTY of the lesser included offense of

MURDER IN THE SECOND DEGREE.

d. The defendant is GUILTY of the lesser included offense of
MANSLAUGHTER WHILE ARMED WITH A FIREARM.

e. The defendant is GUILTY _of the lesser included offense of
MANSLAUGHTER.

f. The defendant is NOT GUILTY.



As to Count Il of the Indictment that charges ROBBERY WHILE ARMED
TH A FIREARM (Check only one as to this Count):

/.

The defendant is GUILTY of ROBBERY WHILE ARMED WITH
A FIREARM as charged in the Indictment.

The defendant is GUILTY of the lesser included offense of
ROBBERY WHILE ARMED WITH A WEAPON.

The defendant is GUILTY of the lesser included offense of
ROBBERY.

The defendant is GUILTY of the lesser included offense of
GRAND THEFT IN THE THIRD DEGREE.

The defendant is NOT GUILTY.

As to Count lll of the Indictment that chérges KIDNAPPING WHILE ARMED
WITH A FIREARM (Check only one as to this Count)

The defendant is GUILTY of KIDNAPPING WHILE ARMED WITH A
FIREARM as charged in the Indictment.

The defendant is GUILTY of the lesser included offense of
KIDNAPPING.

The defendant is GUILTY of the lesser included offense of
FALSE IMPRISONMENT.

The defendant is NOT GUILTY.




As to Count IV of the Indictment that charges SEXUAL BATTERY WHILE
ARMED WITH A FIREARM (Check only one as to this Count)

/ a. The defendant is GUILTY of SEXUAL BATTERY UPON A PERSON
TWELVE YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER WHILE ARMED WITH A
FIREARM as charged in the Indictment.

b. The defendant is GUILTY of the lesser included offense of SEXUAL
BATTERY UPON A PERSON TWELVE YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER
WITH GREAT PHYSICAL FORCE.

c. The defendant is GUILTY of the iesser included offense of SEXUAL
BATTERY UPON A PERSON TWELVE YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER
WITH SLIGHT PHYSICAL FORCE.

d. The defendant is GUILTY of the lesser included offense of
BATTERY.

e. The defendant is NOT GUILTY.

So say we all.

Dated at Green Cove Springs, Clay County, Florida, this 2074 day of
May, 1995.

Witthe § Wkt
FOREMAN [/ 2]
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE THIRD
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA, IN AND
FOR HAMILTON COUNTY, FLORIDA.

ON CHANGE OF VENUE TO CLAY
COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA CASE NO. 94-150-CF
VS~
ANTHONY FLOYD WAINWRIGHT,
Defendant.
ADVISORY SENTENCE
(CHECK ONLY ONE)
1/ A majority of the jury, by a vote of __1 .. ~¢) | advise and

recommend to the court that it impose the death penalty upon
Anthony Floyd Wainwright.

The jury advises and recommends to the court that it impose a
sentence of life imprisonment upon Anthony Floyd Wainwright
without possibility of parole for 25 years.

So say we the jury.

Dated at Green Cove Springs, Clay County, Florida, this 7/5'7'# day of
June, 1995.

FOREMAN

(Wi € W/ _ aﬂ
ﬂ d

FILED IN QFFICE
__THIS THE _J_.;Q.g_ DAY OF

PR IGT e

ELAINE ROZIER -
CLERK OF COURTS
HAMILTON COUNTY, FLORIDA
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facilities, I think, that whoever their in-house person
was in the medical unit talk to Mr. Wainwright and see

about giving him something to calm him and let him

sleep.

That, as I understood it, had not occurred and
because of all of this, and the sequence would be right,
that would be the next day, we were asking that his

medicaticns, I felt that that would help, filed that

' motion. And as a result of the filing of the motion,

Dr. Mhatre, who was known to the Court and to all cof the
parties as a psychiatrist, was in fact appointed to
either see or consult with Mr. Wainwright. And,
ultimately, I believe He did recommend some medication.

Q And did the activities, the bazaar activity
and conduct of Mr. Wainwright continue?

A Well, throughout the period of my
representation, incidents occurred. They were never as
bad as they were on that and I believe that was May 22,
but I may be incorrect, May 22, 23, somewhere in that
range. Those were the worst by far. They continued
from time to time. Again, it would flare up during the
sentencing phase of the case. But‘none of it was as
significant as it was around the issue of the

microphone.

Q and you never obtained a written report from
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Dr. D'Errico?

A | No, sir, I did not. I may have seen some but
I did not -- there was ancther lawyer, a young lawyer,
that was working with me by the name of Sean Owens and
part of his duties were to try to interact with Mike
D'Frrico. It seems to me I know I have seen some
documents, but I don't believe we wanted a formal report
prepared after the evaluations that Dr. D'Errico had
conducted on Mr. Wainwright.

Q Mr. Taylor, were you aware at that time that
Anthony Wainwright had, if you will, for lack of a
better word, he suffered some sort of mental problems
since like age four or five, throughout --

A He had a number of incidents that occurred at
an early age and then they continued on and he had

raceived treatment. We had access to those records.

Dr. D'EFrrico had access to those records. I talked to

family and we may have, either someone from my office,
including Cwens, may have actually been in or the
investigator may have been in communication directly
with some of the personnel. I’don't recall any specific
conversation myself with any of the North Carolina
medical people or the treating facilities.

Q and with regards to D'Errico, you and I have

earlier discussed that and you made me aware that there
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were ne written reports and I am assuming that was a

strategical thing?

A Yes, sir.

Q With regards to the reports?

iy Yes, sir.

Q But at the point in time that I am talking

about in court after the stun belt and after the

microphone incident, would it be safe to say from that

point on in that trial that your relationship with the

defendant Wainwright was pretty much gone?

A It was certainly affected. I wouldn't
characterize it as gone.

Q Preceding that, there were a numbér of
incidents where you were su;prised by DNA evidence and
that sort of thing?

A That's true.

0 We're going to talk about that in a minute,

el

but what I was going to ask next was after the stun belt

incident and the microphone, that combined with all of

the other matters that had gone on during the course of

the trial, did you make any effort to bring it to the

Court's attention regarding the cumulative effect of all

these things on the deterioration of your

attorney/client relaticnship®?

A I don't know that I phrased it in that way.

I
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A Correct.

Q Why did you not present evidence during the
penalty phase pertaining to Mr. Wainwright following
Hamilton? There is a statutory mitigator deaiing with
that.

A I thought we were getting that in candidly
through the testimeny that had come in through those two

previous witnesses. You can basically ask a jury to
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take into account everything they have heard earlier and

argue from that. At léast, that's always been my
understanding.,

The issues concerning the leader/follower, I
had hoped to get through and did I think in some ways
through the mother, who was a delightful person and made
a very good witness. Mr. Wainwright refused to
participate in the penalty phase individually. He was
not geing to say anything. IHe would not give me the
authority to go into certain areas, either with his
mother or if I had wanted to bring Mike D'Errico. on,
which we had already decided we probably wouldn't do,
but even so, I wasn't going to be zllowed to do that and
he was rather adamant.

So I guess Monday morning gquarterbacking, we
did the best with what we thought we had at the time. I

was comfortable with the testimony -- I think I brought
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it in through at least two witnesses and maybe a third
during the trial and I was comfortable with that having
come in, that he cleariy -- and then his mother's
testimony that we got cut that he was always a loner,
wouldn't communicate basically with people, pretty much
just wés off by himself, and would sometimes go off with
older people and be gone for a couple of days, was all

consistent with that approach. That's how I am

 fecoilecting it and I think that's what the record

shows. What else should have been done, I thought it
was sufficient at the time.

Q Mr. Taylor, the record reflects_that at the
time that Mr. Wainwright stopped you on the examination
of his mother during the penalty phase, apparently there
was a bench conference and you indicated to the judge
that you were getting ready to go into an area wherein
the mother was going to testify about some sexual abuse
against the defendant Wainwright when he was a younger

man. D¢ you recall that?

A Yes, sir.

Q And subsequent to that, you announced that to
the Court?

A I didn't announce —-

9] I don't mean out lohd. You had a bench
conference?
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A I simply tried to alert Judge Douglas that I
was absclutely being stopped from going further by the
client. I think it was the state attorney that brought
to the Court's attention the actual subject matter. I
was not even going to disclose that aspect of it based
upon an attorney-client communication and the
instructions I had from my client. I simply Was saying

there are areas that we're going to go into and we can't

and I am being directed to stop, words tb that éffect.

I can't go forward with the witness. I am being told to
stop. Anthony was quite adamaht about it and really
concernad about it and he —-- there is no question in my
mind that he didn't want to put his mother through it.
He didn't even want me to put his mother on the stand at
all.

Q- In essence, what happened from that point on,
though, was no cher mitigation from the mother at all?

A That's true.

Q About anything?

A That's true.

Q Let me ask if you recall --

MR. ARNOLD: Judge, it may make it easier --
for some reason I only ended up with one copy of
these reports -- if I could stand up there by

Mr, Taylor, would you have any obijections to
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THE COURT: I think you are asking him does
he disagree —-- has his experience been that he
disagrees with psychiatric evaluations, That's
about as far as ycu can go. And you do want an
answer to that question?

MR. ARNOLD: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You can answer that question.

THE WITNESS: I have seen it both ways to
tell the Efﬂth. I have heard from almést evéry
shrink or psychiatrist that we have uséd in cases
that there can be a spread of four to five points
either way, just on scoring alcone. Also,

affecting the ability of the evaluation at any

" given occasion is the depression that the

individual may be undef at the time of the
evaluation. And the depression is brought on by
stress. Stress i1s brought on by either
incarceration or facing a trial.

So if the ultimate question is knowing
everything that I knew in this case, why wasn't
something more done, I had the benefit of a
psychologist that I had a great deal of
confidence in, Michael D'Errico. And, candidly,
his evaluations were similar to those that are

found in at least a third summary there of
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exhibit 5 about the anti-social personality
disorder and conduct disorder and it was not
something that I wanted to get into in

conjunction with the trial of this case.

BY MR. ARNOLD:

Q Having testified that in most of those cases
you dealt with there was a difference of four to five

points between the performance scale versus verbal

'Jéiills,ﬁﬁhy'iériﬁ then whén.all of these reportslréfledt

a 30 point difference that you did not deem that
sufficient enough to cause alarm and bring in other
experts?

A I don't think it ever came up, candidly. I
knoew T relied a great deal on Mike D'Errico.. He was a
forensic psychologist who has worked and been assigned
to the Florida State Hospital in Chattahoochee for a
number of years. We sat down and went through basically
all of the reports. I did talk -- I thought about
trying to get it in. The way we ultimately attempted to
get == I think the prosecutor used it as a catch all
mitigator. But the way we tried to get it in, as best
we could, under the iimited circumstances, was through
the mother.

Q The next question was going to be and is, why

did you not simply list as witnesses and bring-intoc this
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courthouse any of these psychologists who could have
testified that since age four or five, Anthony
Wainwright exhibited all of these personality disorders
as a mitigatdr? You agree that as a statutory mitigator
and non-statutory mitigator, those were relevant?

A At the time, I was working under some pretty
strict instructions by the client to do literally

nothing and don't get into that, don't get into the

hbéét, don't 6pén the doors on a couple of other things.

I was allowed to put his mother on and theh,
unfortunately, that came to a halt. I thought she was
doing a pretty darn good job on the stand. She was a
very credible witness.

Q You will agree with me, will you not,
Mr. Taylor, that not withstanding whatever job his
mother was doing, she could not have testified as to
these evaluations and reports?

A That's correct.

0 The only way you could have gotten all that
testimony in was through some of these psychologists or

through introduction of those exhibits?

A Or through Michael D'Errico, that's correct.
Q And none of that was offered in mitigation?
A No, sir.

Q There was another issue --
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MR. ARNGLD: Judge, I am not trying to be
disobedient and I can't remember in your prder
dealing with that first.claim about those
statements that I talked about. We went into it
earlier. Is it permissible for me to go into
those-twd statements? It is not.

THE COURT: Let me ask the state for the
record, four and five, no.objection?

' MR. DEKLE: No objection.
THE COURT: Received in evidence.
(DEFENSE EXHIBITS NO. 4 AND 5 WERE RECEIVED IN

EVIDENCE AT THIS TIME.)

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. DEKLE:

Q Dealing with State's Exhibit 1 through 5 or,
excuse me, Defense Exhibit 1 through 5, these were
documents in your possession you gave to Dr. D'Efrico;
is that correct?

A Yas, sir.

Q And these were documents that were never seen
by thé state up until the time that Mr. --

A I wouldn't think —--

Q You didn't disclose them?

A I certainly didn't turn them ever over to

yrall.
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Q You had something we did not know about?
\
A True.
Q And there is information in these documents

that would be detrimental to Mr. Wainwright's defense on
the penalty phase; is there not?

A Yes, sir,

Q Stuff about his aggressiveness and conduct

disorder and prognosis that looked like he was going

to —— he had no remorse for crimes that he committed and

all sorts of material of that nature in all of these
documents; is that correct?

A I don't know. You may be over characterizing.
Let me put it this way. To answer your question, after
consultation with Michael D'Errico, with Séan Owens and
myself and yet at least one other lawyer concerning the
penalty-phase and evideﬁce and the presentation, the
consensus was we would do mofe harm than good and we
would ke better served to try to get some of this decent
information in through a nonprofessional witness. And
in this case, it turned out to be his mother, who was,
at the time the decision was made, I thought a good
witness., Obviously, the jury disagreed.

Q For example, Dr. D'Errico diagnosed
Mr, Wainwright as being a sociopath; is that correct?

A I don't have a report from Dr. D'Errico.
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Q Having antisccial personality character”

A Dr. D'Errico did not -- Dr. D'Errico's ov.
evaluation for purposes of whether we put something on
would not have been favorable to the client.

0 In other words, he had information that would
have been harmful to the client if it had been deveioped
on cross-—examination?

A Yes, sir.

Qm --Aﬁd Mr:mBiéir was going to be Cross¥examinihg}
is that correct?

A I don't know who y'all would have had cross
exam.

Q Mr. Blair ultimately cross-examined; did he .
not? Mr. Blair ultimately handled the penalty phase;
did he not?

A Yes,

Q And you were aware that Mr. Blair was going to
handle the penalty phase if we called any witnesses?

A Yes, but that wouldn't have impacted my
decision.

Q What I am leading up to, Mr. Blair is a pretty
good cross examiner, isn't he?

A Yes, both of you could bully people around.

) And this likewise Mr. David Coolthank

(phonetic) had information that would have been
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detrimental to the client that could have been developed
on cross-—examination?

A My recollection, not having looked at those
documents for a couple cof years or more, is that for
every arguably positive issue in them, there was
certainly negative information that would have had to
have been explained whefher it would have been through

by back dooring it through Dr. D'Errico or bringing the

individuals down themselves.

One other thing that I remember discussing
specifically with D'Errico was the date and age of some
of the documents in the evaluation. We were more
concerned with a current impression that a jury could
get in the penalty phase by somecne who had examined
Mr. Wainwright more recently, for example, than somebody
that had done it when he was 15 or 16. These were all

things that were being tessed around.

And right or wrong, the decision was made that
we're going to go and try to get in under the broad
brush of a sympathetié witness some of this information.
I thought as to a lot of it without the technical
aspects, we got it in. We got in about his problems as
a child and head injuries and treatment, the family's
frustration with trying to get him to everybody that

they knew about until we had to stop.
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o] In other words, you decided to introduce the
evidence through the mother's testimony?

A We tried to get in as much as we couid through
mom. And, candidly, we —- the state was not objecting
to some of that coming in and I kept every time I could
get a little bit in, then I would try to get a little

bit more in.

0 Mom was a whole lot more —- a whole lot less

réusceptible to cross-examination than these experts

would have been?

2y In fact, I don't think she was cross-examined.
If sé, very briefly.

Q Mothers are not people that people want to
cross—-examine and beat up on; is that correct?

A The problems facing Anthony Wainwright were
not brought about by Mrs. Wainwright. She, therefore,
was a distinct plus in the defense column as a witness
as copposed to a mental health expert.

0 And Mr. Wainwright didn't want you to put her
on the stand?

A Not at all.

Q And you negotiated with him to get him tc
allow you to put her on the witness stand?

A I did.

0 And you were finally able to prevail upon him
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to allow you to put her on the witness stand?

A Under narrow circumstances.

Q And you put her on the witness stand and got
into as much mitigation as Mr. Wainwright would allow
you to get into on the witness stand; is that correct?

A In hindsight, and you know perhaps I should
have asked for a 30 minute break and more time with the

client, but as I recall, we did take at least one break

and the Court did'give me some time. I tried to explain

as best I could how, what, when, where, and why. in
Mr. Walnwright's defense, throughout, he did not want
his family to be involved in the case. That is not

unusual. In his particular case, he was more adamant

than most and we tried to accommodate until we felt that'

it was absolutely hurting him.

Q' In the guilt phase, you.discussed your case
thecory with Mr. Wainwright; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And Mr. Wainwright approved that case theory:

did he not?
A Well, 1 méan, he -- when you are discussing
the case with a client, it is not that cut and dried.

But basically you sit and try to explain where you are

' going with the case. He certainly never said that's

stupid, you can't do this, or anything like that, unlike
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in certain other aspects of the case. So to answer your
question, Anthony Wainwright knew where we were going
and I had no reservation that that was approved by the
client. He didn't specifically say den't ask this or do
that.

Q But when you got something he didn't want you
to do, he let you know about it?

A - No guestioen about that.

Q  And you were very careful to make sure that as
a result of that, that he knew what you were doing and
where you were going and understood why you. were doing
the things you were doing?

A To the best of cur ability, that's what we
tried to do. It was like walking on egg shells.

0 As far as Dr. D'Errico was concerned, he told
you that Mr. Wainﬁright knew the difference between
right and wrong; did he not?

A I don't have any specific reports from
Dr. D'Errico. He understood the proceedings and knew
what we were doing. He had been institutionalized. He
understood about testing. My goodness, he had been
given MMPIs and Wechsler and all of the tests repeatedly
over his lifetime. So the consensus was that he
understood the nature of the proceedings.

If you are talking about anything else, yes,
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PSYCHOLGLCAL EYALUATION

(Review and Summary of previous psychiatric and psychological evaluations)

1. Brief review of child's symptomatology: Anthony is a 17 year, old white
male who seems to have a long term history of learning and behavioral
problems with significant written history of such problems starting
around the 5th grade. Seemingly, this was about the time he was placed

in a learning disability classroom. :

He has been evaluated by a variety of professionals, including school
psychelogists, private and public psychologists, and psychiatrists within
institutional settings. Here, generally he has been perceived as having
a learning disability along with many other characteristics that have
been disruptive, such as impulsivity, excessive talking in school,

easily swayed by peers, a lot of negative attention-getting behaviors

in school (f.e. spitballs, pulling hair, etc.), occasional bedwetting,
defiance of rules imposed by parents and other authoritative figures, etc.

More recently he has had more serious problems with the Taw, such as
appeqring in court for making obscene phone calls, vandalism to homes,
setting fire to garbage on a neighbor's porch, trying- to pass off
Dramamine as an illegal drug, throwing a stick at a person's car
windshield, and more recently has stolen a car.

In reference to his family, he seems to be somewhat emotionally detached
despite the family usually being described in most evaluations as being
very supportive and concerned. Anthony does seem to feel that his family
has often expected too much out of him and evén expressed at times he
wished to be removed from the home. .

It is felt that generally the family has been supportive in trying to
get help for Anthony and often in a very desperate manner, and now
pretty much are quite exhausted emotionally.

IT. Reyiew of Psychiatric Evaluations: Testing over time has generally
refiected Anthoqy's intellectual abiTity to be within the Tow average
range, usually in the Tower section of that range, with a significant
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PSYCHOLOGICAL EVALUATION w2 Anthony Wainwright

difference between verbal and performance scores, whfch are consistgh@
with a child who is going to have a ot of difficulties in the traditional

school system. Achievement testing also presents Tow average range in )
most areas, again particularly not only verbal but also often difficulties
in visual-motor areas. However, generally al] testing yef]ected.the

child to have particular difficulties in verbal areas (1.g. reading,
vocabulary, etc.) which would probably explain a lot of his discouragement

in the traditional school system.

However, on the other hand, seemingly often Anthony was expected to do
average work on the part of his parents, and on the part of the
school system.

y North Carolina Memorial Hospital on 3/25/85,
¥ have family treatment at the local Mental

se camp treatment, such as the Wilderness .
through with the latter of these recommendations,

amp at his request prior to completion.

After being evaluated b
it was recommended that the
tlealth Center and/or in-hou
Camp. The parents followed
but pulling him out of the C

Also, on 11/4/86 he was evaluated at Cumberiland Hospital. He was
diagnosed as "“conduct disorder, under-socialized, aggressive, substance
-abuser, with mixed sporadic and verbal Tearning disability". They

also felt there was a Posstbility of d manic-depressive disorder which
needed to be ruled out within a longterm in-patient setting, where
possible medication support could be used. Aiso, possibly such an
in-house treatment would be heTpful in helping him break down some of
his strong cognitive defenses and denial systems which seemed to make
it very difficult to get beyond surface issues with Anthony.

111. Recommendations: After conferring with Dr, Lenore DeHar of the
Division of Mental Health in Raleigh, I have concluded that, despite
Anthony's many behavioral problems historically, that this boy at least
deserves a good in-house psychiatric evaluation and possibly treatment
by psychotherapy and/or some medicational support. Whether this is
done within the prison system and/or outside is not really one of

_concern here as long as he has this apportunity.

M. David Coulthard, M. A,
License # 734
Tarboro Clinic, P.A.
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3425 Meirose Road — Phone (919) regmnns. A general authorization for the rerease of

Fayetteville, N.C. 28304 medical or other information is NOT sufficient for this

purpose.
Anthony F. Wainwright DATE OF ADMISSION: 11-4-86
DOB: 10-22-70 DATE OF DISCHARGE: 11-14-86

IDENTIFYING DATA: Anthony is a 16 year old male who was brought here
for evaluation by his father, Ken Wainwright.

CHIEF COMPLAINT AND REASON FOR ADMISSION: Anthony was in detention for

a month in Greenville, North Carolina, after stealing an automobile and
being picked up for minor traffic violations. He went to court om 11-4-86
and was brought here the same day for a 10-day evaluation.

Anthony dates his problems back to the seventh grade when he began to get
in trouble in school. At that time, he got in with the wrong crowd and
eventually became involved in delinquent behavior, Including the use of
drugs and alcohol. He was evaluated at Chapel Hill on an outpatient basis
at a younger age and was told that he did not have a learning problem.

Anthony was sent to Wilderness Camp about a year ago. After 10 months there,
he ran away and returned home where he has been for the past several months.
Since coming home, he has gotten back into drugs and aleohol (as much as he
can get his hands on) and gotten back into delinquent behavior, which includes
vandalism, wrecking his parents' car, and later stealing another car. Because

of his inability to take care of himself or to funmection well in his parents’
he come here for an evaluation to determinea

whether he should attempt to get long-term residential treatment or go the

training school route.

PAST PSYCHIATRIC ﬁISTORY AND OTHER ESSENTIAL DATA: Authony has had impaired
functioning at school and in hig interpersonal and family relationships for
many years. He is beginmning to develop a long history of delinquent behavior,
drug and alcohol usage, and of course is beginning to suffer the long-tétrm

consequences of this behavior.

o His father is the successful owper of a Piggly Wiggly Store, his mother is

active in community affairs, and he hag a2 sister that 1s successful in school
and at home. I talked with the parents on several occasions, they are truly
concerned and are desperate to find sclutions for this youngster. He dislikes
school and would like to quit, and gets below average grades. He was enrolled
in a private school in the seventh grade, but was expelled because of failure
to perform, along with disruptive behavior. Parents have exhausted their
insurance and are looking for a brief evaluation that will help them decide
which way to go, either to seek lenger term residential treatment or to stop

rescuing Anthony and have hinm
sibility for his actions.

Axig T Conduct disorder, undersocialized, aggressive,

PROVISIONAL DIAGNOSIS:
. 312.00

Axis II: No diagnosis.
Axis III: No diagnosis.

f— Name ) ‘ ' # Attending Physician
Anthony F, Wainwright 00~-49-92 Robert Jackson, M.D.
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This Ii...rmation has been disciosed to you from
records whaose confidentiality is protected by Faderal

cumt.’e"and Law. Federal Regulation (42 CFR, Part 2) prohibits

Hospltal you from making any further disclosure of it without

the specific written consent of the person to whom it

3425 Meirose Road — Phone (919) 488eTtdss, or as otherwise permitted by such
" Fayetteville, N.C. 28304 regulations. A general authorization for the release of

' medical or ether information is NOT sufficient for this

purpasa.

DATE OF ADMISSION: 11-4-86

Anthony F. Wainwright
DATE OF DISCHARGE: 11-14~86

Page 2

MENTAT STATUS ON ADMISSION: Anthony appeared for his interview neatly
dressed, well-groomed and responsive. I had seen him the night before,
and on the day I examined him he seemed less angry and somewhat more

He was responsive to questions, at times elaborated on
questions and volunteered additiomal information., -His speech was normal,
relevant and coherent, with normal associations. There was no evidence

of thought disorder or underlying psychosis. Except for a "chip on the
shoulder" attitude, along with his anger about being here, his mood was
slightly depressed and he showed mo remorse or shed tears over his current
situation. He appeared to be of average intelligence, was oriented in all
three spheres, had good memory for past and recent events, paid attention
and could concentrate on what was being said. His insight and judgment

were obviously poor.

cooperative.

PHYSICAL EXAMINATION: Within normal limits. ﬁ;

LABORATORY DATA: Hematology, urinanalysis, Multi-25 panel, and drug screen
were all within normal limits or négative.

SUMMARY OF PSYCHOLOGLCAL TESTING: This 16 year old male is generally perform~
ing in a Low Average range of intellectual achievement. There is a significant
discrepancy between his verbal and nonverbal performances, in favor of the

Further, this discrepancy is of such magnitude as to warrant a

latter.
A Mild to Moderate

diagnosis of Learning Disability affecting verbal skills.
Depression is indicated, along with Conduct Disorder, undersocilalized, aggres-

sive type, and Sporadic Substance Abuse. Anthony's depression has been
influenced by his verbal deficiency and familial conflicts which have inspired

significantly negative perspectives on himself. He is evidencing a low toler-

~ance - for stressy-in addition to moter restlessness that may be purely a

function of his stress or may signify a possible bipolar condition.

Anthony was admitted to the Adolescent Unit for evaluation.

o~

HOSPITAL COURSE:
He was seen daily by me in individual sessions, was seen by his hospital

therapist twice a week, participated in the activities and group meetings
on the unit, and attended school. I puitposely did not start him on medication

because of the short time that he was here.

Both parents and Lora Kahl, MSW, were present for the initial family session.
Although I was umable to elicit problems in the marriage or areas of disagree-—
ment between the parents, I'm sure there are many things that we don't know
that will come up later in longer term treatment. Both parents say that he had
the colic for ¢ months after he was borm, which was a very stressful time for
both Anthony and his mother, but from then on until his current difficulties

began in the fourth grade, they say he was a model child.

During his stay on the unit, Anthony participated reasomnably well in his I
' F )

Name

# Attending Physician q_.
' Robert Jackson, M.D. '

Anthony F. Walnwright 00-49-92
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"FINAL DIAGNOSIS: Axis I:

3425 Melrose Road — Pnones(go‘lg‘) regulations. A general authorization for the rel f
‘Fayatteville, N.C. . s. A general authorization for the release o
Fayetteville 2 medical or other information is NOT sufficient for this

purpose.

DATE OF ADMISSION: 11-4-86

Anthony F. Wainwright
DATE OF DISCHARGE: 11-14-86

Page 3

evaluation. Toward the end of his stay here, he began to focus on going
home and became more disruptive and aggressive toward another male peer.
Although in the beginning he was more open to giving us background history
and talking about himself, as time went on he became more and more defensive,
utilizing denial, aveoidance and manipulation. In the long-term residential
treatment facility, it would probably take up to 3 months to begin to work
through some of this defensiveness before treatment would actually begin.

CONDITION ON DISCHARGE: Anthotty was here primarily for evaluation and has
not made any changes in terms of his ability to function at home or at

school. He talks about going home and working for his father, of going to

a drug treatment program as an outpatient, ete. I have very little confidence
that he will last long in any kind of situatiom that requires him to take

responsibility for himself.

. PROGNOSIS: This youngster has many good resources, but has had to deal

with ongoing problems since the fourth grade. Psychological testing indicates
that there is some depression, possibly a bipolar disorder, and that the
discrepancy between his verbal and performance levels indicate a learning
disability. If he could be treated in a longer term residential setting,
with appropriate structure and firmness, and could be tried on lithium and/or
antidepressant medication, along with ongoing psychotherapy, his prognosis
would be better. Lacking this, he probably will wind up in training school
because of his inability to control his impulses and take respomsibility for

himself.

The mental status examination on discharge remains basically unchanged from
that done on his admission (see above).

) 296.-50
Axis II: Verbal learning disability. 315.90
As mentioned above, ne medications were started because

he was to be here. My recommendation, should he come
give him an adequate trial on lithium and/or antidepres-

DISCHARGE MEDICATIONS:
of the short time that
under treatment, is to
sant medication.

DISPOSITION: The patient was returned to the care of his parents in Tarboro,
Arrangements are being made for him to continue outpatient

North Carolina.
My recommendation is that he be treated

counseling for alcohol and drug abuse.

in a long-term residential treatment center.
reasons this may not be feasible, but I'm concerned that if he doesn't get this

kind of treatment, he will wind up in training school and eventually possibly in

Name

prison, -

Anthony F. Wainwright

C&n&ﬁcfrdisorder; ﬁﬁéefsociﬁiizeﬁ,7aggféssiVE;‘315;00
Substance abuse, mixed, sporadic (by history). 305.92
Rule out bipolar affective disorder, depressed type.

T realize that because of financial

# Attending Physician E
00~49~92 Robert Jackson, M.D,.
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D:  12-4-86
T: 12-4-86

Cumberiand

Hospital

3425 Melrose Road — Phone (919)
‘Fayettaviile, N.C. 28304

pATE OF RHifiSsToN: 11-4-68 .
DATE OF DISCHARGE: 11-14-86
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i TTARBORO CLINIC, TARBORO, N. _.

. MEDICAL CHART
NAME: Wainwright, Anthony
{Last) (First) {(Middle Int.) (Age) (Race) (Sex)
* ADDRESS:
. RELATIVE:

DATE 10/23/87 -
SUMMARY OF REVIEW OF PSYCHIATRIC EVALUATIONS: Anthony is a 17 year old
white maie who presented & nistory of learning and behavioral problens
ever—since—approximatety—the 5th—grade—Atabout—thetLtime hewas also—;
placed—in-a—Learning-Disabilityelassroom—He-has—been—evaluatedbyo—— —
~ variety of professionals. Besides—a learning--disability—he-has-also— . . |
_been perceived as being very impulsive, an excessive talker, & follower
of his peers, presents a Tot of negative attention seeking behaviors (spitballs,
puiTing hair, etc.), occastonal bedwetting, defiance of rules imposed by
: nts-and/or-anthoritative Figures, etc.
; He—atso—haspresentedmore—severe behavior suchas havinmgtu appear
f._#_.i:,q n-court-for-making-ehsence—phone—eatlss—vandalfsmoftwohomess—setting————
fire_to garbage-on-a neighbor's_porch,—trying—to—pass-Dramamine off-as——

. : an_illeqgal drug, throwing a stick at a person's car windshield, and more

recently having stolen a car, etc. 7 _
Emotionally also seemingly he has also felt quite detached from his

; ( tamily, Teels that he does not meet up to their expectations, and has

% expressed-at—-times—that—hewished he would beé removed Trom the home.
Generally,most—evaluations—have—deseribed—the-parentsasbeing—————

very supportive, often quite desperate and frazzled-

; Testing has generally reflected historically that Anthony's intellectual

: abiTity 75 within the Tow average range, usually in the lower part of that

ranges—witha significant difference between the verbal scores and the
rformance-scoress—which—is muchmore consistent with a ¢hiTd who 15 going

pCl_lU

to have a_laot of difficulties in-thetraditional—school-system—Achievement———
testing also presents low average .range_in most-areas,—again—partiealapry————
hot only verbal but also often difficulties in visual-motor areas. also.

AT17of this probably implies that Anthony is going to be very discouraged
i n—the—regular—traditionat—schoot system:
. Also_historically seemi ngly._the parents—have—been—told-many-times—by—the——
! school system that this child is average and should be able to do as well as

s —-('}‘-a-l-lybu;y else and-the--parents often- responded as-such toward Afthony, ' ;
- ~—possibhy—expeeting—toomuch-offrins: .

: After having been evaluated—by—N—C—Memériat—Hospitalon 3725785,

it was recommended for family treatment in_the local Mental.Mealth Center .

and/or in-house camp situation, such as Echg Wilderness Camp. The parents
foltowed-throughwitirthat, with them pulling him out before completion seemingly

at Anthony's request,

Also on 11/4/86 he was taken to CumberlandHospital-for-evaluatior—
There they perceived him as a "conduct disorder. undersocialized, aggressive, ———
substance abuser; mixed “sporadic and verbal Tearning disability”. They also
felt thg.s:e_was a—pessibility-of-a depressive disorder or possibly a manic
depressive disorder which needed to_be ruled-out-by—in-patient—tong—term
evaTuation and also medicational support use patentially as—a-result—Heres——
possibTle t?ia]s on Lithium or other antidepressant medications may be helpful. |
.ﬁ.-!sc1 posstbty—in=housetregtment may be helpful to help break down some of
h1s_s,tr:ﬂng_defensiveness—ﬁnd dentalsystems which make 1% very difficult to
get beyond initial preliminaries—with Anthony ]

RECOMMENDATION: Longterm instituti onalipeaimen%pmgr*aﬁomﬂaiescents,

L
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'MED'ICAL' CHART TARBORO CLINIC, TARBORO, N. €.
IAME: Wainwright, Anthony : )
“(Last) (First) (Middle Int.) (Age) (Race) (Sex)
\DDRESS:
ELATIVE:
DATE 7713787 : . S .
INTERVIEW WITH ANTHONY: Anthony continued to be quite difficult to open up,

‘ as—henoted that-a Tot of things he Keeéps inside and did not want to talk about.
- Some—of-these—things—are—about—his givi—friemt about schooland s feelings

ahout_school,—etc. ..Mostof the-session—consisted—ef—the—therapistasking———

_ questions and_him giving yes = no.answers or-no-answerwhen-given—an—open-ended——||

question.
He has a new girl friend by the name of Jamie Tolson.

INTERVIEW-WITH-MOTFHER:+—The—mother noted—that—tirings have gone a Tittle
better_this-—week, he—has-notbroken—eurfew-any-but—therewas—a-fairiy

big argument.between.-his—dad-and-him—this—past-week: -
However., his dad did take him fishing—down-on-the-coast-and-this—

@ —__seemingly helped some. -
o She was gone for 5 days herself and when she got back she found him in
the—house this afternoon with someone he was not supposed to be in the home

with—based on protation rules, and also he had not gone to work or to school
this-morring
In_refarence to school, seemingly-he—spends—most—efhis—time—just

sitting there.
Seemingly the mother did report to the probation officer what had

happened—in—the Tast ¢ouplé of wéeks and they did have a long talk with

—him. —
He_does—go—probably—en—Tdesdayand-Thursday for community work.
He also works every day at the grocery store-supposediy-with—the—money
going directly for payment of ajl his bills
The mother noted she would 1ike to have more direct suggestions:

The—therapist-would encourage them to plan more positive activities with
There will be

g Nim._particwlarly—the-father—spending-more time with fin. i
. more direct recommendations in the next couple of sessions—Fhe—therapist

T 7T would Tike to see the dad next time.
We-reviewed more disCTpTinary procedures on the part of the parents =~~~ 7

and_general structure—and-dyramics—intie home:

A M A £ L
M.—DavidLCoulthards—M—4A7/b
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8/21/87 . _
INTERVIEW WITH ANTHONY: Anthony was seen in the jail for approximately an hour.
' Jimmy seemingly

Thiswas the vesult 6f a request by Jimmy Keel, his attorney.

-had-concerns-about-Anthony being depressed, baing almost "catatonic” at times.

___ However, he was_guite verbal with-thetherapist-—neting—his-onty pr-HNaTy
complaint as being unable to sleep well at night and-also-Just-being—sertef———

nervous and shaking at times. He did_present some mild tremors at time during
the Séssion, appearing almost as he were shivering even though the temperature .=

— —was-gttite-comfortabte—hrtheroom, —He Toted he was getting about 3 or 4 hours

| - N
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MEDICAL CHART TARBORO CLINIC, TARBORO, N. C.

NAME: \\\FLngUQJ\Lﬂ&I\ U W emn, '
(Last) (Fitsd) (Middle Int.) Y  (Age) (Race) (Sex)
ADDRESS:
RELATIVE:
DATE g;_‘L4__§;‘l
Patient was brought out from the jail :+a+ing that_he humped his left wrist on
a_stool when he fell out of the bed. He has a small area of swelling over
the distal radius, but x-ray reveals no fracture.
IMP: Minor contusion.
Reassured.” Recheck p.r.n.
P Tempie, MO 7/bih
7-6-87 '
INTERVIEW WITH ANTHONY AND HIS MOTHER, KAY: Anthony is a 16 year old
white male who came in with his mother, Kay, age 38 and also with his
father, Ken, age 40 and alsc his younger sister.
————REASON—FORRE-FRRAL—A i
ditch effort to try to prevent him from-going-to prison, in that

he is presently on intensive probation for ane year and two years

of regular probation after that. He has a curfew at 7:00, restricted

from alcohol and drugs, and redeemed to get counselling and see his

probatton officer monthly. However, seemingly THEéFe 1s considerabie

Aot an = Taanadiy o8 4l ok vl la i L. R P % ol o maadoded o
JUe s LT O drreddy T whit ot e TS DECITTRECP Ty LU THF S PTudd L TUT s

coming in_a couple of mornings early in the movning, 1:30 and 4:30

and his mother seems to be protecting him by not calling the probation

officer. However, Anthony claims he has told his probation officer

about these occasions and the probation officer has added a couple

of—thours—to—communtty service:—The Probationr—Offiter-is-damesAndrews

which the +hawnp1c+ wi-J3 try to eontacts

INDIVIDUAL INTERVIEW WITH ANTHONY: Anthony was fairly despondent

gven though not disrespectful, basically no eye contact, show1ng no

rstates he does not want to go to prison.

1 \al £ha [
?2W+1F”1=W degira tg reatly—try to-make th,ngr-wu:n evef h”bhbﬂ e

Has nmever been in-_prison —

“but has spent a couple of months in jail prior to his last court date.

Seelthigly, neé hds now stolen a couple of cars.

INTERVIEW WITH MOTHER: Mother would like possibly some kind of

medication support. Wonder if antidepressant or something will

maybe control h1s mood ]eve1s better as she does fee] 11ke there

A P Aad
gPe—Wige—iooa JW|ngD Juc DLuu:u LHGL Lnla wWas u}bbubbﬂu SUHIE IH

Cumberland (‘ounty Mental Health

Anthony has ‘a long history of mental health support which is mastly

A - [
UULUIIICHLC\J II L7 ] LI W ] e B BN P

DISP: No more appointments have been set up.
DIAG: 312.10 Conduct disorder, undersocialized, nonaggressive
feven—though—theredoes—seem tv besume temdency to aggression

at times)

M. David Coulthard, M.A./jtc

T 100
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“MEDICAL CHART TARBORO CLINIC, TARBORO, N. L.
IAME: Wainwright, Anthony -
{Last) (First) (Middle int.) {Age) (Race) (Sex)
\DDRESS:
ELATIVE:
DATE  9/721/87 (cont.)
He also noted that he had some fear about what could possibly

of sleep per night.

happen to him during his sleep in that he seems to be with 5 other men in the cell.

Fhe—therapist witTdiscuss the situation with Dr. Thompson.

Diag:—312-10onduet—disorder;—undersociatized; yon-aggressive.
M—Ppavid-Cetthard;M—A7/ b
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- MEDICAL CHART TARBORO CLINIC TARBORO, N. C.
NAME: LD Qe okt Co2Z .
(Last) ¢ G (Middie Int.) ) (Age) (Race) (Sex)
ADDRESS:
ELATIVE:
—
DATE G~/ /T L) D
NIGHT CLINIC:
Anthony has persistent hearing problems of the right ear. Has had persistent
é?fuswons over the last six months and was recently evaluated in Chape? HiT1
IU! pb_yt.l’lld’L.r H.. T UUI(:.‘IIIb ad lli‘:l.eu dDUVE thIH revea:s UPGQUE TH.HCI TTHEU
r“ght H—teftTM—s—normat: u_y otoscopy;—the |g:||.. Hidoes—notmeve—well
The left TM is normal Pharynx is hnn‘iﬂn The rest of the.evam is normal

IMP: Because of his pers1stent effu510n will retreat him with Amoxicillin
250 mgs. p.o. t.7.d. and decongestants and have him see Dr. Baggett or Mitchel?
next lnursaay afternoon Tor turther évaluation because of his r1ght hear1ng
1u:5 wiTTCh exceeds thethreshotds—ththe 50 decibel vange T the iyher

S ia g e

(i eqetices;

4/18/85
Was found in October to have a hearing loss in the right ear and continues

tofihave probiems there. He has recently found to have fluid in his right

ear—and~has beeron ant1u1ot1cs. tXAM reveais left ear to be s]1ght1y

£t
retracted-with-thin-seanty—Ftuid—Fhe—right—ear—is dutamd-retracted:
1ahbt e Mnen

Tunning fork suggested conductive hearing loss in the rightea Nose

congested. Throat and neck are hegative. ThHe ch11d has a long t1me history

of arlfergic type symptoms which are perennial. He also smokes. 1 started

him—oma Medrod uusepaK. He wiTl complete his colrse of antibfotics. Also
aeks.

H..Clifford Raggett, M. D /jw

CC:Dr. Baggett
DF. AUten
. 5/2/85. . S ,
T Did not take his MedroT Dosepak as directed. He thinks his ears may be a Tittle
The P1ght ear: sTiTT has f]uid Weber

better.  The Teft ear' TOOKS nor*mal today

left. After po11ter1zatfon the Rinne became positive on the right as well
I started him on Dimetapp, auto-inflation and will see him back in 2 weeks.

CC: Dr, Baggett
Dr. Auten

! g
in good position. left sar slightly rpfrarfpd Rinne ic neeative + e
but after autoinflation is becomes positive. He has had the sniffles and hay
feverfor the past couple of weeks. I started him on autoinf1at10 for his left
— ear and also_a_ Medrnl Drosepak and-will cheek-him—in-2 meRthe-
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“MEDICAL_CHART TARBORO CLINIC, TARBORO, N._¢.
IAME: 7 I e w2 Anttes
T (Lasd / (First) 7 (Middle Int.) (Age) (Race) (Sex)
\DDRESS:
ELATIVE:
PATE_ 7 = 4] 7S e Fa
T GgaF g

See my last note. Anthony has been expelled from school and_is now enrolled

in the Martin Middle School. I am arranging psychiatric referral with Chapel

T —and—the psychiatric Tiaison team 1S aware of this and will contact

s Ratnwright—about—is—upcomingevaluation date there. ™ In_ addition he

has—had—some - ear—pain-or—and—off for—the—tast—day—which—troublted—him—quite
a_bit during last night and developed some drainage from the right ear

He applied some Cortisporin drops w/o much luck and has_had intermittent

pain since last night.

- EXAMT Reveals apparently a perforated right TM with quite a bit of fluid,

difficutttoseemostof the TM but there appears to be quite a bit of inflam-
i t Hy FM—fas—some serous effusiom but

"

o

Fruv

3 o 1 | L T n_ ey
1 TEe—Caia T arg LTiT . T it L

i P PP I S C R e

rfection—Fharyax—>b of——exam—t S ROt —Pertineirs

1o

.
ie}
il
o

] T
1 Py (b]
active erigr—rHe

D =

IMP: 1. ROM with probable perforation :
2. Severe discipline_problem which is in part adolescent adjustment

reaction and in part some component of a learning disorder which is not

otiierwise characterized but 1s consistent with hyperactivity.

PLAN:—Amox+ei tHm— 250 pror—toivdr X0 —d-—Re=gvalugte nis ears 1N 32 WKS.

e [ PR SR o N 1
e—Anthory—te—ehid—psychtatey—in—tmapes

and arrange .appropriate—referral—F

fal
Hi1l. Mother expressed some interest in getting someone closer such as [Dr

Fal
Ui I\III-'IIUIIJ 3]

Sither in Raleigh and I will explore this possibility.

Richard L. Auten, M. D./gh

r’—)’gjn'“(;{c{;— i
~ Jesrn -39

T KD Ke b-bfgwx Dt

This lad complains of 'somd fever blisters on the nose, inside the nares,

- afidon the 1ip. He has had these in the past. He is also here for recheck.

~eee-o- o -Pr-#L. - Fever -blisters.

EXAM: Shows several vesicles on the labia, a few on the nares and. some pustular

There are no lesions consistent with

fesions on the bridge of the nose.
herpetic—whitlow—on—the—fingers——Mouth—is—normats—There—are 1o tesions on
the gums.

IMP: Viral stomatitis, possibly herpes. '

PLANT WiTT try Zovirax on the lips up to t.i.d. and because of the pustular

compenent—on representing—svme —secondary impetigo will

ot o o
compenent—en—the—nese—possibty

try Erythromycin for 1 wk. 400 f.9.d

4
Py #2. Otitis. He has had no complaints.
How tosking—rormat —w/o evidence of “persTstent effusion, good

CV A, < o TMc
AT« WTTUW S TS

landmarks.

IMP: Resolved otitis.

PLAN: WiTT recheck his hearing later in the summer.

P: #3. See my last note. He has just undergene—initisl-psychiatrie evatuation
at UNC-Chapel Hill for some of his school problems.and they will be contacting

us about their recommendations soon. :
Richard L —-Auten,-M.—D-fgh : g——

TC-1002
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SICAL. CHART TARBORO CLINIC, TARBORO, N. .

{AME: KWainwright, Anthony h
(Last) (Firse) © (Middie Int.) (Age) (Race) (Sex)
\DDRESS:
ELATIVE:
DATE 10/23/87 {cont.)

perhaps Cherry Hospital or a private hospital with intense fo]]ownup 1ike

a probation system and Mental Health.,

—f——————-ﬂﬂDD**Br——Hehar—f%nmmﬁa%91gh—Mentaf-maﬁ%th—SETVTtes—rEtUmmended—the Same-

M. Dayid Coulthard, M. A./blh

|r .'= b L - l ﬂ F N~ 1

M-—bavid—totHthatrds aARL

-lII[-J[OI
__—~————wPat4en%—s%ates—he—has—a—p%eeeﬂeﬁ%g+ass—embedéed—%ﬁ—h+s—%e%t~e+bﬁwr—mﬁﬁr%ﬁﬁruw——————~———

b Il 4 Yor S

been there-for.many-months~—Heis in-Jjail—I-believe I ecan—Ffeela—smaH——

PTEQQ_QfPfQEﬁlQH_mﬁIEEJﬁl_uﬂdEt_a_SﬁaE_lﬂ_ihE_DUiEK—aSPeC* of his left -
elbow. I have advised him that there is no way we can take care of this

problem while he is in jail unless he is transferred to the Central Prison

“THospital for surgery which he does not wish to do at this time.

P L Temple, M. D./bTh

37

Anthony Wainwright

12//67 R
Jail patient. Acute pharyngqtis Treated with Amoxicillin 250 mg. t.i.d.

for 10 days and Tylenol for pain or fever. Recheck as needed.
James W. WinsTow, M.D./blh

T¢-1002
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MEDICAL CHART __TARBORO CLINIC, TARBORO, N
\,DC;_LMLLSQ_-}cl.\V\\ G—'\‘\W\‘J\(\l \""\.L\‘q d

JAME:
(Last) \ CFirst) (Middie In) (Age) (Race) Ge) -
S\DDRESS: G
ELATIVE:
DATE G- 11—\ B wTiur g Ao O Kl
Follow.up laceratiom, forehead,
TLaceration healing well. Sutures removed. Return p.rm.
V. G. Herring, M.D./db
12/6/77
Partial suture removal,
Disp: Return in 3 days for remgval _of rest of sutures.
John G. Morgan, M.D./db
12712777
TeiaInder 0f 8kin sutures are remaved. Wound lLooks generally good.
- Dispt¥ ~FolLloW Up Next week.
Fohm— G+ Morgam; M:Ddb

J& - /¥~ 77 LDy r] = LD ?ﬁﬂ’f-f/ﬂdﬁ-l

12/14/77 .
There has now occurred some purulent drainage from the medial aspect of the wound.

Fhelieve thiw will g6 ahead now and resolve.

Disp+—Follow-up—in-2-weeks:
Tahn & Maorecap M.D- fdb
v =EEEEY hiaii
/2/2 777 ‘
D& e [ Hocne
& A =
]

/3478
: Probs—Deg—bltes
Patient's father states rhat the wound  Js-not-draining now.

Subij:
Obj: Observation of the wound reveals a small scabbed area in the medial aspect
5F Fhe wound. There is no evidence of infection.

Plan:— return in—2-weeksto-see Dri-Jolm Morpan GiTIess wodnd becoles infected and

then he is *o return to the clipic snoner

Nancy Morris, FNP/db a

Yy
NI

g - 20-5¢ A0Y. S0 4 _biles Al
' Wt 6.3 in . W I

BP. [z [)0F

Ao Mfﬁ? weldog
This neadly 14 year old, somewhat ]'mma_tum__bgyfiﬁ_seen_tmagz__fox_spnnts__ﬂd

physical and conference regarding some behavioral problems. Mother stétes
— that—he—has—beer—evaluated by DF. Schwartzwelder, psychoTogist, as well

_as_by—DE-(‘r—i-n—-Reeley-Meant——fer—be-havﬁraJr—d‘rSUrder swith—atot~of—acting out
in school, decreased attention span, and decreased. school performance.. Psy=.———

' Chological testing has not indicated a problem with mental retardation but
——  —thgt—e—fasdecreased attention span and needs quite a bit of structuring ,

-3 £ maaps oty de
in—order—to perfarimpetiers

-
n continuing intermittent problem with nocturnal Ié
“He does /

- In addition there has bee
— enetrests—whiThhas made Tittle Timprovement over the last 2 years.

—
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MEDICAL CHART ' (ARBORG CLINIC, TARBORO, N. €.~ v 10 |23 [0

\ME: \L)O&l’f‘(\LL\k’_ﬁMk QXNH\XYM L Us) ™ K
(Last) 0 (First) dviddle Int.) (Aged (Race) " (Sex)
DRESS: 1909 W Wieos A% O
o a i N e ya
LATIVE: ' Fh3- 1899
DATE
7 rof 0

P: Pharyngitis
S: Sore threat and increased temp. for 2 days.
0: T.M.'s gray. Nose clear. Pharynx erythematous but with no exudate.
Minimal anterior cervical adenopathy.
Ar—Pharyngitis; posyible sTTrep.

— D¢ 1, Throateulture—taken—

2 ASA and fluids .

L. M. Cutchin, M.D./reg

‘2T 14-19 o UNE -

Anthony had been well all

[ CC: TEver, cough, malaise - onset this morning.

4 - day yesterday. He was seen 2 weeks ago with pharyngitils and throat culture
o B g0 hEE BT RO o ee ot b ot to strep_throat:
— A 4 (D) JJ-!‘LL—Clll— i = WY L ] mlLLlUtly as— T Fatll Eﬁpﬁ ] o

) W /()Q Boy has rnmp1aiﬂpdjompﬁf awollen neck g']anﬂq No joint pain

Pharvnx.is red and injected., Boy doas hdye

| A P,E.: TM's are clear.
fi‘g[ Y enlarged anterior superior cervical glands. Weck supple., Examir
tign ©or the ¢hest veveals cleéar breath sounds, Heart gounds are normal, no murmul

genitattamormal—Fxtremities mormals
b—gtabasSé-gegsy—2/—Lymphay—S—Henos ————— ]

AT ] o
Abaomen S0LTy 01T THEaoSES «

-———wA———ﬁ#——Hng—éHLA}r4$&E—3B%T—WBG—é;iﬂ@—wi%hwl

Urinalysis: pH 7.0, sp. gr. 1.020, albumin, sugar an

ghows phosphates crystals only.
Imp: Pharyngitis, cervical lymphadenitis, rule out influenza.
Digpr—Tiroat culture.
V;F*111n_K—ZSO—mngpToquTdeTmareTmand-has.
Return Friday for follow up. Get momno test on returm,
V. G. HErring, M.D./db

2-1% ~\N\
CC: Follow up fever, pharyngitis, cervical lymphadenitis.

Throat culture has grown out normal flora.
Anthony has been treated since the 14th with- Penicillin.

hhkat -

L - .
Cervical glands are much smaller. Chegtand-heart—examokays—ABdomenr soft, 10|

P.E.:
masses. No, good posterior cerwical iymphadenopathy,

Tmp: Cervical adenopathy, probably streptococcal origin.

Bisp+— ContPenicititnr for = total-of 10 daye, retlfn p.ru.
: i : V-G HErrings M. D+/db
ADD4d—&E%LQTQOQ—W§£h—2—sEabsT—3¥~segs?-6G—lymphsy—ifﬁeaeT——Maae—éesE—ﬂegaﬁivef——d——
VGH/db :

¥

d acetone negative. Micro exam

omes back today For followl|
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NORTH LAROLINA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Chapel Hi1l, N.C. EUNHUENHM

‘REPORT OF PSYCHOLOGICAL EXAMINATION

Patient  Anthony Wainwright Unit No. 62-84-52 Clinic No.24, 179
Agel42/12Birthdate 12/22/70 Location Cchitd opnp Date 3/12 & 2/1/85

Examiner Gail Spiridigliozzi, M.A.

Wechsler Intelligence Scale for Children -~ Revised
Woodcock~Johnson Psycho-Educational Battery

Part Two: Tests of Achievement
Developmental Test of Visual-Motor Integration
Sentence Completion Form '
Piers-Harris Children's Self-Concept Scale
Revised Child Behavior Profile (Parent Report)

Tests Administered:

Referral Information: Anthony is a 14 year, 2 month old white male
from Tarboro, North Carolina. He was referred to the Child Outpatient
Psychiatry Unit by the family's pediatrician, Dr. Richard Auten, for

a comprehensive diagnostic evaluation. Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright, -~
Anthony's parents, were particularly concerned regarding his learning
difficulties and behavior problems to the extent that he was recently
asked to leave a private school in the area (Tarboro/Edgecombe
Academy}. Currently, Anthony is a student at Martin Middle School
and is repeating the seventh grade. He attends Chapter 1 remedial

classes in math and language arts on a daily basis.

A review of the records indicates that Anthony has been evaluated on

several previous occasions. According to Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright, -

Anthony was initially tested as a fourth grade student in the Pitt

County School System. He was subsequently placed in a classroom for

learning disabled students as a fifth grader.  In October, 1981

(age 11 years, 0 months), Anthony was evaluated by a private psychologist,

Dr. Charles Moore, of Greenville, North Carolina and seen for a total
_of ..nine sessoins....On the WISC-R, he earned a Verbal IQ score of 82,

a Performance IQ score of 81, and a Full Scale IQ score of 85.

Although it was recommended that Anthony be enrolled in a private

reading clinic and a home-based contingency management program be

continued, these suggestions were not followed through. Mrs. Wainwright

recalls being told that Anthony was Borderline Mentally Retarded.

In June, 1983 H{age 12.years, 8 months), Anthony was evaluated at the
Rocky Mount Developmental Evaluation Center at the request of his
parents. The WISC-R was re-administered at this time, and Anthony
obtained a Verbal IQ score of 72, a Performance IQ score of 109, and
a Full Scale IQ score of 92. He earned an age equivalent score of

7% — 8 years on the Bender Gestalt and grade ratings at the thixrd

and fourth grade levels on basic skills areas measured by the Wide
Range Achievement Test . Mrs. Wainwright was dissatisfied with the
evaluation, however, and recalled only that Anthony was found to have

slight auditory problems.
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Patient Anthony Wainwright Unit No. 62-84-52 Clinic No. 24,179

Subsequently, Anthony was seen by Dr. Swartzwelder, a psychologist in
Wilson, North Carolina for several sessions. A formal report of this contact was
not available. According to Ms. Wainwright, Anthony did not wish to continue
meeting with Dr. Swartzwelder and he advised that the sessions be discontinued.

Anthony's current behavior problems include his impulsivity, excesgive talking in
school, tendency to follow the lead of peers, negative attention-seeking behaviors,
occasional bedwetting and defiance of rules imposed by his parents. According to
Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright, peer relationships are also problematic for Anthomy

as well as his low self-esteem and poor school performance. Anthony presently
lives at home with his parents and 10 year old sister Krista, who exhibits no

significant behavior or academic problems.

Behavioral Observations: Anthony is a handsome adolescent male who appears to
be of average height and weight for his age. He was comfortably dressed and
neatly groomed for all sessioms. Anthony willingly participated in the evaluation

and did not voice any objections to doing so. _
Anthony was generally quiet throughout the evaluation and difficult to engage in

a casual conversation. He spoke only when specifically addressed by the examiner.
Even then, his responses were brief and it was often necessary to repeat the

initial questions or statement.

Throughout the WISC-R administration, Anthony was cooperative with the examiner and
pleasant. Still, he needed to be prompted at times to continue working, particularly
on the verbal subtests. He appeared to be more comfortable with the timed,
performance tasks. Although Anthony answered ilmpulsively at.times, this was not a
consistent response. No obvious attentional problems were evident in the one-on-one
testing session, although these have been reported in the classroom situation.
Anthony often looked to the examiner for c nfirmation of his responses, however,

and seemed surprised to receive verbal praise for his overall performance at the
 conclusion of stubtest. He appeared to have a low opinion of his skills in these

areas.

On the Sentence Completion Form and Self-concept Scale, Anthony had difficulty
responding to many of the items. On the Piers—Harris, for instance, he circled
both yes and no for many of the statements. Tt was necessary for the examiner to
review these items and encourage him to make one response only. Similarly,
Anthony failed to complete many of the sentences initially presented. When he-
later responded, his answers were fairly concrete and guarded.

4

Test Results: On the WISC-R, Anthony obtained a Verbal IQ score of 81 (Low Average)
and a Performance IQ score of 101 (Average). Due to the discrepancy of 30 points
between these scales, Antheny's Full Scale IQ score of 89 is essentially meaningless
and does not describe the wide variability in his current functioning. His subtest
scores were as follows (mean = 10; standard deviation = 3):
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- Page 3
Patient Anthony Wainwright Unit No. 62-84-52 Clinic No. 24, 179
. Verbal Tests Standard Scores Performance Tests Standard Scores
Information N 6 Picture Completion 10
Similarities 7 Picture Arrangement 11
Arithmetic 7 Block Design 9
Vocabulary 8 Objact Assembly 11
Comprehension 7 Coding 10
{(Digit Span) (9) (Mazes) (10)

Anthony's performance on the WISC-R was thought to be a valid assessment of his
cognitive functioning. ’

A significant difference (30 points) was apparent between Anthony's Verbal and
Performance IQ scores, although there was little variability noted among his
subtest scores in each area. His scores on the Performance tests were solidly in
the average range, and suggest a relative strength in perceptual organization
Though verbal instructions are given for each of these subtests, the task

tasks:
requirements are relatively -clear and limited verbal respounses are necessary.

Anthony's scores on the Verbal tests were at rhe bottem of the average range, and
suggest a relative weakness in his verbal comprehension skills. Again, the fact
that all of these teats are heavily language based and require verbal respouses may

account for the verbaﬂperformance disecrepancy in his IQ scores.

Anthony's performance on the VMI (age equivalent 9; 11) indicates that his visual-
motor integration skills are also an area of weakness. He obtained a standard -
score of 4 (mean = 10, standard deviation = 3), which is two standard deviations
below the mean in comparison to other children his age. ' Anthomy had particular.

difficulty copying three dimensional designs and those with two or more parts.
Similarly, Anthony exhibited a great deal of frustration with the Block Design
subtest of the WISC-R (his lowest Performance scaled gecore) which also requires

visual-motor coordination skills.

Anthony's . level of academic achievement was evaluated by means of the Woodcock-
He earned the following scores: : : T

Johnson.

Achievment. Cluster Grade Score Age Score Percentile Rank Age Standard
at Age Scores

Reading 4.4 9-8 14 84

Mathematics 6.6 12-0 20 87

Written Language— 4.1 9-1 8 79

Knowledge 5.3 10-8 14 84

s
~

Assuming that Anthony's performance IQ score is the most accurate index of his
cognitive funectioning, his academic achievement in all areas is lower than would
Mrs. Wainwright reports that math is a particularly weak area for
Anthony in school. Although he was able to do relatively well on the mathematics
cluster, it does not emphasize word problems. Most likely, Anthony has difficulty
with these applications of math functions commonly presented in school. _His
profile of skills, when compared with his Performance IQ scores, is consistent

with a diagnosis of a learning disability.
a, ‘ii

be expected.
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Unit No. 62-84-32 Clinic No. 24,179

Patient Anthony Wainwright

Anthony's behavior and emotional functioning were also assessed as a part of the
overall evaluation. His responses on the Sentence Completion Form and Piers-Harris Scale
clearly acknowledged his difficulty with academic subjects and behavior problems. -
Anthony's overall score on the Piers-Harris Scale, in addition to his self-depreciating
remarks throughout the evaluation, attest to his low gelf-concept. His self-esteem

is particularly low regarding his physical appearance and intellectunal and

school functioning.

Anthony's responses also reflect a semse of detachment from his family. Though
he describes both parents as "nice! he feels that they should be responding to his
basic needs at this age for momey and a job. There is also a sense that he would
prefer to be removed from this family system. Anthony feels that he is not an
important member of his family, and that he has disappointed the family. ..Though
he is aware of his behavior problems, Anthony's view of their severity is clearly

less than his parents' rating.

Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright completed a lengthy Child Behavior Checklist (Achenbach)_
regarding Anthony's behavior problems. Thelr responses were subsequently recogéed
on the Revised Child Behavior Profile to evaluate Anthony's behavior in comparison
to a pormative sample of boys age 12 to 16 years. The profile consists of nine
scales derived by means of factor analysis. Altrhough both parents rated Anthony's
behavior independently, thelr overall perceptinns were very consistent. According
to their reports, his behavior problems exceed the 98th percentile on the nine
Fesentially, they view him as uncommunicable, immature, delinquent,
aggressive, hyperactive and hostile. As opposed to internalizing his problems,
Anthony is clearly acting out, in their view, beyond what would be expected of
other boys his age. A similar checklist completed by a feacher could not be scored
due to an excessive number of ommisiomns.

scales.

Summary and Recommendations: Anthony is a 14 year old male whose performance on

WISC-R subtests emphasizing perceptual organization skills was significantly

_ better than on those subtests relying heavily on language and verbal comprehension
is .chievemer all areas is lower than might be expected in-

skills. His academic achievement in
light of his Performance IQ, and is consistent with a diagnosis of a learning

Anthony's visual-motoxn integration skills represent another area of
weakness. He appears to have a low self-concept, particularly regarding his .
intellectual and school functioning,and views himself as being detached from his
family. Anthony's parents rate his behavior problems as being extensive and
severe in comparison:to other adolescent boys. They are extremely concerned about
his future in the event that Anthony's behavior and academic problems continue.

disability.

+

It is recommended that a placement in the Therapeutic Camping System be pursued
for Anthony since outpatient interventions have not.been successful in dealing
. with these issues. Anthony, as well as his parents, have indicated their willingness

to try the Camping program, and feel that it could be beneficial for the entire
icipates in this program, we recommend that

family. Whether or not Anthony parti
he continue to receive LD support services for all academic subjects.

,Q/@cfh’ //}j}’wﬁy@%' | &ﬁmfu{u jﬂ/‘ ,’
Barbara Boat, Ph.D. )

Gail A. Sviridigliozzi, M.A. .
Psychology Intern  Licensed Practicing Psychologist
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REPORT OF PSYCHOLOGICAL EXAMINATION

Clinic No. 24, 179

Patient Anthony Wainwright Unit No. 62-84-52
Agel42/12Birthdate 12/22/70 _ Location chitd opp Date 3/12 & 3/1/85

Examiner Gail Spiridigliozzi, M.A.

Wechsler Intelligence Scale for Children - Revised
Woodcock~Johnson Psycho-Educational Battery

Part Two: Tests of Achievement
Developmental Test of Visual-Motor Integration
Sentence Completion Form.
Piers—Harris Children's Self-Concept Scale
Revised Child Behavior Profile (Parent Report)

Tests Administered:

Anthony is a 14 year, 2 month old white male
from Tarboro, North Carolina. He was referred to the Child Outpatient
Psychiatry Unit by the family's pediatrician, Dr. Richard Auten, for

a comprehensive diagnostic evaluation. Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright,  --
Anthony's parents, were particularly concerned regarding his learning
difficulties and behavior problems to the extent that he was recently
asked to leave a private school in the area (Tarboro/Edgecombe
Academy) .  Currently, Anthony is a student at Martin Middle School
and is repeating the seventh grade. He attends Chapter 1 remedial
classes in math and language arts on a daily basis.

Referral Information:

A review of the records indicates that Anthony has been evaluated on
several previous occasions. According to Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright,
Anthony was initially tested as a fourth grade student in the Pitt

County -School System. He was subsequentlypﬂacedin a classroom for
learning disabled students as a fifth grader. In October, 1981

(age 11 years, 0 months), Anthony was evaluated by a private psychologist,
Dr. Charles Moore, of Greenville North Carolina and seen for a total

of - nine sessoins. On the WISC-R, he earned a Verbal IQ score of 82

a Performance IQ score of 81, and a Full Scale IQ staréE of 85,

Although it was recommended that Anthony be enrclled in a private
reading clinic and a home-based contingency management program be
continued, these suggestions were not followed through. Mrs. Wainwright
recalls being told that Anthony was Borderline Mentally Retarded.

In June, 1983-{age 12.years, 8 months), Anthony was evaluated at the
Rocky Mount Developmental Evaluation Center at .the request of his
parents. The WISC-R was re—-administered at this time, and Anthony
obtained a Verbal IQ score of 79, a Performance IQ score of 109, and
a Full Scale IQ score of 92. He earned an age equivalent score of
7% — 8 vears on the. Bender Gestalt and grade ratings at the third

and fourth grade levels on basic skills areas measured by the Wide
Range Achievement Test . Mrs. Wainwright was dissatisfied with the
evaluation, however, and recalled only that Anthony was found to have

slight auditory problems.
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Swartzwelder, a psychologist in

A formal report of this contact was
Anthony did not wish to continue
that the sessions be discontinued.

Subsequently, Anthony was seen by Dr.
Wilson, North Carolina for several sessions.
not available. According to Ms. Wainwright,
meeting with Dr. Swartzwelder and he advised

Anthony's current behavior problems include his impulsivity, excessive talking in
school, tendency to follow the lead of peers, negative attention-seeking behaviors, i
occasional bedwetting and defiance of rules imposed by his parents. According to i
Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright, peer relationships are also problematic for Anthomy
as well as his low self-esteem and poor school performance. Anthony presently
lives at home with his parenmts and 10 year old sister Krista, who exhibits no

significant behavior or academic problems.

Behavioral Observations: Anthony is a handsome adolescent male who appears to
be of average height and weight for his age. He was comfortably dressed and
neatly groomed for all sessions. Anthony willingly participated in the evaluation

and did not voice any objections to doing so.

Anthony was generally quiet throughout the evalvation and difficult to engage in
a casual conversation. He spoke only when specifically addressed by the examiner.
Even then, his responses were brief and it was often necessary to repeat the : ;

initial questions or statement.

hony was cooperative with the examiner and

Throughout the WISC-R administratiom, Ant
particularly

pleasant. Still, he needed to be prompted at times to continue working,
on the verbal subtests. He appeared to be more comfortable with the timed,
performance tasks. Although Anthony answered impulsively at. times, this was not a
consistent response. No obvious attentional problems were evident in the one-—on-one
testing session, although these have been reported in the classroom situatiom.
Anthony often loocked to the examiner for ¢ nfirmation of his responses, however;
and Seemed surprised to receive verbal praise for his overall performance at the
conclusion of stubtest. He appeared to have a low opinion of his skills in these

d Self-concept Scale, Anthony had difficulty
On the Piers-Harris, for instance, he circled
It was necessary for the examiner to
Similarly,

When he

On the Sentence Completion Form an
responding to many of the items.
both yes and no for many of the statements.
review these items and encourage him to make one response only.
Anthony failed to complete many of the sentences initially presented.
later responded, his answers were fairly concrete and guarded.

/
Test Results:
and a Performance IQ score of 101 (Average).
between these scales, Anthony's Full Scale IQ score o
and does not describe the wide variability in his current functioning.

scores were as follows (mean = 10; astandard deviation = 3):

On the WISC-R, Anthony obtained a Verbal IQ score of 81 (Low Average)
Due to the discrepancy of 30 points

f 89 is essentially meaningless
His subtest
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Verbal Tests Standard Scores Performance Tests Standard Scores
Information - 6 Picture Completion ' 10
Similaritdies 7 Picture Arrangement 11
Arithmetic 7 Block Design 9
Vocabulary 8 Object Assembly 11
Comprehension 7 Coding 10
(Digit Span) {9) {(Mazes) (10)

Anthony's performance on the WISC-R was thought to be a valid assessment of his
cognitive functioning. '

A significant difference (30 points) was apparent between Anthony's Verbal and
Performance IQ scores, although there was little variability noted among his
subtest Scores in each area. His scores on the Performance tests were solidly in
the average range, and suggest a relative stremgth in perceptual organization
Though verbal instructiomns are given for each of these subtests, the task

tasks.
requirements are relatively -clear and limited verbal responses are necessary.

Anthony's scores on the Verbal tests were at the bottom of the average range, and
suggest a relative weakness in his verbal comprehension skills. Again, the fact
that all of these tests are heavily language based and require verbal responses may

account for the verbal/performance discrepancy in his IQ scores.

Anthony's performance on the VML (age equivalent 93 11) indicates that his visual-

motor integration skills are also an area of weakness. EHe obtained a standard
= 3), which is two standard deviations

score of 4 {(mean = 10, standard deviaticn =
below the mean in comparison to other childrem his age. Anthony had particular

difficulty copying three dimensional designs and those with two or more parts.
Similarly, Anthony exhibited a great deal of frustration with the Block Design
subtest of the WISC-R (his lowest Performance scaled score) which alse requires

visual-motor ceordination skills.

A@;hgpyls_level of academic achievement was evaluated by means of the Woodcock-
He earned the following scores: o T -

" Johmson.
Achievment, Cluster Grade Score Age Scoré Percentile Rank Age Standard
at Age Scores
Reading 4,4 9-8 14 84
Mathematics 6.6 12-0 20 87
Written Language— 4.1 9-1 8 79
Knowledge 5.3 10-8 14 84

Assuming that Anthony's performance IQ score is the most accurate index of his
cognitive functioning, his academic achievement in all areas is lower than would
Mrs. Wainwright reports that math is a particularly weak area for
Although he was able to do relativély well on the mathematics
Most likely, Anthony has difficulty
His

be expected.

Anthony in school.
cluster, it does not emphasize word problems.
with these applications of math functions commonly presented in school.

profile of skills, when compared with his Performance I scores, is consistent

with a diagnosis of a learning disability.
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Anthony's behavior and emotional functioning were also assessed as a part of the
overall evaluation. His responses on’ the Sentence Completion Form and Piers-Barris Scale
clearly acknowledged his difficulty with academic subjects and behavior problems. -
Anthony's overall score on the Piers-Harris Scale, in addition to his self-depreciating
remarks throughout the evaluation, attest to his low self-concept. His self-esteem

is particularly low regarding his physical appearance and intellectual and

school functioning.

Anthony's responses also reflect a sense of detachment from his family. Though
he describes both parents as "nice) he feels that they should be responding to his
baslc needs at this age for money and a job. There is also a semnse that he would
prefer to be removed from this family system. Anthony feels that he is not an
important member of his family, and that he has disappointed the family. ..Though
he is aware of his behavior problems, Anthony's view of their severity is clearly

less than his parents' rating.

Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright completed a lengthy Child Behavior Checklist (Achenbach)_
regarding Anthony's behavior problems. Their responses were subsequently recorded
on the Revised Child Behavior Profile to evaluate Anthony's behavior in compariscn
to a normative sample of boys age 12 to 16 years. The profile consists of nine
scales dérived by means of factor analysis. Although both parents rated Anthony's
behavior independently, their overall perceptinns were very consistent. According
to their reports, his behavior problems exceed the 98th percentile on the nine
scales. Fssentially, they view him as uncommunicable, immature, delinquent,
aggressive, hyperactive and hostile. As opposed to internalizing his problems,
Anthony is clearly acting out, in their view, beyond what would be expected of
other boys his age. A similar checklist completed by a teacher could not be scored

due to an excessive number of ommisions.

Summary and Recommendatioms: Anthony is a 14 year old male whose performance on
WISC-R subtests emphasizing perceptual organization skills was significantly
bettet than on those subtests relying heavily on language and verbal comprehension
skills. His academic achievement in all aréas i1& lower than might be expected in-
light of his Performance IQ, and is consistent with a diagnosis of a learning
disability. Anthony's visual-motor integration skills represent another area of
weakness. He appears to have a low self~concept, particularly regarding his )
intellectual and school functioning,and views himself as being detached from his
family. Anthony's parents rate his behavior problems as being extensive and
severe in comparisontta other adolescent boys. They are extremely concerned about
his future in the event that Anthony's behavior and academic problems continue.

ki

It is recommended fhat a placement in the Therapeutic Camping System be pursued
ions have not.been successful .in dealing

for Anthonmy since outpatient intervent
d-their willingness

.with these iswues, Anthony, as well as his parents, have indicate
to try the Camping program, and feel that it could be beneficial for the entire

family. Whether or not Anthony participates in this program, we recommend that
he continue te receive LD support services for all academic subjects.

!@(%/ Mﬂtfyﬁg/g, | xj;f/{:af«/ ﬂfﬂ/‘ | ;?3 |
Gail A. Spiridigliozzi, M.A. Barbara Beat, PH.D.
Licensed Practicing Psychologist

Psycholeogy Intern
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"-patient WAINWRIGHT, Anthony . Unit No, 62-84-52

3/25/85 REFERRAL:  Anthony Wainwright is a 14. year old maTe who is currently
attending the seventh grade at Martin Middle School in Tarboro, N.C.
He was referred for a diagnostic evaluation by Dr. Richard Auten, his.
_pediatrician in Tarboro. Anthony is apparently having learning problems
in school and also extensive behavior problems. ' »

Date ~ " Clinie No. 24,179

FAMILY COMPOSITION: Anthony 1ives with his natural parents, Kay and

Ken Wainwright.” Ken Wainwright is 38 years old and is the owner/operator
of Piggly Wiggly Grocery Store in Tarboro. Kay Wainwright is 36 years
old and works full-time for NCNB. Anthony is the oldest of two children.
Anthony has'a younger sister Krista, who is 10 years old and is currently

in the fifth grade.

SOURCES OF DATA: Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright and Anthony were seen on 2/26/85,
-3/12/85, and 3/26/85. The Wainwrights were seen together initially and
also on 3/26/85. Information was also obtained from Dr. Richard Auten,
Anthony's pediatrician, Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy and Martin Middle School.

DEVELOPMENTAL HISTORY: Anthony was the 6 1/2 1b. result of a planned

pregnancy. Mrs. Wainwright reports no problems during the pregnancy. For

the first 12 months following Anthony's birth, Anthony had the colie and

| .. Mrs. Wainwright reported that Anthony was. in and out of the hospital with
bronchitis and asthma. Mrs. Wainwright said that she did not Tike Anthony

. very much during that. first year. When Anthony was two years .old, Mrs.

Wainwright described him as being "all boy", 1.e., "getting ‘into things."

Mrs. Wainwright said that“Arthony was very close to her sister for a Tong
~time and that this maternal aunt gave Anthony a Tot of attention. Mr:.and

Mrs. Wainwright report that Anthony was average up until the third or

fourth grade. In the fourth grade the school began testing him and placed

him in an LD classroom,in the fifth grade. The Wainwrights report:that
[----Anthony!s- behavior-problems begam at this time. In the Tifth grade, -

Anthony went to Dr. Moore in Greenville, where the Wainwright$! were .told.
| -that Anthony was Borderline Mentally Retarded. When Anthony was in the
- |, sixth grade, ‘he went to ‘the Rocky Mount D.E.C. where they told.Mr. and
- Mrs. Wainwright that Anthony has_hearing problems. Thé Wainwrights' said
| that they were disappointed with the D.E.C. Following that visit,

7 .Anthony-began seeing .Dr, Swartzwelder, ‘a’psychologist in Wilson."  Anthony
© went’several -times, but he said that he did not want to go -back "and :said
.- that he wished that he were dead.. Dr. Swartzwelder told .Mrs. Wainwright
" “that Anthony did not have to go back to see him, so this stopped.
| ~Anthony is currently repeating the seventh .grade.. Anthany began Martin
] Middle thdpl;iﬁ_Auguét;‘but,his'parentsfﬁecided;tuﬁtrgnsfer;him"tohagﬁ
© private school, Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy. ‘tAnthony pemained at this -
_ | -school from September - to December 1984, when he_was “expelled because of
| poor conduct. Mrs. Wainwright 'said that -this school gave him as many~ !
- opportunities as they could, but that Anthony got into trouble all of the '

time. Presently, Anthony is attending Martin Middle School again and the

] Wainwrights are sti11 having problems with behavior. +

(continued on back)
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Both Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright report that Anthony has trouble keeping friends.
According to Mr. Wainwright Anthony only has one friend at a time and within
six months he does not have that friend anymore. Apparently, Mr. and Mrs.
Wainwright cannot talk with Anthony. They say that he closes up and keeps
everything inside. Mr, and Mrs. Wainwright report that much of the trouble

he gets into stems from attention seeking behavior, such as, throwing spit
balls and pulling hair. The Wainwrights say that-Anthony has been into more
serious trouble in the past. Once Anthony had to go to court over an obscene
phone call.incident. He has also been involved in the vandalism of two houses,
in which his parents settled-this matter ouf of court. There have been other
behavior problems which were serious, but did not result in court action, i.e.,
setting fire to some garbage on a neighbor's porch, trying to pass -dramamine
off as illegal drugs and throwing a stick at a persons windshield.

Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright do not know if Anthony is a leader or a follower. Mrs.,
Wainwright described Anthony as being very unhappy and that he does not Tlike

himself. The Wainwrights say that Anthony cannot do anything well. Mr. and _
Mrs: Wainwright report that Anthony was very interested in basketball at
Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy and that he played on the team. They report that

Anthony could not play well but that he never missed a practice. Mr. Wainwright

‘caid ‘that Anthony will sometimes help out at his store and says that Anthony

does a good job, but that he can only attend for about 2 hours at the most.

“Mr. Wainwright also stated that Anthony does a terrific job mowing the lawn.

Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright are extremely concerned about the relationship between
Anthony and his 10 year old sister, Krista. Mrs. Wainwright said that she
fears that Anthony hates Krista. Krista is deing well in school and actording
to her parents, has-a lot going for her. Mrs. Wainwright says that ‘Anthony
resents this very much and is concerned that Anthony might hurt his sister.

¥Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright say they do not discipline Anthony anymore. Mr.
MWafnwright used to spank Anthony but, Mrs. Wainwright said that that had to

stop because Mr. Wainwright got too heavy-handed. The Wainwrights mentioned
that taking his T.V. privileges away works best. Currently, however, they
just talk to. him about what he has done. ' : - ( ;

e

rfPARENTS;BAGKGROUND;M,Mrs.,wainWtightmhas,Qngmsister, who used to be very close
to Anthony when he was younger. Mrs. Wainwright reports that her parents,
‘maternal grandparents, Tive close by and get along well with Anthony. Mr.
and Mrs;ﬁwafnwkfght;report-that‘Mrs..Nainwright‘s_parents'do;ndt;have many
.. -behavior probTems with;Anthony.ﬂqRecentTy,1Anthony got in:trouble riding his
' grandfatherfs motorbike and was restricted from viding it.. Mr. Wainwright
~ is.one of .three bays and a_girt. .He is much older than his sistér, therefore,
" _he veports he is not close to his sister or his brothers, Mr, Wainwright
reported that Anthony does not ]ike to go to his parents house :as much as he used
to because his_younger sister, who is 16 years 01d, is not there as often.

..... i

'“IMPRESSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: .Anthony's beh vior problemsbasically began
around the time he was pJaced_in_anVLD'c1aSSrbom[;LAnthony'apﬁears=t0“have a low
seTf-esteem and has trouble with peer ‘interactions.. The Waifwrights appear to
have difficulty accepting Anthony and also-have difficulty.providing structure
“for. Anthony. ‘Family therapy is recommended for the entire family through the

“local mental health center to work on family issues and ways to develep structure

S ' : s
g8 . :
gt § (continued on next page) ‘
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3/25/85

- -—Anthony's- behavior problems began-at this-time.

. Mrs. Wainwright that Anthony has hearing probl
fzﬁnthony-began-seeing.Dr; Swartzwelder, “a’ psychologist in Wilson.'
< wentiseve

‘Middle School -in August, but his parents decided:

REFERRAL: Anthony Wainwright is a 14. year old male who is currently
attending the seventh grade at Martin Middle School in Tarboro, N.C.

He was referred for a diagnostic evaluation by Dr. Richard Auten, his.
pediatrician in Tarboro. Anthony is apparently having learning problems
in school and also extensive behavior problems. _

FAMILY COMPOSITION: Anthony Tives with his natural parents, Kay and

Ken Wainwright. Ken Wainwright is 38 years old and is the owner/operator
of Piggly Wiggly Grocery Store in Tarboro. Kay Wainwright is 36 years
old and works full-time for NCNB. Anthony is_the oldest of two children.
Anthony has‘a .younger sister Krista, who is 10 years old and is currently

in. the fifth grade.

SOURCES OF DATA: Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright and Anthony were seen on 2/26/85,
3/12/85, and 3/26/85. The Wainwrights were seen together initially and
also on 3/26/85. Information was also obtained from Dr. Richard Auten,
Anthony's pediatrician, Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy and Martin Middle School.

DEVELOPMENTAL HISTORY: Anthony was the 6 1/2 1b. result of a planned
pregnancy. Mrs. Wainwright reports no problems during the pregnancy. - For

- the first 12 months following Anthony's birth, ‘Anthony had the colic and

Mrs. Wainwright reported that Anthony was.in and out of the hospital with
bronchitis and asthma. Mrs. Wainwright said that she did not 1ike Anthony
very much during that first year. When Anthony was two years old,.Mrs.
Wainwright described him as being "all boy", i.e., "'getting «into things."
Mrs. Wainwright said that*Anthony was very close to her sister for a long
time.and that this maternal aunt gave Anthony a lot of attention. Mr:.and
Mrs. Wainwright report that Anthony was average up until the third or .
fourth grade. In the fourth grade the school began testing him and placed
him in an LD classroom. in the fifth grade.. The Wainwrights report that
Inthe fifthgrade, "
Anthony went to Dr. Moore in Greenville, where the Wainwrights! were .told.
that Anthony was Borderline Mentally Retarded. . When Anthony was in the
sixth grade, he went "to the Rocky Mount’D.E.C., where they told.Mr. and
' ' ems. The Wainwrights' said
Following that visit,
.. “Anthony
‘several times, but he said that he did not'want to go back ‘and-said
‘that-he wished that he were dead.. Dr. Swartzwelder told . Mrs. Wainwright
‘that Anthony did not have to go back to see him; so this stopped. -
Anthony is currently repeating the seventh grade.. Anthony .began Martin
: to_transfer-him to_.a .
private school,,Tarboro/Edgecombe_Acadamy;ftAnthonyLremainéd at this .
.school from September-to December’ 1984;" when he was expelled because of
poor conduct. Mrs. Wainwright said that this school gave him as many

‘that they were disappointed with the D.E.C.

I opportunities-as they could, but that Anthony got into trouble all of :the

time. Presently, Anthony is attending Martin Middle School again and the
Wainwrights are still having problems with behavior.(

(continued on back) ;é
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Both Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright report that Anthony has trouble keeping friends.
According to Mr. Wainwright Anthony only has one friend at a time and within
six months he does not have that friiend anymore. Apparentiy, Mr. and Mrs.
Wainwright cannot talk with Anthony. They say that he closes up and keeps
everything inside. Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright report that much of .the trouble

he gets into stems from attention seeking behavior, such as, throwing spit
balls and pulling hair. The Wainwrights say that Anthony has been into more
serious trouble in the past. Once Anthony had to go to court over an obscene
phone call.incident. He has also been involved in the vandalism of two houses,
in which his parents settled this matter ouf of court. There have been other
behavior problems which were serious, but did not result in court action, i.e.,
setting fire to some garbage on a neighbér's porch, trying to pass dramamine
off as illegal drugs and throwing a stick at a persons windshield.

Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright do not know if Anthony is a leader or a follower. Mrs.
Wainwright described Anthony as.being very ynhappy and that he does not like

himself. The Wainwrights say that Anthony cannot do anything well. -Mr. and _
Mrs; Wainwright report that Anthony was very interested in basketball at
Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy and that he played on the team. They report that

Anthony could not play well but that he never missed a practice. Mr. Wainwright

caid that Anthony will sometimes help out at his store and says that Anthony

does a good job, but that he can only attend for about 2 hours at the most.

‘Mr, Wainwright also stated that Anthony does a terrific job mowing the lawn.

Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright are extremely concerned about the relationship between
Anthony and his 10 year old sister, Krista. Mrs. Wainwright said that she
fears that Anthony hates Krista. Krista is doing well in school and according
to her parents, has a lot going for her. Mrs. Wainwright says that Anthony
resents this very much and is concerned that Anthony might hurt his sister.

Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright say they do not discipline Anthony anymore. Mr.
Wafnwright used to spank Anthony but, Mrs. Wainwright said that that had to
stop because Mr. Wainwright got too heavy-handed. The Wainwrights mentioned
that taking his T.V. privileges away works best. Currently, however, they
just talk to'him about what he has done. - :
_PARENTS BACKGROUND: Mrs. Wainwright has one sister, who used to be very close ~
to Anthony when he was younger. Mrs, Wainwright reports that her parents,” - 7~
maternal grandparents, live close by and get along well with.Anthony. Mr.
and Mrs. Wainwright report-that Mrs.. Wainwright"s parents do not have many
behavior'prquems'with_Anthony..”Recent1y;]Anthony got in-trouble riding his
grandfather's motorbike and was restricted from riding it.. Mr. Wainwright
_ is.one of.three boys and a_girl. ..He is much older than his sister, therefore,
. _he reports he is not close to his sister or. his brothers, Mr, Wainwright
reported that Anthony does net 1ike to go to his parents house as much’as he used
to because his.younger sister, who is 16 years old, is not there as often.

*" IMPRESSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: “Anthony's behavior problems-basically began
around the time he was placed in an LD classroom. . Anthony appears-to have a low

self-esteem and has trouble with peer “interactions. The Wairwrights dppear to.
have difficulty accepting Anthony and also-have difficulty. providing structure
For Anthony. Family therapy is recommended for the entire family through the

local menta?‘heaTth center to work on family issues and ways to develop structure

~
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for Anthony. If progress is not made within six months to one year, a
temporary residential group home placement is recommended for Anthony.

Fiéogence ﬁarris, ECSH %mbi Gibso%; '

Supervisor Social Work Intern
Division of Child Psychiatry Division of Child Psychiatry

BG:FH/ jww
4/17/85
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" behavior and activity level,

than would be expected on the basis of his Performance IQ score. Anthony
is currently functioning at the Tow end of the average range in these
areas. His profile of skills and history of 1earning problems are con-
sistent with a diagnosis of a Tearning disability. Anthony's performance
on the Developmental Test of Visual-Motor Integration indicateéd that his
visual-motor integration skills are also an area of weakness. He had
particular difficulty copying three dimensional des1gns and those with

two or more parts.

Anthony's responses on the Sentence Completion Form and the Piers-Harris
Scale clearly acknowledged his difficulty with academic subjects and
behavior problems. His overall score on the Piers-Harris, in addition to
his self-depreciating remarks throughout the evaluation attest to his

low self-concept. . Anthony's self-esteem is particularly Tow regard1ng his

physical appearance and intellectual and school functioning. :

Anthony s responses also reflect a sense of detachment from his family,
There is also a sense that he would prefer to be removed from this family
system. Anthony feels that he is not an important member of his family,

and that he has disappointed the family. Though he s aware of his behavior
problems, Anthony's view of their severity is clearly less than his

parents' ratings.

PHYSICAL STATUS: Anthony is reportedly in good health. The notes from
his most recent physical examiantion are included in the file. Anthony
was referred, however, to the NCMH Division of Speech and Hearing Sciences
for a complete audiological evaluation and a Central Auditory Processing
Test Battery. There has been some concern over the years that part of
Anthony's learning and behavior difficulties may be due to his inability

to auditorally process information. Anthony's hearding was found to be
10rma His performance on the test battery suggested that

‘within normal Timits.

his difficulty may be due to an Attention Deficit Disorder, opposed to a
central auditory processing problem. His behavior at home and in the
classroom setting supports this diagnosis as well. -

FORMULATION: Anthony is a 14 year old mate with a history of significant
behavior and learning difficulties. The results of recent intellectual -
and achievement testing are consistent with a diagnosis of a Jearning
disability. Although little information was obtained about his early
Anthony's current functioning in the ciass-
room and at home supports a diagnosis of an attention deficit disorder.
In regard to his emotional functioning, Anthony appears to have a Tow
se1f~concept, particularly regarding his intellectual and school functioning,
and views himself as being detached from his family. Anthony's parents
rate his behavior problems as being extensive and severe in comparison to
other adolescent boys. They appear to have difficulty accepting Anthony
and providing structure for him, and are clearly stressed by his behavior
problems. As a result, there is little communication between Anthony and

his parents, thus perpetuating the cycle of negative family interactions.

(continued on back) ;q
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At this point, virtually no attention is paid to Anthonyis strengths, and the

potential for change.

DIAGNOSIS: Conduct Disorder, Undersocialized, Aggressive - 312.00
Attention Deficit Disorder (with question of hyperactivity

" Learning Disability

) - 314.00

INTERPRETIVE CONFERENCE: An interpretive conference was held on March 26, 1985
with Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright, Anthony, Barbara Boat, Sambi Gibson and Gail

Spiridigliozzi participating.

mental health center or with a private prac
the goal being to learn effective manage
back intoe the family system. Mrs. Wainw

Anthony participate in t

previous attempts at outpatient t
~ option was not mentioned in the course of th
had gathered information and talked
as well as his parents, indicated th
camping program and felt that it c
agreed to contact the appropriate
the application process. In the meantime, i
receive learning disability support

}

Y :
Barbara Boat, Ph.D.

Licensed Practicing Psychologist
Division of Child Psychiatry

GAS: BB/ jww
1/23/86
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Family therapy was recommended through the local
titioner in the Tarboro area. With
t techniques and integrate Anthony
right suggested the option of having

fie N.C. Therapeutic Camping Program. Apparently, their
herapy have been unsuccessful. Although this
e evaluation, Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright

with Anthony about the program. Anthony,

eir willingness to try-the residential _
1d be beneficial to the entire family. We T
administrators of the program and facilitate
t was recommended that Anthony
services through the Tocal school system.

K. Spidi
Psychology Intern
Division of Child Psychiatry
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Patient WAINWRIGHT, Anthony Unit No. 62-84-5;  Clinic No. 24,179

PRESENT: Chairperson, Raymond Schmitt, M.D.; Social Worker and Supervisor,
Florence Harris, ACSW; Social Work Intern and Family Therapist, Bambi Gibson;
Team Psychologist and Supervisor, Barbara Boat, Ph.D.; Psychology Intern

and Child Therapist, Gail Spiridigliozzi, M.A.

PROCESS: Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright and Anthony were seen for a total of
three interviews on February 26, March 12, and Marth 26, 1985. The family ‘
initially met together with the child and family therapists. In the follow- !
ing sessions, Anthony was seen individually by Gail Spiridigliozzi while his :
mother spoke with Bambi Gibson. The remainder of the psychological testing
was completed on April 2, 1985. Anthony was also seer for an audiological
-evaluation and a central auditory processing test battery at this time.

In addition, information was obtained from Dr. Richard Auten, Anthony's
pediatrician, Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy, Martin Middle School, and Dr.
Charles Moore, a psychologist affiliated with Greenville Psychiatric =

Associates, :

REASON FOR REFERRAL: Anthony is a 14 year 2 month old white male from
Tarbore, N.C. He was referred to the Child Outpatient Psychiatry Unit by

the family's pediatrician, Dr. Richard Auten, for a comprehensive diagnostic
evaluation. Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright, Anthony's parents, were particularly
concerned regarding his Tearning difficulties and behavior problems to the
extent that he was recently asked to Teave a private school in the area

(Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy).

PRESENTING PROBLEM: Anthony presents with a history of learning and
behavior difficulties, beginning with his placement in a Tearning disability
classroom as a fifth grade student. Subsequently, Anthony was evaluated by
a variety of professionals and was seen by a psychologist. for several
sessions. According to Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright, Anthony's current behavior
probtems include; his impulsivity, excessive taTking inschool; tendency to——
follow the lead of peers, negative attention-seeking behaviors (e.g., throw-
ing spit balls and pulling hair}, occasional bedwetting, and defiance of
rules imposed by his parents. Peer relationships are also problematic for

Anthony, as well as his Tow self-esteem and poor school performance.

Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright report that Anthony has been into more serious
trouble in the past. For instance, he was required to appear in court i
regarding an obscene phone call incident. He has also been involved in the i
vahdalism of two houseés; this matter was settled out of court. There have

been other behavior problems of a serious nature which did not result in

court action {i.e.,.setting fire to some garbage on a neighbor's porch, trying

to pass dramamine off as illegal drugs, and throwing a stick at a person's

car windshield}. Apparently, Anthony's tendency to get into trouble at

sthool resulted in his recent expulsion from Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy.

FAMILY BACKGROUND:_ Anthony lives wiﬁh his natural parents, Kay and Ken

Watnwright, and a younger sister, Krista, who is T0 years old and currently

(;c:ontinued on back) . 3 l
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in thg fifth grade. Ken Wainwright is 38 years old and is the owner/operator of
Fhe Piggly Wiggly Grocery Store in Tarboro. Kay Wainwright is 36 years old and
is employed on-a full-time basis by North Carolina National Bank.

Anthony was the product of a normal pregnancy, labor and delivery. During his
first year, Anthony reportedly had the colic and was in and out of the hospital with
bronchitis and asthma accorddng to his mother. Mrs. Wainwright said that she did
not like Anthony very much during that first year. When Anthony was two years old,
Mrs. Wainwright described him as being "all boy", that is, "getting into things."
Apparently, he was very close to a maternal aunt for a long time. Mr. and Mrs.
Wainwright describe Anthony as being average up until the third or fourth grade.

As they recall, Anthony was evaluated in the fourth grade and placed in a learning
disability classroom in the fifth grade. The nature of this placement (whether

or not it was a resource room or a self-contained classroom) was unclear from

~ their description.

Anthony attended the C. B. Martin Middle School:iin Tarboro as a seventh grade
student:and was not promoted. According to a forner teacher, he.spent most of

his time in detention hall. He returned for the month of August, 1984, before his
parents decided to transfer him to a private school (Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy) .
Anthony remained there until December, 1984 when he was expelled. He returned to
Martin Middle School to repeat the seventh grade and currently attends Chapter 1
remedial classes in math and language arts on a daily basis. i

INTERVIEW WITH THE PATIENT: Anthony is a handsome adolescent male who was com-
fortably dressed and neatly groomed for all sessions. He willingly participated
in the evaluation and did not voice any objections to doing so. Anthony was
generally quiet, however, and difficult %o engage in a casual conversation. He
spoke only when specifically addressed by the examiner. Even then, his responses
weré brief and it was often necessary to repeat the initial. question or statement.
Perhaps the most information was gained in the course of a ‘structured interview
where Anthony responded to items on the Sentence Completion Form and the Piers-
Harris Self-Concept Scale. Otherwise, he did not talk about his academic and
behavior problems (individuaily or in the family session).

PSYCHOLOGICAL TESTING: Throughout the psychological testing sessions, Anthony

was cooperative with the examiner and pleasant. Still, he needed to be prompted
at_times to continue working; particularly on the verbal subtests of the WISC-R.
Although Anthony answered impulsively at times, THis was not a consistemt response.

No obvious attentional problems were evident in the one-on-one testing sessions,

in contrast to reports of his behavior in the classroom situation. Anthony often
Tooked to the examiner for confirmation of his responses, however, and seemed
“surprised to receive verbal praise for his overall performance at the conclusion

of the test.

On the Wechsler Intelligence Scale for Children-Revised, Anthony obtained a
Verbal IQ secore of 81 (Low Average) and a Performance IQ Score of 101 (Average).
bu& to the 30 point difference.between these scales, Anthony's Full Scale IQ
score of 89 § .o *..7 .+ = } does not accurately describe his

~ current level of intellectual funétioning. Anthony's pattern of subtest scores
suggests that his perceptual organization skills are a relative strength in

comparison to his verbal comprehension/expression skills.

ment was evaluated by means of the Woodcock-

-~ Johnson Psychoeducational Battery, Part II. His basic reading, math and written
“Tanguage skills as well as his fund of general knowledge are Tower than would

! &;.M : (continued on next page) ’B’b
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DIAGNOSTIC SUMMARY

Date

Unit No. §2-84-57  Clinic No. 24 179

Patient WAINWRIGHT, Anthony

&

-

PRESENT: ;Chairpénscn, Raymond Schmitt, M.D.; Social Worker and Supervisor,

Florence Harris, ACSW; Social Work Intern and Family Therapist, Bambi Gibson;
Team Psychologist and Supervisor, Barbara Boat, Ph.D.; Psychology Intern

and Child Therapist, Gail Spiridigliozzi, M.A.

Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright and Anthony were seen for a total of

three interviews on February 26, March 12, and Marth 26, 1985. The family
initially met together with the child and family therapists. In the follow-

ing sessions, Anthony was seen individually by Gail Spiridigliozzi while his g
mother spoke with Bambi Gibson. The remainder of the psychological testing j
was completed on April 2, 1985. Anthony was also seen for an audiological
evaluation and a central auditory processing test battery at this time.

In addition, information was obtained from Dr. Richard Auten, Anthony's
-pediatrician, Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy, Martin Middle Schoal, and Dr.

Charles Moore, a psychologist affiliated with Greenville Psych1atr1c‘_

Associates.

PROCESS:

REASON FOR REFERRAL: Anthony is a 14 year 2 month old white male. from

Tarboro, N.C. He was referred to the Child Outpatient Psychiatry Unit by
the family's pediatrician, Dr. Richard Auten, for a comprehensive diagnostic
evaluation. Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright, Anthony's parents, were particularly
concerned regarding his Tearning difficulties and behavior problems to the
extent that he was recently asked to Teave a private school in the area |

(Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy).

PRESENTING PROBLEM: Anthony presents with a history of learhing ang'

" behavior difficulties., beginning with his placement in a Tearning disabjiity

classroom as-a fifth grade student. Subsequently, Anthony was evaluated by
a variety of professionals and was seen by a psychologist. for several
sessions. -According to Mr. and Mrs. Wa1nwr1ght Anthony's current behav1or

I probTems” HETudE Fis’ impuTsivity, excessive talking in school, tendency to

follow the Tead of peers, negative attention-seeking behaviors {é.g., throw-
ing spit balls and pulling hair), occasional bedwetting, and defiance af
rules imposed by his parents. Peer relationships are also problematic for
Anthony, as well as his low self-esteem and poor school performance

Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright report that Anthony has been into more ser1ous
trouble im the past. For instance, he was required to appear in court
regarding an obscene phone call incident. He has also been involved in the
vandalism of two houses; this matter was settled out of court. There have
been other behavior problems of a serious nature which did not result in
court action (i.e., setting fire to some garbage on a neighbor's. porch, try1nc
to pass dramamine off as fllegal drugs, and throwing a stick at a person's
car windshield). Apparently, Anthony's tendency to get into troubTe at

school resulted in his recent expulsion from Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy.

FAMILY“BACKGRUUND: Anthony Tives with his natiral parents, Kay aﬁd'Ken

-Wafnwﬁfght,anda younger sister, Krista, who is 10 years old and currently .

{3
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in thg fifth grade. Ken Nainwright is 38 years old and is the owner/operator of
?he Piggly Wiggly Grocery Store in Tarbore. Kay Wainwright is 36 years old and
is employed on-a full-time basis by North Carolina National Bank.

Anthony was the product of a normal pregnancy, labor and delivery. During his

first year, Anthony reportedly had the colic and was in and out of the hospital with
bronchitis and asthma according to his mother. Mrs. Wainwright said that she did
not 1ike Anthony very much during that first year. When Anthony was two years old,
Mrs. Wainwright described him as being "all boy", that is, "getting into things."
Apparently, he was very close to a maternal aunt for a Tong time. Mr. and Mrs.
Wainwright describe Anthony as being average up until the third or fourth grade.

As they recall, Anthony was evaluated in the fourth grade and placed in a learning
disability classroom in the fifth grade. The nature of this placement {(whether

or not iit was a resource room or a self-contained classroom) was unclear from

their description.

_ ( in Middle Schooliin Tarboro as a seventh grade
student:and was not promoted. According to a former teacher, he spent most of

his time in detention hall. He returned for the month of August, 1984, before his
parents decided to transfer him to a private school (Tarboro/Edgecombe Academy).
Anthony remained there until December, 1984 when he was expelled. He returned to
Martin Middle-School to repeat the seventh grade and currently attends Chapter 1
remedial classes in math and language arts on a daily basis. ‘ =

Anthony attended the C. B. Mart

INTERVIEW WITH THE PATIENT: Anthony is a handsome adolescent male who was com-
Fortably dressed and neatly groomed for all sessions. He willingly participated
in the evaluation and did not voice any objections to doing so. Anthony was

generally quiet, however, and difficult to engage in a casual conversation. He
spoke only when specifically addressed by the examiner. Even then, his responses

were brief and it was often necessary to repeat the initial question or statement.
Perhaps the most information was gained in the course of a structured interview
where Anthony responded to items on the Sentence Completion Form and the Piers-
Harris. Self-Concept Scale. Otherwise, he did not talk about his academic and
behavior problems (individually or in the family session). :
PSYCHOLOGICAL TESTING: Throughout the psychological testing sessions, Anthony

was cooperative with the examiner and pleasant. Still, he needed to be prompted
~atatimes—tefeontinue—workingr_particularly_on_the_verba1“subteg;g,gf,jhﬁ_NI§C:R;_._“_
"Although Anthony answered impulsively at times, this was not a consistent response.
No obvious attentional prohlems were evident in the one-on-one testing sessians,

in contrast to reports of his behavior in the classroom situation. Anthany often
looked to the examiner for confirmation of his responses, however, and seemed
surprised to receive verbal praise for his overall performance at the conclusion

of the test.

On the Wechsler Intelligence Scale for Children-Revised, Anthony obtained a
verbal IQ score of 81 (Low Average) and a Performance 1Q Score of 101 (Average).

Du# to the 30 point difference..between these scales, Anthony's Full Scale IQ
R Te T  does not accurately describe his

* current level of intellectual Functioning. Anthony's pattern of subtest scores
suggests that his perceptual organization skills are a relative strength in
comparison to his verbal comprehension/expression skills. - |

Anthony's level of academic achievement was evaluated by means of the Woodcock- !
Johnson Psychoeducational Battery, Part 11. His basic reading, math and written i

Tanguage skills as well as his fund of general knowledge are lower than would : |

gfu.-,- _g‘-ah';g, |
¢ ¢ : ~ {continued on next page)
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Date

Patient WAINWRIGHT, Anthony Unit No. ' Clinic No.

-Scale clearly acknowledged his difficulty with academic subjects and

- .low self-concapt.

than would be expected on the basis of his Performance IQ score. Anthony
is currently functioning at the Tow end of the average range in these
areas. His profile of skills and history of learning problems are con-
sistent with @ diagnosis of a learning disability. Anthony's performance
on the Developmental Test of Visual-Motor Integration indicated that his
visual-motor integration skills are also an.area of weakness. He had
particular difficulty copying three dimensional designs and those with

two or more parts.

Anthony's responses on the Sentence Completion Form and the Piers-Harris

behavior problems. His overall score on the Piers-Harris, in addition to
his self-depreciating remarks throughout the evaluation attest to his
Anthony's self-esteem is particularly low regarding his

physical appearance and intellectual and school functioning. L

Anthony's responses also reflect a sense of detachment from his family,

There is also a sense that he would prefer to be removed from this family
system. Anthony feels that he is not an important member of his family,

and that he has disappointed the family. Though he is aware of his behavior
problems, Anthony's view of their severity is clearly less than his :

parents’ ratings.

PHYSICAL STATUS: Anthony is, reportedly in good health. The notes from
his most recent physical examiantion are included in the file. Anthony.
was referred, however, to the NCMH Division of Speech and Hearing Sciences
for a complete audiological evaluation and a Central Auditory Processing
Test Battery. There has been some concern over the years that part of
Anthony's Tearning and behavior difficulties may be due to his inability
to auditorally process information. Anthony’'s hearing was found te be

“within normal Tmits. His performance on the test battery suggested that

his difficulty may be due to an Attention Deficit Disorder, opposed to a
central auditory processing problem. His behavior at home and in the
classroom setting supports this diagnosis as weill.

FORMULATION: Anthony is a 14 yéar old male with a history of significant
behayior and learning difficulties. The results of recent intellectual
and achievement testing are consistent with a diagnosis of a Tearning
disability. Although 1ittle information was obtained about his early.
behavior and activity level, Anthony's current functioning in the class-
room and at home supports a diagnosis of -an attention deficit disorder,
In regard to his emotional functioning, Anthony appears to have a low -
self-concept, particularly regarding his intellectual and school functioning,
and views himself as being detached from his family. Anthony's parents
rate his behavior problems as being extensive and severe in comparison to
other adolescent boys. They appear to have difficulty accepting Anthony
and proyiding structure for him, and are clearly stressed by his behavior
problems. As a result, there is little communication between Anthony and
his parents, thus perpetuating the cycle of negative family “interactions.

(continued on back) 2 s
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At this point, virtually no attention is paid to Anthony's strengths, and the
potential for change.

DIAGNOSIS: Conduct Disorder, Undersocialized, Aggressive - 312.00
~  Attention Deficit Disorder (with question of hyperactivity) - 314.00

Learning Disability

INTERPRETIVE CONFERENCE: An interpretive conference was hetd on March 26, 1985
With Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright, Anthony, Barbara Boat, Bambi Gibson and Gail
Spiridigliozzi participating. Family therapy was recommended through the local
mental health center or with a private practitioner in the Tarboro area. With
the goal being to Tearn effective management techniques and integrate Anthony
back into the family system. Mrs. Wainwright suggested the option of having
Anthony participate in the N.C. Therapeutic Camping Program. Apparently, their
previous attempts at outpatient therapy have been unsuccessful. Although this
option was not mentioned in the course of the evaluation, Mr. and Mrs. Wainwright

had gathered information and talked with Anthony about the program, Anthony,

as well as his parents, indicated their willingness to try the residential _
camping program and felt that it could be beneficial to the entire family. We o
agreed to contact the appropriate administrators of the program and facilitate
the application process. In the meantime, it was recommended that Anthony
receive learning disability support services through the local school system.

- T = a -. ) 0 M
Barbara Boat, Ph.D. Ga7l A. Spwidiglibzzi,"M.A.

Licensed Practicing Psychologist Psychology Intern
Division of Child Psychiatry Division of Child Psychiatry

. 1|.,,
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Division of Speech and Hearing Sciences
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Diagnostic Evaluation Report

Name: Anthony Wainwright Date of Testing: April 2, 1985

Address: 1700 Pine St. Date of Birth: 10-22-70

Tarrboro, NC 27886
Chronological Age: 14 years, 5 months

Parents: Kay and Kenneth Wainwright :
Examiners: Lynn M. Waters

Thomas L. Layton

Phone: 823-1121

Statement of Problem

Upon the referral of Gail Spiridigliozzi, Child Therapist at the Out-
patient Child Psychiatry Clinic at North Carolina Memorial Hospital, Anthony.
Wainwright, a lé4-year-old male, was seen at our clinic on April 2, 1985 for
a complete audiological evaluation and a Central Auditory Processing Test
Battery. He is presently enrolled in the 7th grade learning Disabilities
Program at CB Martin Middleschool in Tarrboro, N.C.. According to Mrs.
Wainwright, he has been in similar programs since fifth grade. In addition
to having difficulty with his school work he had been demonstrating beha-
vioral and attitudinal problems. There is concern that part of Anthony's
difficulty may be due to his inabiliry to auditorally process information
Medical case history information revealed a history of sinus problems. He
had his tonsils and adenoids removed when he was 4 years old and recently

completed a course of anfibiotics for an éar infection.

 Igst Results - Audiological

Anthony's hearing was found to be within normal Iimits with a conduc— :
tive component present in the right ear. Speech Reception Thresholds (SRT) ;
of 15dB and 5dB were obtained in the right and left ears, respectively. |

" These results were commensurate with pure tone findings. When speech was
presented at a suprathreshold level, Anthony's ability to understand and !
discriminate speech was excellent in both ears. Impedance audiometry re- !
vealed a Type B tympanogram in the right ear, which suggests fluid in the i
middle ear, and a Type C in the left with a severe negative pressure peak
at -300muf,0. . These findings are consistent with the conductive component
found in his right ear and Anthony's comment that his right ear felt
"plugged up" during testing. His decrease in hearing was compensated for

during .the rest of the test battery.

)




Test Results - Central Auditory Processing Test Battery

I.

II.

ITT.

- IV

Goldman~-Fristoe~-Woodcock (GFW) -Selective Attention Test

Wainwright..2

(Given to determine if an dndividual is having difficulty attending
when a variety of background noise is present.)

Subtest Raw Percentile Age Standard  Stanine
Score Equivalent Score

Quiet 11/13

Fan 31/33 54

Cafeteria 32/33 76

Voice 31/33° 24 :

Total 105/110 42 ©13.10% 48 5

The Adult Version of the Token Test

Part
L
Ir
111
v
v
Total

Raw Score

10/10
10/10
10/10
10/10
20727
62/67

The Staggered Spondee Word Test (SSW) by Katz

C-SSW-
Score Category Score Category
Total 8.75 Mild 2.5 Normal
Ear 11.25 Mild 2.5 Normal
Condition 17.5 Mild 5.0 Normal
Overall Mild Normal

‘Wichita AuditoryiFusroﬁ Test (WAFT) by McCroszkay

Mean Auditory Fusion Threshold was greater than 8.

(At 250Hz he became fatigued and did not identify any

A-88W (Order Effect) -

changes

even though he was able to perform the task at other frequencies.)

The Boder Test of Reading-Spelling Patterns

 Redding Level:
Reading Age: 11

A Reading Quotient:

6.6

78

Reading—Spelling Pattern: Dyaphonetic .
(strength in visual gestalt function and weakness in auditory

analytic function)

b

Y
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Interpretation of Central Auditory Processing Battery

The purpose of the GFW Selective Attention Test 1s to determine if an
individual is having difficulty attending to a picture pointing identifi-
cation task when a variety of competing messages are present.

Although Anthony only had a total of 5 errors, he is in an age group
that 1s expected to get all of the items correct. Three of the errors
were when the background noilses were at the loudest levels. Two errors
were "bag" for "bang', but he did not miss this in all situations.

This would indicate that he has difficulty when background noise is
present and therefore, this should be reduced if not eliminated in the
classroom situation in order to reduce his distractabilitcy.

The Token Test is used to evaluate one's short and long term auditory
memory skills. This is a necessary reading readiness skill. Anthony had
no difficulty with the task when the commands involved shozt term memory -
Technically, an item can not be counted correct if it has to be

In both cases he got them right on the second trial. He admitted

he was mot paying attention. In two other items, he confused the color and
or shape. The last error involved reversing the directioms. It should be
noted that by Part V, he was not as attentive and had to be reminded of the

task.

storage.
repeated.

The SSW 1s a dichotic listening task (different signals are presented
to each ear) that is a measure of central auditory dysfunction. The ligt-
ening task is presented so that each ear leads 50% of the time. The errors
are totaled based on the condition under which the error occurred, i.e.
R-NC, R-C, L-C, L-NC. The errors are evaluated in terms of the order in
which they were presented (first vs. second spondee) and for ear (first)
effect, 1.e. does an individual have more errors when the information is
presented to one ear vs. the other. Results indicate only 2 mild problem
with this task. He did have more difficulty responding correctly to the
second spondee than the first, regardless of the ear he heard it out of.
This ‘suggasts & problem with atténding”to’a’number of complex -stimuli.

On the WAFT, Anthony was instructed to respond when he heard auditory
gtimuli (blips) w1th varying degrees of short interstimulus intervals. This
task t£akes approximately 10 minutes and is glven at a number of frequenc1es.
By the last and lowest frequency he could not di fferentiate any differences
even though he had performed the task at all of the other frequencies with-
out any prcblems, suggesting that he became bored/inattentive and gave up
responding to the task at hand as opposed to being incapable of performing

the ‘task correctly.

One of the prime purposes of the Boder.Reading and Spelling Test is to
determine what method the child is using for his or her word attack skills
for reading and writing. Anthony relies very heavily on the visual, compo-
nent and tries to spell everything phonetically.. When he was asked to spell

29



Wainwright..4

words he knew by sight as well as.unknown vocabulary items, he attempted to
spell all of them phonetically and came vetry close if one was reading his
responses phonetically instead of as we actually spell them in English.
Based on their labeling of reading and spelling patterns, Anthony would

be Dysphonetic. His weakness is an auditory analytic function and his

strength is in the visual gestalt functiom.

Summary and Recommendatdions

Based on the history we have been given and Antheny's performance on
the various tests, our results indicate that his difficulty is due to an
Attention Defieit possibly associated with hyperactivity as opposed to a
Central Auditory Processing problem. If the latter was present, he would
have done much poorer on the tests than he did. ‘

Tn addition, in order to help facilitate his performance in the class-
room, background noise needs to be eliminateéd whenever possible. The use of
earplugs may be helpful while doing individual work. Directions should be
given with visual cues as reminders as he has some difficulty with a long
string of auditorally given directions. If he is receiving any resource
help, they could work on slowly introducing background noise, while having -~
him attend to the task at hand, to see if it is possible to help him com~

pensate for this preblem.

Since Anthony approaches reading -and spelling phonetically, concéntra-
tion should focus on word attack skills, rote memory of rules and various
words that don't fit the phonetic rules, #:e. "eight' sounds like "ate".
His confidence also nmeeds to be improved and for.a while, the teacher may
want to concentrate more on how close he comes to writing a word correct

phonetically with the right versus wrong aspect.

Anthony should also be followed medically with regards to the

Finally,
blems still present after his

middle ear problems and resulting in hearing pro
ear infection nearly one month ago.

If we can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to comtact
Sincerely,

Lynn M. Waters, M.A., CCC/A
Audiologist

Lo { Ly Foorr
Thomas L. Layton, Ph.D., CCC/S
Associate Professor -

ec: O/P Child Psychiatry Clinic

l v
1
.




NAME: Anthony Wainwright

o . '
Th. .nformation has been disclosed to you from
records whose confidentiality is protected by Federal

- CumberllandLaw. Federal Regulation {42 CFR, Part 2) prohibits
Hospita

vou from making any further disclosure of it without
the specific written consent of the persor to whom it

jns, or as otherwise permitted by such

3425 Melrose Road — Phone (919) ‘#mns. A general authorization for the rolease of

. Fayettevilie, N.C. 28304 aqical or other information is NOT sufficient for this
purpose.

PSYCHOEDUCATIONAL EVALUATION

DATE OF TESTING: 12-04-86

TOTAL TEST:

DOB: 10-22-70 GRADE: 9
Chronological Age: 16-0
.ACHIEVEMENT TEST ADMINISTERED: grade . standard . age
T. Wide Range Achievement Test (WRAT) équivalent _Score percentile
Readirig Recognition 58 71
Spelling 3B 70
Arithmetic 6B 72 3
IT, Peabody Individual Achievement Test (PIAT)
Mdathematics ' 8.2 92 30
Reading Recognition 5.6 81 10
Reading Comprehension 6.2 83 13
Spelling 6.2 82 12
General Information 7.8 89 23
6.6 81 10

BEHAVIORAL OBSERVATIONS -~ Anthony entered testing willingly and was cooperative throughout

the session.
hesitant to respond to questions when he wasn't confident of his answer.

He was qulet and offered little spontaneous conversation. He was

He often

responded, "huh", asked that questions be repeated and indicated that he "wasn't
listening' to questions.

Anthony would often mumble a response and then say "Ah,

never mind." He seemed to have little coiifidence in his abilitles.

INTERPRETATIONS OF TEST RESULTS

Math —-- Anthony's performance on the WRAT written math subtest indicated ifunctioning
within. the borderline/educable mentally handicapped range for his Chronological age.
He missed problems which involved mixed numbers, decimals, percentage and linear

measurenment.

His performance on the PIAT indicated functioning within the average

range for his Chronologlcal age.
Reading Recognition and Reading Comprehension —- Anthony's performance on the

WRAT and PIAT reading recognition subtests indicated functioning within the border-

line teo low average range for his Chronologilcal age.
unknown words - especially with vowel sounds, he gave up easily.

Since he had difficulty decoding
His performance

on the PTAT reading comprehension subtest indicated functioning within the-low--— -—-—-....
average range for his Chronological age.

Name

Anthony Wainwright

# Attending Physician [ F
00~-49~-92 Robert Jackson _




Psychoeducational Evaluation
ithony Wainwright
Page 2

T

TLﬁ.nkfonnaﬁon has been disclosed to you from
recards whose confidentiality is protected by Federal
Law. Federal Regulation {42 CER, Part 2} prohibits
you from making any further disclosure of it without
the specific written consent of the person to whom it
pertains, or as otherwise permitted by such
regulations. A general authorization for the reYease of
medical or other information is NOT sufficient for this
pUrPOSE.

Spelling ~- Anthony's ‘performance on the WRAT written spelling subtest
indicated functioning within the borderline/educable mentally handicapped

range for his Chronological age.

Frrors included: ea/educate, mole/material,

re/ruin, fashsion/fashion. His performance on the PIAT spelling subtest
indicated functioning within the low average range for his Chronological age in

recognition of correctly spelled words.

General Information -- Anthony's performance on the PIAT general information
subtest indicated functioning within the upper limits of the low average range

for his Chronological age.

Summary and Recommendations -- The results of this educational assessment
suggest functioning within the average range for his Chronological age in math

concepts.

He is working within the low average range for his Chronological

age in reading comprehension, recognition of correctly spelled words and

general informatiom.

He is working within the borderline/educable mentally

handicapped range for his Chronological age in reading recognition, written
spelling, and written math computation. Recommendations include}
(1) Success experiences within the educational sétting with encouragement and

praise for tasks attempted or achieved.

(2) Use of dictionary respellings to.pronounce unknown

sounds and rules might be beneficial.

words and review of wvowel

(3) Remediation of math skills indicated to be weak on the WRAT and Key Math Test.

- ,é@géﬁﬁﬁd%_%g
- athleen Radeliff, M# ¥d.

Psychoeducational Evaluator




NAME: Anthony Wainwright
DOB:

£ [N -

- !

Trﬂ.- hformation has been d

records whose conﬁdentiaﬁtgi

- HA
- Cumberland 1o rederal Regulation (4

isclosed to you from
s protected by Faderal
CFR, Part 2} prohibits

Hospital you from making any further disclosure of it witheut
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LEARNING DISABILITIES EVALUATION

10-22-70 GRADE: 9

Chronological Age: 16-10

Achievement Test Administered:

NOT sufficient for this

DATE OF TESTING: 12-04-86

Grade Equilvaler

I. Key Math Dilagnostic Arithmetic Test
Numerations -- square of a number, decimal value, fatio 7.0
i Fractions —- 1/2 + 1/4 of a ecircle, 3 of 8 = 3/8, 2/3 of. 15, 3/4 of a set, 5.4
16/5 =3 1/5 ' .
Geometry and Symbols -- (') feet, parallel and perpendicular lines 5.3
Addition -~- mixed numbers 8.3
Subtraction -~ mixed numbers 7.7
Multiplication -- mixed numhers 8.4
Division -- 2 digit divisors, fractions 7.4
Mental Computation -- 3 computations 7.2
Numerical Reasoning -~ mixed numbers and equivalent fractions 5.2
Word Problems —- mixed numbers, percentage, division 5.2
Missing Elements -- no error 9.5
Money -- make change, read bank stub balance _ 4.8
Measurement —-- use balance scales, lyd.+1ft.= inches, ton, estimate height 5.6
Time —-- pumber of years in a decade, read alarm setting to quarter hour 6.5
TOTAL TEST —-- ‘6.4
II. Woodcock Reading Mastery Tests ' .
' easy reading reading grade failure. reading i
, level lével " level
Letter Identification - 4.1 6.2 12.9
Word Tdentification 3.8 4.4 5.3
Word Attack 2.6 3.5 4.9
Word Comprehension 2.7 3.6 5.1
Pagssage Comprehension 3.2 4.2 5.5
TOTAL READING ' 3.4 4.2 5.4
; dﬁé%/ : _',)?f/z
Kathleen Radcliff, M.FRd.
Psychoeducational Evaluator
Name # Attending Physician . ﬁ F
00-49-92 Robert Jackson, M.D.
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Fayetteville, N.C. 28304  regulations. A general authorization for the re

Anthony Wainwright - DATE OF M¥BOS8SION: 11-4-86
DOB: 10-22-70 '

IDENTIFYING DATA: Anthony is a 16 year old male who was brought here for
evaluation by his father, Ken Wainwright.

CHIEF COMPLAINT AND REASON FOR ADMISSION: Anthony has been in detention for
a month in Greenville, NC, after stealing an automobile and being picked up
for minor traffic violations. He went to court on 11-4-86 and was brought
here the same day for a 10-day evaluation.

HISTORY OF PRESENT ILLNESS: Anthony dates his problems back to the seventh

grade when he began to get in trouble in school. At that time, he got in with

the wrong crowd, according to his parents, and eventually into delinquent behavior,
including the use of drugs and alcohol. He was evaluated at Chapel Hill on an
outpatient basis, was told that he did not have a learning problem, and apparently

was nmot taken into treatment.

Anthony was sent to Wilderness Camp about a year ago. I don't have any written
reports about how that went for him, but he says that he hated it. Sleeping in

a tent, cooking your own meals, being away from the town, etc., was not his idea

of fun. After ten months there, he ran away and has been at home for the past

two to three months. Since coming home, he has gotten back into drugs and alcohol
(as much as he can get his hands on) and has gotten into all kinds of delinquent
behavior, including vandalism, totaling his parents' car and almost killing himself,

and later taking another car.

His mother says that he is very Impulsive, immature, and never thinks of the con-
sequences of his actions., He hangs around with delinquent youngsters and is
involved with a crowd of kids who are involved with drugs. She says that he has
very low self-esteem and is very quiet, keeps to himself a lot, and is usually

polite with adults.

I.was unable to elicit problems at home that might have been the root cause for
some of his current behavior. He tends to idealize his parents, to deny that
there are problems between himself and his motheér and father, and says that he

gets along with his younger sister. »

PAST PSYCHIATRIC HISTORY: See above. As noted, Anthony had a psychiatric workup
at Chapel H1ll several years ago, with no documentation of treatment, and has just
returned from ten months at a Wilderness Camp. I have no record of any diagnoses,

medications, ete,

MENTAL STATUS EXAMINATIQN: Anthony is well-dressed, well-groomed, and responsive
in the interview situation. Today he is less angry-looking than he was last night
and seemed more cooperative. He was quite candid and responsive to_questions, at

111..0 information has been disclosed to you from

" HA
recards whose confidentiality is protected by Federal
""-"'c'umbe'ilandLaw. “Federal Regulation (42 CFR, Part 2} %r'oﬁi'hﬁ'é
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medical or other information is NOT sufficient for this {‘

times elaborating on a question and even producing additional information. His
speech was normal, relevant and coherent, and with normal associations. There was

no evidence of thought disorder, delusions, hallucinations, etc. The mood and affect,

except for ‘his anger about being here and a somewhat chip-on-the-shoulder attitude,

Name

' ' ¥ : Attending Physician .
Anthony Wainwright 00-49-92 ' Robert Jackson, M.D. L‘-*

Q- 2808
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was unremarkable. He did not express any remorse or shed tears over his

predicament,

He appears to be of average intelligence, 1s orlented in all

threé spheres, has memory for past and recent events, pays attention and can

concentrate on what is being said.

faulty.

ADMISSICON DIAGNOSIS:

provided with recommendations for future treatment.
evaluation, psychological testing, and maintain him in the adolescent milieu.

ADMISSION PLAN FOR TREATMENT:

His insight and judgment are obviously

Conduct discorder, undersoccialized, aggressive. 312.00

Axis I:
Axis TI: No diagnosis.
Axis III: ¥No diagnosis.

We've been advised by the family that they have a
very limited insurance policy and that they are anxious to have him assessed and

We will complete physical
I

will be seeing him daily, either in small group therapy or in individual therapy,
to facilitate his evaluation. He will also be attending school during this time.

DISCHARGE PLAN: Anticipated length of stay:

with recommendations for treatment and/or training achool.
plan: This will depend somewhat on our workup.
our recommendations might be to put him in training school.

10 days. Discharge to: parents,

Possible aftercare

It is very possible that one of

PROGNOSIS: The prognosis for this youngster for becoming an independent and

functioning adult are not very promising.

He has been In trouble since the seventh

grade, and this has been gradually getting worse, in spite of efforts to help him.
He uses alcohol and drugs to excess, he follows other dellnquent youngsters, and

seems to have little remorse or concern for what happens.

At least on one occasion,

he has demonstrated that he is very self-destructive, and certainly this is also
borne out in his use of drugs and alcohol.

) —

Robert Jackson, M.D.

RI/ip
D: 11-5-86
T: 11-5-86

Name #

Anthony Wainwright

00-49-92

Attending Physician ‘ F 5‘
Robert Jackson, M.D.

GH- 288

ADMISSTON NOTE
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PSYCHOLOGICAL EVALUATION

Anthony Wainwright DATE OF ADMISSION: 11/4/86

DOB: 10/22/70

REASON FOR REFERRAL: Anthony is a l6~year-old male who lives with his natural

" parents and younger, l2-year-old, sister in Tarboro, North Carolina. He is
enrolled in the nineth grade at Tarboro High School. He was recently admitted
to the Adolescent Unit of HSA Cumberland Hospital with an admitting diagnosis
of Conduct Disorder, undersocialized, aggressive type. His presenting problems
on admission included the following: detention for a month in Greenville, North

Carolina for stealing a car and being picked up for a trafflc violation; Wilder-

ness placement about a year ago as & result of deliquent behavior including van-—
He

dalism and totalling his parents' car; impulsiveness; and low self-esteem.
was referred for evaluation by Dr. Jackson for the purpose of further assessing

his psychological status.

TESTS ADMINISTERED: Wechsler Intelligénce Scale for Children—Revised (WISC-R),
Bender Visual Motor Gestalt Test, Draw-A-Person (DAP), Incomplete Sentences Blank-
High School Form (ISB), Rorschach, Minnesota Multiphasic Personality Inventory

(MMPI), 15 minute interview.

Anthony is a rather tall youngster of appropriate welght

BEHAVIORAI OBSERVATIONS:
He was alert and oriented at

with brown hair, blue eyes, and freckled complexion.
the time of the testing, with his thinking being organized and with his affect be-

- ing subdued and mildly depressed in quality. He was accepting of the testing tasks
. and cooperative throughout the administrations. He evidenced a soft-spoken manner,
with his articulations being adequate and with there being no problems in compre-
hending my statements to him. His gait and finer motor performances were unremark-
able. He was inclined to deny or play down the significance of personal diffieul~-=
ties. He did sdmit to a sense of sadness over his behavior and felt that his asso-
ciation with a wrong group of peers had influenced him in a deviant direction. Also,
it was his opinion that his law breaking behavior had typically occurred when he was
using drugs or had been drinking to excess. There was a certain element of discount-

ing or minimizing involved in his discription of his difficulties,

TEST RESULTS: Anthony evidences a cognitive style that is in the direction of an
impressionistic assessment of his experiences that 1s lacking in attention to de-

tails or well elaborated labeling of experiénces. He is not inclined to be-all
that attentive to the day in and day out, routinized elements of his life. His re-
ality testing is marginal by virtue of erroneous interpretations of his experiences
that are more a function of persomality disturbances than any digsorganization or
the intrusion of bizarre ideas. He retains acapacity for conventional perspectives

46
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and he has inner resources in terms of an imaginal lifgugﬂgglis realistically
tempered and allows him a degree of healthy escape and a degree of healthy
ventilation. Anthony's range of interest is certainly constricted currently
and his intellectual productivity is similarly curtailed, with this inhibition
of his intellectual life associated with a depression, Intellectually, he is -
generally performing in a Low Average range of achievement, with his verbal
skills being Borderline and his non-verbal skills being Average (WISC-R full
scale I.Q. 87, verbal scale I.Q. 79, and performance scale I.Q. 98). I have
listed below his achievements across the different areas assessed.

VERBAL SUBTESTS SCALED SCORE "PERFORAMNCE SUBTESTS SCALED SCORE
: Information 6 Picture GCompletion ’ 9
Similarities 6 Picture Arrangement 9
Arithmetic 6 Block Design 10 0 0 4 9 9
Gomprehension 8 Coding . 11 2

There 1s ohviously a significant discrepancy between Anthony's verbal and
non~verbal performances with the latter being the superior of the two. This
discrepancy is on the order of 19 I.Q. score points and is of sufficient magni-
tude to warrant a diagnosis of Learning Disability affecting his achievements
on verbal tasks. This weakness in verbal areas has significant implications
for Anthony's academic performances and suggests that in that area he is exper-
iencing major frustrations. It is notable that he mentioned to me that he had
performed acceptably in school until he reached middle school when he began to
have difficulties and, in faect, failed the seventh grade. In contrast to his
verbal deficiencies, he does quite well in all non-verbal areas.
superiority was also reflected in his Bender Visual Motor Gestalt performances
where his reproductions of the designs were quite adequate and consistent with
an Average intelligence. However, his Bender designs did reflect distortioms
consisternt with depression, as well as an impulsive style and defensiveness in
relationships with authorities with a tendency to resist their constraints.

His non-verbal

Anthony 1s a defemsive youngster who does not easily own personal problems.
Further, he relieés on am overly masculinized posturing to buffer his denial and )
to comperisate for undercurrents of bad feelings about himself. Anthony is a de-.
pressed youngster, with his depression being of a mild to moderate severity. It
is safe to reason that this youngster's verbal deficiencies and associated aca-
demle difficultiés and failures are figuring importantly in his depressive perspec
tives. There is further evidence that familfal relationships are another key fac-
tor. Specifiéally, there is evidence that he experiences his father and authorities
genetrally as towering over him with a critical mien and that his relationship with

his mother is problematic as well. This is not to lay the blame for this youngster's
acting out behavior entirely at the feet of his parents, but simply to -say that there
~ -~ —appears “to be famillal influences on-Anthony's acting out behavior. There is sug— -
gestive evidence of a need for greater closeness to his family, but with him exper-
iencing himself as unable to achieve it. His depression is also being influenced by

4T
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a quite negative perspective on himself that has been conditioned by his misbe-
havior and his relatlonship difficulties.

Anthony's tolerance for stress is rather poor and he resents constraints be—
ing placed upon his activities. He 1s most sensitive to critical feedback, par-
ticularly if it is emotionally charged, to which he is apt to over-react in ways
that are not comstructive. His rebellion is obviously carrying him in the direc-
tion of alignment with marginally adjusted youngsters and this in turn is shaping
him in the direction of a rule-breaking lifestyle. There was some evidence for a
potentlal for a Bipolar Affective Disorder by virtue of an elevation on the MMPI
Mania Scale. This elevation may be strictly a function of this youngster's more
anti-gocial traits or the sense of frustration and failure that he is encountering,
Nonetheless, there is sufficient evidence for it to warrant assessment for this

possibility.

Behaviorally, one can expect that Anthomy will display a depressed posture,
with his rebelliousness only surfacing under conditions of emotional arousal,
particularly under conditions of emotionally laded negative feedback. Further,
he is apt to have trouble admitting to personal problems and to hide his adjust-
ment difficulties behind an overly masculinized, tough exterior., His overly mas-
culinized presentatilon will be rather quietly expressed, as opposed to more auda-
cious displays. His relationship difficulties with his family and his failure to
overcome them has inspired some sense of futility in his relationships with people

that may cause him to be initially distrustful.
This l6-year~old male is generally performing in & Low

There is a significant diserepancy
Further,

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
Average range of intellectual achievement.
between hig verbal and non-verbal performances, in favor of the latter.
this discrepancy 1s of such magnitude as to warrant a diagnosis of Learning Dis-
ability affecting verbal skills, A Mild to Moderate Depression is indicated, along
with Conduct Disorder, undersocialized, aggressive type; and Sporadic Substance
‘Abuse. Anthony's depression has been Influenced by his verbal deficiency and famil-
ial conflicts which have inspired significantly negative perspectives on himself.

He is evidencing a low tolerance for stress, in addition to motor restlessness that
may be purely a function of his stress or may signify a possible bipolar comdition:”

IMPRESSIONS: Mild to Moderate Depression.

Rule out Bipolar Affective Disorder, depressed type.

B

Conduct Disorder, undersocialized, aggressive type.

Sporadic Substance Abuse.

Verbal Learning Disability.
This evaluation was completed on November 5, 1986, Thank you for this wvery 4?

interesting consult. .
| | MTJZ,/ 0,
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Fred T. Lee, Ph.D.

1 e s . - -




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT, THIRD
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR
HAMILTON COUNTY, FLORIDA

CASE NO. 8C02-1342
LOWER CASE NO. 94-150-CF-2

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF HAMILTON

I, GREG GODWIN, CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR THE THIRD JUDICIAL
CIRCUIT, HAMILTON COUNTY, FLORIDA, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS
A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY OF THE EXHIBITS ENTERED IN THE FOLLOWING CAUSE

HEREIN:

ANTHONY FLOYD WAINWRIGHT,
PETITIONER/APPELLANT

VS.
STATE OF FLORIDA,
RESPONDENT/APPELLEE

MAILED OUT CERTIFIED MAIL ON THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2002.

GREG GODWIN
CLERKOF THE GIRGUIT COURT
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State of Florida v. Anthony Floyd Wainwright

Order Summarily Denying Amended Eighth Successive Motion for Postconviction Relief
Case No.: 1994-150-CF

Melissa G. Olin, Circuit Judge

APPENDIX
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day o€ £riaf mitheot Qdem{-e cavte ,RYis Feial coonsel was inedlective Loc Lacling o propects
and / o;r adequately ooyect to certain \ssves perfaimng o \s ry Tastruckions, prosecutoeial
mSeendoet, o/-;d :-;\;PP roPrate agaravatiaa circumstances,(16) he was demved a Lo trral when
-i—ke.l et écm‘{- admted Qer{;fu; ;).\'Ca:rly ,(;re_ Sudlﬁot\-d\ 'i-eﬁ-‘;-\w\.y ko evdence ., G/witl W he

.\mc dealed a €o.r +ral whea Yhe deial covet Lorced him o be Aned Ao ARy with his

Co ~defeadant-.




ﬁTx'e.\csome U
and Hhe Ele

( 14 C\‘r 200

e.'i-c., Pef\d.u"

The Unvted States Qtviet CourtLocthe Middle Qreteiet e Florda,
., Quoision,daeunsted. Me Wecawnights Ledecal 2254 pe:k:%\'cr\ Lor beinp Lathmey,

penth Cresit Qovrrof Agpeats afbirmed . Wanwisnt v.Qee. do.c. 27 E 3d 1282

7).

Mr-‘f\')a-}\mr\?k{- does Not AW hove any other Petihon, applicatnon, ,appeal, metion,

9 I any Ceurt, edher State of Lederal, as to the Sentence vader attack.,

NATORE OF REL\EE SOLGHT

My, k)a;nvw:?h-\- \$ Qeelins an erder vacoting Wit $entence of deatis and crder:n‘g

a aew (\e/v.c_t‘u( phase.

STATEMENT YOHP THE WITRIN CLAWMS
ARE AT PROCEDURALLL RARRED

M Wacaws ‘gt ackaowiedges +hat e Cour + previens ‘v Tuled saa poeteoaLetion

Mefion attaeiing 4he Same Seateace of death ine\s atacking ia ks ot and that he

seateace nas veen final Lor mere than | year, Ton view o€ thete Qacrs , the inskark mkien

WO nelmaity e proceduratty varred Lrem considesston onthe mevks . Fla.R.Crum . P 2,55

.fd)m and

wiuch Yhe W

(2). However, and as mare fory explained iaine Claime Hheamselues, the Lacts on

vtaia Claime are predicated were wakaowt to Nr.\\')alnwr:?h% erbg atroraey and
-




.Coo\d e

clams ace A

ercessoe £
applicadle Ao

233 (i972) €

oWer expany

Ce«é\d.er;}\'g Y

.;A.\H«eﬂ

Cecrt has el

Fhae beer ascertained by the ecerd e of due ditigence. Acc&rdfng\yrl-be wrthia

Pt procedorally dacted . Fla. R, Crim. © 3.8%1 (dXzXa).

ARGUMENT IO SUPPORT OF POSTEAMIICTIN RELET
GROLAD |

MR WAWWRIGHT TS ENTTTLEDTO POSTZOOVIETION RELIEE
BEcAvSe NEWL? DISCOVERED EVIDEICE SHOWS THAT His
MEVITAL ABE AT THEYTME OF HIS CAPITAL CRIME WAS
RELOW 18 DLETO OREAIC RRAIN DAMAGE AND /0R MEMTAL
RETAKDATION, I\ VIOLATION OF HiS CONVSTTTTWONA L
RIGHTS AS ESTARLISHED RY ROPER v. SImMmMons , SU#3 LS.
$51(2005), Ald ATKISS V.VIRGINMIA S35 US . 304 (2002).

I Tre Eighth Amendrent provides 1 "Excestive bal Shall aot be required et
(AeS 1 poded pner civel and vavsval Ponishment iatiicted “ The provision \s

the Thates threoph the Fourteeith Amerdment. Furmaa v. Gesraa JHOg LS, 238,

per corion)

2.The Egntn Amendments prohcron agacast eroel and cavsval poathiments . lWke
Noe. \anguage oa %he .coms-‘;\%\r\mba : oSt be tnter preted accerding ke s text , by
\story, kradrhion 04 precedent, aad wikh doe regard Lor \ic puspate and -Quz.\c.-\'\o.\.

b 84 heheaal cle*:i?-\.\"\'é' waplement vhie Lrane weor €, the Unadted States Q\:?te me

tablshed 4he propriety oad ablirmed the necess vhy &€ cedercing do T ine
T




evelviag)

determine \

AT VL. &b,

Arend rent ¢
(0'Connor, Y

o Cernatd

.wnkef; H

;A. EQEeF v, Ql

Srandardg o€ decency that mark the brogress o€ a matoring Sotiety " to

Phat puithments are. $o dis proper feaate as 4o 0 &rvel and vas sval. Trop v.Oulles,
6004 (rase) ( Plovality opiaten ).

3. Qecavse tine dear i penall-y 1S the mest Severe Purishment, the B gnkh

pplies to Ve wth special Lorce “Tom pion, v, O¥lahema ,H87T 0.8, 0\, 856 (1288)

[, COACUETIAG A Yudament ), Co».p “ral poaitheeat rutt be Limiked 4o thote offenders
A Aastow cateqsry of the MOt Serions trimes “and wnste extreme cotpa;\ll-’«y

em ' Yhe Moot deserving o€ execvtien’ AtKiaC v.Virdiaia ST LS. 304, 2R Czooz,\ .

4.Rased en the Qore.ge‘nﬁp coasideratvas , the Vaked Weres Lprene Covtt herd

[tmens  SU3 LS. ST Cz2005) rthat the execotien ef \ndividuale Wine were cader \&

years c€ age

ceurt Coond

atthe time of their caprtal erimes (¢ crvel and avsual Poathment Tn shork, ‘he

Fhat three general ditlerenced petween tndindoale vader \& yeats of age and

adors demopstrate that theycaanst with reliawil ity be tlascified ameng Hhe worst obbenders,

F-\:‘S*' ,-Hre.\\r \
Pt ooLs O

@®.. ..

character i1y

ack 6€ maturity and vadevelsped Sense of respeatitility , Whieh e€4en resows
M - censidered actiaas and deciseas. Secand, their Volaerab, lehy oF Suseeptinl ity
hee intlvences and ostsde pressores, aelodiag peer pressoce , And Hrrd, dheir

ot as wel ormed as that of oa adoid, Xod. ok 76 -7,

-3




held +hat a
*‘e/\dér‘\ﬂg +

the Conrt 1A

ok reasoarng
level of wod
categerieal
o

Stand +cal,
Shows that KW
daw;aée, and

reasens ap of

he eceavtion ek the meaxally setacded croel aad vavtoal poAitheant, T add

S. And in AMins v. Vitgiaa, S26 .S, 3o (2602),the Oadted States Svprerne Coort

Nahenal Concensut agaiast exetstnag the meakally retarded had developed

\"‘".-GA ¥

depeadently evalvated the esue aad toond ‘et becavte of their disaoilvhies waareac

‘ sudgmen&-, and eenteol ok theor tmpatses, Yhe meatally retarded deo act act with \he

1 wlqu;\\;{-y +hat chacacteqize the most Serens adold Ct:nmﬂanl ceadoed, yoskcf 11 ng a
l;o\e. m\ﬁ{:\? sweh olbenders iaeliqivie €or the deatis Peralthy. Iod ot 28 -22,

6. Altheogh he kneml-we di8terence, between Fight and wreag and was competent o
e Vo right assects hcl;e. that newly availadle nevropsychological evdence

¢ mental age at the ame of s caprtol Crime was below (8 due +o o¢ gmic. brain

for meatel retardation, Tendering mm aeligibie Gor dhe deatn Peralty vader the

Reper and AYKias ,

T.Mr. Waiwright requests an eu'\de,x&\aw heariag oa thae arevad €or reted so that

he Moy Present the extea - fetord evideace necestary o oS tantate W, Ad e very least,

however, he

._he_: & end

A

seatMed 0 a HOlE hearing ed i to that he may rore Rty explaia tothe Cooct why

L . 3
hed 4o the telvel Soughdr,

3 See Hold

v. State (22 S.2d 982,483 (Fla. 122X TeQuring the 4 Al Covrt o hotd a

a




ment applg

9,

i Loy
Cemmittta o

them™ e wy

attendaatr G

the defendas

ot hus or hed

@

GROUND 2

ME MOANDWRIGHT T8 EASTTTLED TS POSTCHINETHEN REL\EF
QATCALLE, DEWLE DISCOERED EVEeE REMOERS Hig
SENTENCE. OF DEATH CONTTTBTHMALLY BORE L ARLE —
THERE T3 A REAMARLE PROBARILITS THAT A SORO
WREIGHING TAE, BLIOENCE. TR ARGRAVATION AGAMIT
[THE TOTALITS OF DO -~ AVALLARALE MITTEATION WOLLD
RECOMMEID A SERNTENCE. O0F LIFE, T PR 1360 MEST
DOV OeAlT|,

B.Recavte e deatn penaliy 1§ Lhe mesh-Severe P\:r{\qknem-, we E(gm—k Apend -

4 Yo Vvt spedial orce T Thewmpson v. Oklahea L4BTVS. &1, 856 (1 %83(0 'Cof\ﬂer,

boe ;n‘p A yodament). Coptal puachinent mostbe imited to dhase offenders whno
Nacrew) category of the vt Senevt Crimes “ond Whete extreme corpatility males

NS de.ceru.:nas; of exeavtion” Adkias, Supra, S V.. ak Tia.

2. Que +o the severe and (rrevecanle natuore ¢ £ ke death Penally and the
.\-q-h-k—h Anrendmenk concerns ; Hae Varvied Cletes Supf&‘\e- Ctm‘i- has made ¢lear that
i+

nany Capital cate has wide \ak itude 4o cace as a rutigating Lacker any aspect

FCharacter of tecerd on@ oAy o€ the eltcemhances of the trime thak catte Lor a

hearing on

PostCommnetion motions ia Capital cages +o “determinE] Whether an eoidents acy

heatins s

quired and Yo wear legal argument related 4o dhe m%n'u\").

i<}




.Se.-ckenae.. less tan deatih. Lockett v, Oho 438 LS. S8 L, boe (AT 3\({3\\;(-:\'&\( opl.aion-).,

Eddinas v. fllakhema , €45 LS.10¢, 11012 (ias2) ,Seealso Tehnson v. lexas , $0Q V.S, 250,357-62

CWQ'S\ (v mmo:rtzfa\? the toortt \ons prodence. alier Corman V.G'Ecrgim L0 0.5.238 (\q'zz\

(per cuciom) , wrth respest toa &ea%—e«&c;r‘t. contideratioa of aggravating aad mitigatap
Clrcomrandes) .
10. MeWatawrght proflers here as o basis fora Seatence tets Yhan death AerOy
avalanle Ae....vc'c?ts(ckolo seal evidente at Shews his mentol age atthe time ol hig capital
.Cr{me.- was belew \¥ due o 6rganie brawa damage and for mental retardation . Siven W Ahat
cudence dot ASk tender Wim i}\e.lig:\\;;\e. €or the deoth penatiy at he asgued ia grovad |, Me.
Wacawsigh$ subruts thet & toppects a Lindiag et he was vader the wllveace of oa extreme.
mental oF efetional ditkorbance at the ‘ime 68 the céme, Yotk it a powesful Statutery
sidigator. Jee § 421 .\4 LEX(nY, Fia, Stat,
Ta add\ten, Mf.\'()a&mrlg& woutd ok 6ot Yhet a great-deal of evdence Supperthing
NOA- S*q%ry menta\ heatfh mlhéé-&—\b.x wa¢ available at +he dime of Lral bor Aok Presented

+o his seatdnears due dc the vareatonable acts and crmissions o€ ke taal Covisel.

.\‘Ka-k evldence can be Sommoarzed as Lolows -

@) As early as age 6, Me. Wanwrights vavtual meatal de portment breoght
A1 N




him 4o the atteatron of avtier vhies. Oa March 30,1277, i+ was Aoted, th a repoti
by the Edge comue - Nash Meatal Héhl&k Certer that " Certain behavioral
ahn@rmk-ifiég “attended VAL W Aawrght .

(5)YOn Avgost 30,1284, acterd ing 4o Gnasther med:eal /psychols areal
e;nioa-&ien,ii; p;q neted that Me. Waaaw i ight- g;:—ééered Lreman u.\chqmc-t-ér'\zed
_ nﬁeMr\‘M. cleé(d\+duéord.er, whieh P.‘d:' with Nis Pareats vepert from Yhe JH.ue thathe
had difdieoity \G.'.Ofn.i«p; at scheel, had had te be herd back a acade ,and had net
. tesponded te eflocks .a-t- vehavior madification and $+r;actvrtn,q.

() A‘i early as 1887, Mr. Wan night- was diagreted with a “maxed speciie
development-disetder i Tndeed, theoughoot e Wanw e phkt early childnesd he wa¢
mpealcéd\y. W rtienalvzed or confined atthe Edgetompe - Nach Mertal Reo:\kk
Center.

Q)::(\ 138k, ot the age o€ b, Whea a nermal Child wovnd e {a k&;

Qo phomere _yeqr?a\-Mfm seheel , Mo Whawnght was confined at the édgcoa&;e—
| Aash Meatal l—l.eai-\-h Ce.ﬁer Accerdiap 4o dests adminisrered ot thak Yme,.

. :Ac\ud\'ap a psyche-educational @ualvatioa, Mr. W rght Sollered Lrem a “moked

developmental disorder




- fe) Accerdiag +o arsther oy Che~ edutational evafoatioa admaistered by
e Qo%&hei'lna;:l Hospital, wiile e, Widiawigwt wag "eminatly wtia the *low
average tange “Lor s chreaological age fn cecogniion of co trectly speued words,
tiadicated +hat ™ he s workiag within the bocderline educable rmeatattly
handicapped raage “Ia many other areas, includhng ceading ComPrenension, Spating,
and MQ-{-J;\ AT

..(4'-\0« Qeptember 24,1256, Mr.Wamwtight tustaned sigm €L cant head
syories asa réw\* o€ an cutomebile actident. Arong +he procedores administeced
*o M. Wsiwngk- was “psycholsgical Sopport-*

(2) XA o réﬁoﬁ nased e a ¢ontack dated Qeoemner <,18%56, by the
Oecth Cocsliaa Dwsisien od Meatal Heatth , Retardatoa ,ond Qupctasce Abute
Cervices,\k was nsted +nat Mo Woianright waas experienciag didécuity \a MOING
-\-am«éc Yhe eAd o€ therapevtie Sopport . T alse asted the c;'ewe_mx&:\&ed “rved

Cpeartic developmental diserder "

N%kcogk s Coort denred his Clawm thal his val couatels €alore o \Z\uee:i*(g.ol-e and

.Pre.ﬁen\.— the above. evdence et aca ~Statutory meatal healin u:u-\ng'.qiéxé.«.-ka hs Seatencers

ceastdotest wellective assistance. duriap the wadhal cole 1851 preceed \Ag and the

A3




HN

fe,c‘e\\:‘u\g O

da Qopreme Court ol fmed, Wainws ght v. Qtate , ¥ Se. 2d 628,03 (Fla.200%), M,

ASKS the Coort ro recentider Aune prejudice he sollered by his Seatencers not

R Weighiag that evidence ta coalsackion with the pregudhce ne sollered oy ther

Lot weghiag the nevty avdilable nevre psychalegical eudesce whea determimng the re-.\(ni;\\i&-y ot

hs teateace

Newoly aval

(2663)( hetdiA

et death — "\ cartied awmuch areater Lorce Whea 418 Viewed wa dhe l:?k\' otihe

vele nesropsythslogical emdence See Wigains v. Sk | £33 05, S, T38-28

p that to agtess Prejodice the reviewing Covtt must vewe gk he aggravating

.eu‘ud\e/.\ceL aadast 4he totaliby o€ the new-ava lable mdgahing ecidene ).

ecdence 1a
Seatence o f

Phase. .

he may preg

hewerer; hi

.Cbor{- Wik

12 .Izecpec&-éull‘{, there s a reaseaanle prevasiiby Hhat a \ory \ksé\?bdz\? Hhe
qagmuq&-\‘on. aga&\.ﬁ- the -ko*oi‘d\,t ol now ~ava.lante m(%éahim wocld cecommend a

ke 1mprionment, notdeatn. As o tesort, Mr R oawtight 18 eakibied 46 a aew penatby

3. M W awt gt requests an e@de.«hhry henr;-\? oatiag areoad for relied so that
mk-%-&'\e.eﬁ-m-re(-.‘.br& evidence necessary +o Sebstantiate i, A‘\- ;%I\e very least,
P \s enditled toa Hutd hearing oa'\d-ge that ke mave mote Lolly erplain Yo the
v he s entdled vo the retiet soughi-.

GRounDd 3
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afe \ALer P

cf any other

MR WALORIGHT” T8 ENTITLED I3 OTCOMCETION RELIEE

RECAE THE EVIOENCE. OF MITISATION THAT HIS SEMTEMCERS
D10 OOT RECEWE AND WEAGH TOEMTIFIED RETH HEREWY AN
OVTHE TOTAL 3351 PROCEENMEG CUMULATIVE LY, TF Mo

(IXOWNOLALLY, RENQERS HIS SEMTEMCE OF DEATH

CORSTTTUTIO VALY DRELARLE

14, AN of twe Lactual allegations and \egal argements coatdined in areonds | aad 2
rated wy refecence vato Has areord Por cetied ¢

JS?./L{( oline ‘QGFQ?,Q;H\P ewdee aad argoMment- was celevaat anad Aot cuomulatioe

evdence. presented ak Hhal. Mereover, ime Seatencers Coold nok wave veen

.Pre.d\:de::l&ram considering i in n«;‘\-s;o.a-k-(oa . Eoldnag v. OKlahoma ,4ss 0.5, 164 (1282) "

Lockett v.Ohie , 438 v.&. Sxb (1Q78).

1b.1Cespeat-lutly, the muhgation Aok presesred and weghed by kit Seateacers wag

- sehstanthall e ks Sentencers had been preseated wnth att o€ Lhe re\evarl evdence and

argumeatr wieh calls €oe Yhe \ets Severe Penalty there (3 a reasonakle probaltil vy M,

t&t .AN;\?H"

woud have feceved & featrence ol life \merionment, not deatrh. As @ vegolt, Me

“&h.}\wr{?m—‘ﬂ: eni‘-tkle& ‘o anew pe;\o.u—Y echate .

T WMe, Wawerght dequests a Hole hearing oa 4as gresnd for reliel sothathe

may more Qitly @cplaca 40 +he Covct why he \s ealitled 1o the relies Sowght.

AS




LIST OF WAOTTESSES SLPPORTILG
TRE WTEWS CLAIMS

Ak the requested eu'\de/d-'\c-rf. hearing, Me, Weawr g wssid preSent restwmony
€com the {lo\\(e Was Adideals, atl o8 whom weutd be avarlable 4o Festily. MeWacnwripie reserves
the Tigheto Supplement the sk,

VD Weinsten . . V\')atf\:mr;ryl\&- dees net correntily have Ether vhe Coll nane e
the ceatact n@orm{(&;\. Lor Hhus Witness . Upen 1alormation and teliel nis Curteat apponted
Counsel deeq, however,tad Mr.\\h-;\wr:gid- Wil provide ;{-hy amendment-as Socaal poeitb& See the

]

£or Leave +b Amend.

cCompagyng Retendants Motien for Appointment o0& Ebfective, Corllick -Free Counsel and

2. 00 Wu. M N0 avr gt dees ot Giottendly have evrher the Lollname of the Contaat
infermation for 4t Kitness . Upea vafscmation and betied iis Cuirent appointed covgel dees, however,
aael A Wa AR gkt Wl previde v by ameadment-as Seen as possinle . See the acce uP&rw‘m?
Defeadants Potien for Apptintment o€ Electve, Corliier-Free Covnsel and Lor Leave. o Amend.
3.Mrs.ReSalve &a\ia,Cr{M{l\al Qpec.\qw;-’e TAveshpatons Tae, PO ROK TSDIE Tampa,

.FL TS, Yelephone no. 1 B13.241.215R "

gy MISt b Aoted here tivak although Hhe above - named witnesses have been tontacted By
L1°%




him to Prege

REQUEST FOR REL\ET

Wnere fore, e Qelendont, Anthony Foyd Wiiaw right, requests Hae Covrtto:

\. Condoct an eG\deA{-térY hearing oathe acesads for refied asserted herenallowing
ik the extra - recerd evidence fecessacy to Substantiate them

2. I3%0e anorder vacating his Seatence of death and ordering @ aew penally phace,,

3. Grant Suth sther reped ac appeart yost and preper in \ipht o€ +he Lacte and

C:fCUIK§+Q

$ o€ dhs case.

.Er:ec;o ea L Wespect Loliy Sounitied |
n{“;’ (2 _,2008. W 2
A\ Y FTOYC! \o\}\u\wr;?k‘k—
| #*\23847- O22028 ‘
Lnten Gierectivnal Trshdstion
TSI MW 2284 Wreat-
Caferd, FL 320826 4420
Detendaat pro se
CERTTRICANE OF SERVICE And
YERI\F\CATTOMN OF DOCUMEWT
mMr. Naiouar:? rS Corcent appeinted Covatel and have, agreed o appear and +eei—l-ﬁy Shovid
‘+he requested ed\deahiaryhenr}np_be granted , ther o.oa}lah'd'\-l-y 8 athageat VPOA ANE,
2ing Compensated forthere Services. See the acco mpaayiap Dedendants motion Lor Londs Coc
Zepert and Eavestigatery Atsistance .
\T
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corfeat,
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Honsrabie &
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-Vernon Qovglas

. Po Drmpec 27¢

W ave O

Merediin Q)
Oflice od tin
The _COp:hl,
Tattahassee,

MeFerey 1

vV 32086

harpola, 44,

e. Avtorney General
PL-o1

FL. 222941068

M. Rlae
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PO Drawer
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L 32060
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I hereby Certi€y tnat - have €urnahed accorate cepies o€ Hais pleading by
Pl Lirst class 1.8, mal o ‘he pacties Wdeat ied belew., and declare under penatty

nak 32 have read tine piecd!{np and that the factt and matters stated (A \tace Avve and

AntrSny Foyd Woinwor ik




